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Message from the CEO 
 

A challenging year with solid results 

We are very pleased to present to you our results for 2012.Last year was a dynamic year for us at 

Gasunie. We completed a number of large-scale projects, while keeping the security of supply at a 

high level – and we did it without compromising on safety. Even when we found ourselves quite 

literally ‘under pressure’ from politics and regulators, Gasunie employees continued to give their 

best, working hard to ensure that people in the Netherlands and Germany would not be without 

energy. The public interest is and remains leading. So all in all, we believe we can say that, despite 

the tough challenges we faced, we can be proud of the results we achieved in 2012.  

 

Gasunie’s position in a changing Europe 

The energy mix in Europe is changing rapidly. In 2012, we saw, on the one hand, more renewable 

energy being used in the Netherlands and Germany, while on the other hand we saw strong growth 

in the use of coal for generating electricity. The International Energy Agency (IEA) predicted in 

2011 that a ‘golden age’ for gas would dawn, but the reality is that this is still not the case for 

north-west Europe. While in the United States coal-fired power stations are being replaced rapidly 

by gas-fired stations, which emit considerably less CO2, in Europe we see precisely the opposite 

trend taking place. The new American gas ‘revolution’ is leading to a glut of coal, at cheap prices. 

Much of this cheap coal is being shipped to Europe.  As a result, the energy mix in the Netherlands, 

for instance, has become one of extremes: renewable energy sources on the one hand and 

polluting coal on the other. As a result, natural gas is threatening to be increasingly pushed out of 

the energy mix, despite the fact that gas is the ideal partner of renewable energy sources, such as 

solar power and wind. In the short term, therefore, the position of gas – and thereby the position 

of all related activities – is uncertain. Meanwhile, following developments in the United States, the 

subject of shale gas is high on the political agenda in the Netherlands. The Ministry of Economic 

Affairs has ordered a study to be carried out into the pros and cons of shale gas. The results of this 

study are expected by mid-2013.  

 

Gasunie believes that natural gas can play an important part in the transition to the sustainable 

provision of energy, and strives to exploit to the full the potential of gas for industry, households 

and mobility. Natural gas offers the best chance of enabling us to achieve – as quickly as possible – 

our collective climate goals, in ways that are responsible, and above all affordable. Only the 

combination of renewable energy and gas will, in the long term, be feasible from an environmental 

and cost point of view.  
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Gasunie’s position in the changing landscape of the Netherlands and Germany 

In 2012, the German government’s decision to turn its back on nuclear energy and to invest 

heavily in subsidised sustainable energy, such as solar panels, led to an abrupt change in the 

European energy landscape. ThisEnergiewende (Energy Transition) effectively put an end to the 

idea that there was a single European energy policy. At Gasunie, we believe the European 

Commission is right to put the further integration of Europe’s energy market high on its list of 

priorities. Our ownership of pipeline networks both in the Netherlands and in Germany means we 

can play an important part in this integration process. This has meant that we have already been 

able to contribute to much better security of supply in north-west Europe – for instance, during the 

extremely cold weather we had in February 2012. By making maximum use of our export capacity, 

we were also able to help prevent a massive black-out in southern Germany. 

 

As far as regulation is concerned, we are pleased to say that, in 2012, the situation for us, both in 

the Netherlands and Germany, seemed to stabilise. In November, the Dutch Industrial Appeals 

Tribunal (CBb) rejected the appeals against the Dutch regulator’s method decisions, which means 

we now at least have a clearer idea of how the Dutch regulatory framework will operate. In the 

past, the permitted tariffs were set too high, and the ruling means we now need to pay back a total 

of €400 million in 2012 and 2013. In Germany, the German regulator BundesNetzAgentur (BNetzA) 

broadly maintained the existing regulation. A transparent regulatory framework that allows for 

healthy yields is vital if we are going to have a stable investment climate– which is very important 

for companies like Gasunie. Investing in gas infrastructure is not something you do for the short 

term. It requires further integration of the gas market, not to mention a level playing field 

regarding the regulatory methods used across Europe. 

 

European energy infrastructure influenced by global developments 

The Netherlands is growing in its role as the European gas roundabout. You can see this clearly in 

the success of the virtual trading point, Title Transfer Facility (TTF), which has quickly become the 

leading gas hub on the mainland of Europe. The gas infrastructure market in the Netherlands has 

matured, and by using ‘intelligent capacity management’, we are able to serve all our customers 

with our existing network in a cost-efficient way. The future of the Netherlands as a ‘gas country’, 

and the development of a single integrated European gas market are becoming increasingly 

intertwined. European Transmission System Operators (TSOs) are increasingly looking for greater 

mutual cooperation, while regulation in Europe is being harmonised. Large, powerful parties clearly 

have an advantage here. The European gas market is developing fast, and is already able to offer 

high-quality infrastructures and services. By using the existing infrastructure fully and efficiently 

(and, where necessary, extending it), value can be created. With its extensive integrated network, 

Gasunie can contribute to this process and in doing so stimulate the liquidity of the European gas 

market.  

 

Another key development is the transition to a more sustainable energy mix. As we noted already, 

we at Gasunie believe gas is indispensable in the long term. It is the cleanest fossil fuel there is, 

and it plays a key role as a stable back-up for the supply of solar and wind energy. In addition, the 

supply of ‘green gas’ will increase rapidly in the coming years, while liquefied natural gas (LNG) will 

become increasingly important – particularly as a fuel for freight transport, on roads and 
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waterways. Gasunie thinks in terms of the energy system as a whole: we see a steady 

convergence of the supply chains of gas and electricity, and they will eventually reinforce each 

other. In short, to achieve a reliable, clean and affordable energy mix, we need to think in terms of 

the energy system as a whole. 

 

Organisation 

Gasunie has introduced a new organisational structure, with three business units, each accountable 

for its own results. This structure will make us more focused, dynamic and decisive and will be 

more transparent for our shareholder and the regulators. It will also help to safeguard the Dutch 

network and guarantee financial integrity. This new structure gives us a solid platform from which 

we can implement our long-term strategy. The Executive Board has also been restructured, 

consisting now of a CEO, a CFO and a COO.  

 

A glance at the future  

In 2012, we translated our strategy into ten ‘key policy themes’. These are designed to serve as a 

guideline for Gasunie employees when putting the strategy into practice. We also launched a 

number of measures to ensure that the strategy will be successfully implemented. For example, 

our merger and acquisition processes have been improved. In large acquisition projects, Gasunie 

actively seeks cooperation with partners.In 2013, we will continue the change programmes we 

have started and pursue our ongoing ambition to achieve operational excellence. This will enable 

us to operate competitively, transparently and efficiently in the European market. In this wider, 

European context, many opportunities lie open for us. We will make sure we are ready to take full 

advantage of them. Where possible and appropriate within our strategy, we strive to expand 

further in Europe in the near future. To be able to remain an influential player in the European 

market, we will need to intensify our cooperation with other infrastructure companies. We believe 

that partial privatisation and the possibility of being able to take an interest in each other’s 

companies, including at ownership level, could give a big stimulus to such cooperation. We are 

engaged in constructive talks with our shareholder on this point.  

 

We strive to do our best for our customers and stakeholders. But beyond that, in the Netherlands, 

we represent a public interest. It is precisely because of this that we want to take a leading role in 

Europe. We need to make sure that there will be enough gas for the Netherlands, not only now, 

but for generations ahead – to ensure security of supply, an efficiently functioning market, and 

sustainable use of the Dutch gas infrastructure. That is the basis of our European strategy. 

 

The combination of regulated transport activities on the one hand and non-regulated gas 

infrastructure services on the other makes Gasunie an internationally operating company that can 

face the future with confidence.  

 

Quality and professionalism 

Gasunie stands for quality and professionalism – even under difficult and wintery circumstances, 

our people have provided the highest level of security of supply. In 2013, we will celebrate the fact 

that, for fifty years, Gasunie has been a guarantee of reliable gas transport. The importance to 
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society of having a smoothly functioning infrastructure is obvious. And the payment of a dividend 

of €215 million to the Dutch exchequer merely underlines the significance of our public function. 

 

This year, for the first time, we are publishing our Annual Report online. Our aim is to make the 

information in the Report more easily available and accessible to our various stakeholders. Online 

publication is also in line with our CSR ambition to reduce the use of paper and to improve work 

processes by using modern devices such as tablets and apps. 

 

On behalf of my colleagues on the Executive Board, I would like to thank all Gasunie employees for 

their dedication and hard work and for the excellent performance they delivered in 2012. These 

enable Gasunie to enter 2013 with good prospects. 

 

Paul van Gelder 
CEO N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie 
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Report of the Management Board 
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Key figures 
 

1) 2012 2011 
Profit and loss account (x € million)     
Reported figures     
Income    1,506     1,726  
EBITDA       941     1,108  
Result after taxation       359       602- 
Proposed dividend       215         -  
      
Corrected figures 2)     
Income    1,696     1,658  
EBITDA    1,131     1,040  
Result after taxation       501        502  
      
Balance sheet (x € million)     
Fixed assets    9,944     9,630  
Equity    4,857     4,437  
Balance sheet total  11,073   10,109  
      
Invested capital    8,675     7,747  
Net debt    5,174     5,471  
      
Cash flows (x € million)     
Cash flows from operational activities       935        898  
Cash flows from investment activities      510-      704- 
Cash flows from financing activities       416       284- 
      
Ratios     
ROIC (corrected) 7.7% 8.1% 
ROE (corrected) 10.3% 11.3% 
FFO / interest ratio       3.8        6.2  
Net debt / fixed assets 52% 57% 
      
Credit rating Standard & Poor’s  AA-   AA-  
Credit rating Moody's  A2   A2  
      
Reportable frequency index       2.5        4.3  
Pipeline damage          5           7  
Security of supply (non-deliveries or partial deliveries )          3           1  
      
Other ratios 3)     
FTEs employed (as at 31 Dec.)    1,685     1,683  
Transported volume (bn kWh)    1,261     1,235  
Length of regulated gas transport pipelines (km)  15,500   15,000  
      
1) For definitions, see next page.     
2) For a definition of the corrected figures, see ‘Summary of financial results’. 
3) For the other CSR ratios, see the separate CSR Report.     
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Definitions relating to the key figures 

EBIT Earnings before interest and taxes 
 

EBITDA Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation 
 

FFO Funds from operations (net profit from normal operations minus 
costs of depreciation and amortisation) 
 

FFO/Interest ratio 
 

This ratio gives insight into the development of net profit 
(including depreciation and impairments) relative to finance costs 
 

Invested capital Total of tangible fixed assets, investments in associates and other 
capital interests, corrected for work in progress  
 

Net debt Total of long-term interest-bearing loans, short-term finance 
obligations, cash and cash equivalents and guarantees 
 

Net debt/fixed assets This ratio gives insight into the extent to which fixed assets are 
financed by debt (long-term interest-bearing borrowed capital + 
short-term interest-bearing borrowed capital − cash and cash 
equivalents + guarantees) 
 

Reportable frequency index The number of recordable incidents (incidents resulting in 
absence, medical treatment, replacement work or fatalities) per 
million hours worked 
 

ROE Return on Equity 
 

ROE (corrected) Corrected net profit divided by equity  
 

ROIC  
 
ROIC (corrected) 

Return on Invested Capital  
 
Corrected NOPLAT (EBIT corrected for special one-off effects − 
taxes) divided by value of assets (carrying amount of assets 
excluding work in progress) 
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Report of the Executive Board 
 

Main developments in 2012 
 

We are pleased to present the results of our activities during 2012. The company’s performance 

has been sound across the board, including our financial results, our safety performance and our 

success in maintaining security of supply. We are particularly pleased that this performance has 

been achieved on the basis of a focused strategy and through the dedicated teamwork of all 

Gasunie employees.  

 

Financial  

Looking back, we can say that in 2012 our financial results were satisfying. We achieved a profit of 

€ 359 million on an invested capital of € 8,675 million.  

 

The Dutch Competition Authority (NMa) has determined that, due to a downward adjustment of the 

transport tariffs permitted in the past, we need to set off the sum of € 400 million. Of this amount, 

€ 215 million was settled in 2012, while the remaining sum will be settled in 2013.  

 

On 8 November 2012, the Dutch Industrial Appeals Tribunal (CBb) ruled that the method decisions 

that the NMa adopted in 2011 could remain in force. These method decisions determine the rates 

that Gasunie Transport Services (GTS) may charge for transport. This means that GTS can 

continue to maintain the rates established by the NMa for the current regulatory period. The CBb’s 

ruling has a positive effect, in that it creates greater clarity and stability in the market.  

 

Access to the capital market 

Gasunie’shas a long-term credit rating of AA- with a negative outlook from Standard & Poor’s, and 

A2 with a stable outlook from Moody’s. These credit ratings were not changed during 2012. 

Particularly during the present financially uncertain times, investors are looking for high-quality 

investment opportunities. As such, investors tend to prefer corporate bonds issued by companies in 

the infrastructure and regulated sectors such as our own, and we benefited from this development 

in 2012. We were able to issue two bondsof € 500 million each under favourable conditions in the 

public capital market. These bond issues have enabled us to already considerably reduce our 

refinancing risk for October 2013.  

 

Our financing policy is to maintain a portfolio of loans with a well-balanced maturity profile, aimed 

at preventing large spikes in the repayment schedule of the outstanding debt. This is one of the 

reasons why the first bond was issued with a ten-year tenor and the second bond with a three-year 

tenor. The determination of the optimal maturity of loans will be increasingly aligned within the 

regulatory framework. 
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Strategy 

Gasunie has a clear strategy. This is to optimise the value of our existing assets, strengthen our 

leading position as a cross-border gas infrastructure company in Europe, and facilitate the 

transition to a more sustainable use of energy. These three aspects of our strategy will be dealt 

with in more detail in the Strategy section.  

 

Inquiry into the takeover of the BEB network 

The Dutch Minister of Finance commissioned an independent inquiry into Gasunie’s takeover of the 

German BEB network in 2007. The inquiry was made due to the impairments that Gasunie had to 

take in the years following the acquisition, because of the German regulator setting tariffs at a 

much lower level than had been foreseen at the time of the acquisition. The inquiry’s findings were 

published in December 2012. Gasunie gave its full cooperation to the inquiry and supports its 

recommendations. In fact, we had already implemented many of the recommendations based on 

our own evaluation of the circumstances.  

 

The Supervisory Board expresses its deep regret that the impairments on the German network 

turned out to be necessary. Nonetheless, the Supervisory Board considers the BEB network to be 

of great strategic value, particularly because it contributes to greater liquidity and the more 

efficient functioning of the market, factors that also benefit consumers in the Netherlands. 

Moreover, investments in infrastructure are necessarily long-term, with the profits only 

materialising over the course of time. 

 

To enable fully transparent and unhindered discussion of the inquiry’s findings, three members of 

Gasunie’s Supervisory Board have declared that they are willing to resign their position, after due 

consultation with the shareholder and the Executive Board.  

 

Operational excellence  

Operational excellence can be achieved in a variety of ways. We are currently approaching it 

through several different initiatives: these include the Transponder programme, the Gasunie Way 

of Working and the Efficiency Masterplan.  

 

Transponder: adjusted organisational structure 

After a period of considerable growth, we have now adjusted our organisational structure to meet 

the changing demands of the business environment. The main vehicle for this has been our 

Transponder programme. The most important outcome of Transponder is the introduction, on 1 

January 2012, of a new organisational structure, consisting of three business units (GTS, Gasunie 

Deutschland and Participations & Business Development), each of them accountable for their own 

results. This has enabled Gasunie to become more efficient. 

 

We provide extensive services in the field of gas infrastructure in Europe, and, in this context, the 

new organisational structure should also create greater transparency for the shareholder and the 

regulator, help to safeguard security of supply in the Dutch network, and guarantee financial 

integrity. The new organisational structure will also help to stimulate a mindset of operational 

excellence, which is fully in line with the Gasunie Way of Working. 
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Gasunie Way of Working 

The Gasunie Way of Working is essentially the way our employees behave in helping the company 

achieve its strategy. It forms part of a process of cultural change that started with Transponder. It 

focuses on giving priority to the general interest of the company, and the mutual provision of 

constructive feedback. The Gasunie Way of Working, which is based on our core values, is central 

to our activities. It is the best way of continuing to improve our organisation, boosting operational 

excellence and taking our service provision to customers and society to the highest level. 

 

Efficiency Masterplan 

Gasunie strives to perform in an optimum way and at the lowest possible cost. That is why we have 

introduced our organisation-wide Efficiency Masterplan. We continually seek to make more 

intelligent use of our capacities to make our organisation more effective and efficient. In doing so, 

we look at the total costs in their overall context. We not only aim for efficiency in relation to 

operational costs, but also for efficiency in our investments in infrastructure. Here, too, the goal is 

optimum quality at the lowest possible price. In this way, the aim for greater efficiency fits into the 

framework of operational excellence.  

 

The Efficiency Masterplan is a three-year plan designed to save, cumulatively and structurally, € 60 

million (compared to 2011). We planned to save € 17 million in 2012, and this target was duly 

reached.  

 

 

Highlights of developments in the business units 
 

GTS  

 

Multi-year replacement programme  

Much of the gas transport system is now of an age that it needs systematic, planned replacement 

or reconditioning if it is to meet future standards in safety and transport security. In 2012, GTS 

therefore undertook an extensive investigation to determine which elements in the network would 

need replacement and when. On the basis of this analysis, GTS then launched a multi-year 

programme for replacing ageing parts. The new parts, like the current ones, have a long life 

expectancy, and will thus ensure long-term security of supply. The programme, which will run for 

15-20 years, will concentrate on the replacement of valve stations, gas receiving stations, and 

metering and regulating stations.  

 

Leading position of Dutch gas trading point TTF 

TTFis the virtual trading point in the Netherlands for the trading of gas. In 2012, the volume of 

trading at TTF showed spectacular growth of almost 20%. This further strengthens the leading 

position of TTF on mainland Europe, and underscores the increasingly important role played by the 

Netherlands as a ‘gas roundabout’ in the European gas market. 
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Regulation 

On 8 November 2012, after a lengthy process, the CBb (the Dutch Industrial Appeals Tribunal) 

ruled that the regulatory framework established by the NMa (the Dutch Competition Authority) for 

the previous and current regulatory periods could remain in force. For GTS, which took a 

transparent and constructive stance in the proceedings, the outcome at least provides more clarity 

about the current method decisions and the present regulatory period. It is expected that new 

method decisions, to be taken in 2013, will clarify the situation for the regulatory period starting on 

1 January 2014. 

 

Certification 

The European Third Energy Package requires TSOs to be certified. Meanwhile, in consultation with 

the NMa, GTS has already started the certification procedure, and expects to receive certification 

from the NMa in 2013. Given the current organisational structure of Gasunie, it has been decided, 

in line with the wishes of the NMa, to transfer ownership of the Dutch gas transport network as of 1 

January 2014 from Gasunie to GTS. 

 

PRISMA European Capacity Platform 

Since 1 January 2013, PRISMA European Capacity Platform has become the new brand for 

European gas capacity bookings. GTS, which took the initiative in setting up PRISMA, is co-

shareholder of PRISMA. This new, joint capacity platform is an important step towards an 

integrated European gas market, connecting the gas markets in seven European countries. 

Standardisation at European level makes it easier for customers to regulate and trade border 

capacity, and it stimulates the development of a European market. PRISMA opens up new 

possibilities for cross-border gas transport. Now, gas traders or shippers, can book cross-border 

capacity at the European network points, using just one program. This European capacity platform 

fits in with the broader strategy of European TSOs to pool their joint experience in the area of gas 

transport and capacity bookings to create new services. At the European Gas Conference in Vienna, 

PRISMA was voted Project of the Year. The project also aims to accelerate the introduction of the 

network code for Capacity Allocation Mechanisms (NC CAM) of the European Network of 

Transmission System Operators for Gas (ENTSOG), the future market regulation for the allocation 

of transport capacity.  

 

NTA 8120 standard 

In 2012, we began to introduce the Netherlands Technical Agreement (NTA) 8120 standard. This is 

a capacity management system designed to achieve the efficient and optimum management of the 

gas transport network. Key concerns will be safety, efficiency and security of supply. This project 

will be continued in 2013, with the ultimate goal of obtaining NTA 8120 certification. 

 

Preparation for increasing the diversity of types of gas 

GTS is also preparing for the import into the Netherlands of larger volumes of gas in the years 

ahead. The falling production of low-calorific Groningen gas (G gas) means that the Netherlands 

will eventually need to transfer to richer, high-calorific gas (H gas). To make H gas suitable for use 

in the Netherlands (where equipment is geared to G gas), the proportion of nitrogen in it needs to 

be increased. For this purpose, GTS opened a nitrogen buffer at Heiligerlee (near Groningen) in 
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November 2012. This will enable GTS to ensure that sufficient gas of the right quality will be 

available at peak times.  

 

In 2012, GTS held talks with the Netherlands’ Ministry of Economic Affairs, GasTerra and foreign 

parties to try to set in motion the market conversion of G gas to H gas in those areas in Northern 

Germany, Belgium and Northern France that currently use low-calorific gas. 

 

Gasunie Deutschland 

 

In 2012, we launched a number of infrastructure projects in Germany. One of these is ExEll, which 

was designed to create extra transport capacity between Germany and Denmark. Denmark has 

long been an exporter of natural gas to Germany, but because Danish gas reserves have rapidly 

declined, Denmark now has to import gas. This gas serves to create stability in the energy system, 

by evening out fluctuations in the production of wind and solar energy.  

 

At the Ellundborder point, a need for extra transport capacity has now arisen. To resolve this issue, 

a 65km pipeline will be laid from Fockbek to Ellund, and a new compressor station will be built at 

Quarnstedt, north of Hamburg. Phase 1 of this operation was started in 2012, and approval has 

meanwhile been granted for Phase 2 to start in 2013. Construction of the new compressor station 

is expected to start in the second half of 2013, and the laying of the pipeline in 2014. Both are 

scheduled to be ready before the end of 2015. As a result of these extensions, the Danish and 

Swedish gas markets will be linked to those of Gaspool and NetConnect Germany (NCG) in 

Germany and TTF in the Netherlands. In addition, gas can be transported via the new pipeline to 

the new gas-fired electricity power stations in the Hamburg and Sleeswijk-Holstein regions, which 

together contribute to the German Energiewende.  

 

Gas roundabout strategy 

To secure the supply of foreign gas to Germany, the Netherlands, Denmark, the UK and Belgium, 

we are taking steps to ensure that capacity can be increased where necessary. For example, in 

Germany, we are continuing to work on the NordeuropäischeErdgasleitung (NEL). Our German 

network will be connected via NEL to Nord Stream. In Embsen a new compressor station is being 

built, which will make extra capacity available from NEL for transport to Denmark and Northern 

Germany. Gasunie has a 20% stake in NEL.  

 

Power-to-gas 

Power-to-gas is an important means of combining gas and electricity in the energy transition. The 

idea is to convert any surplus of sustainably generated electricity into hydrogen, which can then be 

injected into Gasunie’s gas infrastructure. In this way, the gas system becomes a means of both 

transporting and storing sustainable energy, thus contributing to the optimum exploitation of the 

infrastructure. It is a good example of how two energy systems can strengthen each other. In 

2012, Gasunie Deutschland investigated the possibility of injecting hydrogen originating from 

power-to-gas directly into the transport system for natural gas. Gasunie Deutschland is actively 

looking for partners to develop power-to-gas further in 2013. 
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Participations & Business Development 

 

Nord Stream 

The official inauguration of the second section of the Nord Stream pipeline on 8 October 2012 

marked the end of the construction phase of the two parallel pipelines. The first section of the 

pipeline began operations in 2011. Nord Stream has sufficient capacity to supply 537 billion kWh 

(55 billion m3) of natural gas per year, enough for some 26 million households for at least fifty 

years. Gasunie has a 9% stake in Nord Stream. 

 

Small-scale LNG 

In 2012, we continued to develop small-scale LNG, in part together with our partner Vopak. Vopak 

and Gasunie have signed a letter of intent for developing a new LNG Break Bulk terminal, with a 

transshipment capacity of 1.3 million tonnes of LNG per year. This proposed LNG terminal is in 

addition to the Gate terminal, which opened in 2011, for the large-scale importation of LNG. The 

new transshipment terminal is for the distribution of LNG to ships and filling stations for trucks and 

buses. From 2014, some 300 bunker vessels per year will be able to use this terminal to restock 

small terminals (e.g., in the Wadden Sea and North Sea and the Rotterdam-Basel stretch of the 

Rhine). An initial agreement was signed in 2012 with Shell, the launching customer for this 

terminal. 

 

LNG initiative in the north of the Netherlands 

The LNG initiatives of Vopak and Gasunie on the Maasvlakte (an area of reclaimed land near the 

port of Rotterdam) have given rise to various follow-up initiatives for the use of LNG as a clean 

alternative fuel for road freight. The Province of Groningen and the Energy Valley Foundation have 

joined forces to set up the Taskforce LNG Northern Netherlands. The aim is to set up a distribution 

chain within three years for the use of LNG in shipping and road freight in the region. This should 

help to reduce carbon emissions and fine particulate matter caused by the use of fuel oil and 

diesel. It is expected that this will serve to stimulate the development of the economy in that part 

of the country, opening up opportunities for the development of Wadden Sea harbours and closer 

cooperation with northern Germany, for instance.   

 

In addition, in the first half of 2012, Participations & Business Development concentrated on 

preparing the possible acquisition of the Open Grid Europe network of E.ON, one of Germany’s 

largest gas transport networks. Together with partners and in consultation with the shareholder, a 

reasonable offer was made. In the end, however, the network was acquired by another consortium, 

which was prepared to pay more. 
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Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) 
 

HSE is high on the agenda of the Executive Board and is the focus of constant attention within our 

organisation. In all our activities,our motto is ‘Think Safety’. In 2011, we introduced the Gasunie 

Golden Rules of Safety, which are now applied throughout the organisation. In 2012, we published 

a public HSE website in order to provide our customers and suppliers with better information about 

HSE. We are working systematically on developing an integrated Safety Management System, 

which serves the safety of our people, our work processes and our environment. 

  

Target figures 

The reportable frequency index2 for personal safety came out at 2.5 per million working hours. This 

figure is considerably lower than the signal value for 2012 (<5.0). In fact, the value of 2.5 for 2012 

is the lowest since 2006, when we started registering the reportable frequency index in this way.  

 

However, the number of potentially serious incidents did increase, indicating that a number of 

incidents and situations occurred that could have led to serious incidents. We do everything we can 

to prevent these situations. In 2012, we therefore paid special attention to process safety, and will 

continue to do so in 2013. 

 

The number of pipeline incidents as a result of mechanical excavation activities fell from 7 in 2011 

to 5 in 2012, a number that is below the signal value set for 2012. One incident involved a gas leak 

in the regional pipeline system. 

 

 

Prospects 
 

As expected, the production of natural gas in Europe is diminishing. Domestic production in 

countries such as the UK and Germany is falling, and in due course production in the Netherlands 

will also decline. The shortfall will gradually be made up by imported gas from, amongst other 

places, Russia and by LNG from other parts of the world. Gasunie plans to take advantage of this 

development by being present at all the relevant entry points and transit routes of natural gas in 

and through Europe. For example, we are present in the entire east-west connection from Russia to 

the UK. 

 

Meanwhile, following the United States, the subject of shale gas has taken a prominent place on 

the political agenda in Europe. In the Netherlands, research will be carried out into the pros and 

cons of shale gas. Within Europe, for the time being, no large quantities of shale gas are expected 

and it seems unlikely that shale gas will be able to compensate for the decline in European 

production. 

 
  

                                                            
2 Accidents followed by absence, medical treatment, alternative work or fatalities	
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Ambitions 

Regulators are continually imposing more stringent requirements on our operations. On the one 

hand, legislation is being tightened, while on the other hand, the energy bill for customers cannot 

rise too high. In the long term, we aim to be an internationally operating company that is active in 

regions with growth opportunities and with the security of a good, stable investment climate. 

 

We have serious ambitions for the coming years. Besides becoming a more effective organisation 

internally, we strive to become even more efficient, serving our customers in the best possible 

way, and being fully conscious of our social responsibility. This is reflected in, amongst other 

things, the way we ensure security of supply by transporting imported gas to replace the decline in 

domestic production. Finally, we want to enable our employees to focus on using their talents to 

help us achieve our ambitions.  

 

Changing playing field 

We want to provide our customers with good service. We are therefore continually looking for ways 

of improving our service provision, such as in the field of logistic efficiency. For example, demand 

for extra capacity that emerged from the Open Season 2017 (held by GTS in 2012) can now largely 

be met using our existing infrastructure. Our strategy of serving our customers efficiently and with 

the right services has delivered demonstrable results in 2012, such as the continuing growth of 

TTF. In a world that is rapidly changing, we aim to continue in this direction in theyears to come.  

 

Seizing opportunities 

On a changing playing field, it is crucially important that we all maintain the correct focus within 

the organisation. We will therefore, more than ever, need to devote more attention to our 

stakeholders in the market and in society. As an organisation, we are ready for new challenges. 

Precisely because of that, we are ready to grasp opportunities and where necessary adjust to new 

circumstances, both in the short and in the long term. 
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Strategy 
 

Gasunie’s strategy takes into account the opportunities and challenges in the current dynamic gas 

market and connects these with our mission and vision. We do this from a strong position within 

Europe as an independent, cross-border gas infrastructure company. This position is based on the 

quality and the international spread of our asset base. The strong position of the gas trading 

platform TTF is also important here. During the past few years, Gasunie has built up an extensive 

network and carved out a strategic position for itself. Through participation in the 

BalgzandBactonLeiding (BBL), NEL and Nord Stream, and through the takeover of Gasunie 

Deutschland, we have placed ourselves at the heart of the most important axis in north-west 

Europe, which runs from Russia, through Germany and the Netherlands, to the UK.  

 

 
 

Mission 

Gasunie is a leading European gas infrastructure company. We serve the public interest, offer 

integrated transport and infrastructure services to our customers and adhere to the highest safety 

and business standards. We focus on short- and long-term value creation for our shareholder(s), 

other stakeholders and the environment. 

  

Vision 

We believe in a sustainable future with a balanced energy mix and a lasting role for diversified gas. 

We believe that we serve our customers best with innovative gas infrastructure solutions. 

Cooperative links 



19 
	

Europe is the scene of a number of important developments. During the past few years, the 

European gas market has matured rapidly. Investments in pipelines, gas storage and LNG 

terminals raised the level of security of supply and services. This particularly applies to the 

Netherlands and Germany, the markets in which Gasunie is active. In Europe as a whole, there is a 

tendency for TSOs to work more closely together and for markets to become more tightly linked. In 

a mature market, competition between gas infrastructure companies (particularly concerning the 

transit streams) increases, stimulated by the unbundling of integrated energy companies and the 

rise of new cooperative links. The Dutch government’s Gas Roundabout Strategy has meanwhile 

been competitively imitated by foreign gas infrastructure companies. 

 

Positioning  

As expected, the production of natural gas in Europe is declining. Domestic production in countries 

such as the UK and Germany is falling and is gradually being replaced by import gas from, amongst 

other places, Russia and by LNG from other parts of the world. In due course, production will also 

decline in the Netherlands, as a result of which the importance of gas from abroad will increase. 

Gasunie plans to take advantage of this development by being present at all the relevant entry 

points and transit routes of natural gas in and through Europe. For example, we are present in the 

entire east-west connection from Russia to the UK. 

  

Energy mix 

Changes in the energy mix also require a rapid response. The proportion of sustainable energy is 

growing, while at the same time the number of coal-fired power stations is increasing. The 

production of shale gas in the United States means that large volumes of low-priced coal are 

entering the European market. In the short term, the position of natural gas is therefore uncertain. 

An effectively working Emissions Trading System (ETS) is essential to stimulate a sustainable 

energy supply. 

 

As the cleanest of the fossil fuels, natural gas will continue to play an important part in the energy 

mix of the future. Thanks to its flexible deployability, gas is the ideal partner for renewable energy 

sources, such as solar and wind, since the fluctuations in the supply of these resources can be 

quickly evened out. It is important that the gas infrastructure continues to offer sufficient capacity 

in order to support the transition to a sustainable energy mix. In addition, the proportion of ‘green 

gas’ (biogas) will increase in the next few years.  

 

Sustainability 

Our policy is aimed at dealing with our environment in a responsible manner, and sustainability is 

one of the principles on which our activities are based. Many of the measures we take are designed 

to transport natural gas in a safe, reliable and sustainable manner. As far as possible, we wish to 

limit the effect of our company’s activities on our surroundings (our ‘footprint’) as much as 

possible, in line with government objectives. In this, we focus on energy efficiency and on lowering 

emissions. We have reported extensively on this matter in our CSR Annual Report for 2012. 

 
  



20 
	

European regulation 

Certain regulatory trends are clearly visible. One is that regulation is shifting from national to 

European level. Another is that vertically integrated companies are beginning to completely 

unbundle their network activities. A third trend is the arrival of financial and other parties in the 

market. Clearly, both the structure of the market and the parties who are operating in it are 

subject to change. 

 

However, even in a regulated world, Gasunie sees competitive advantages that can be seized and 

exploited. For example, our customers value a liquid market with competitive tariffs and an easily 

accessible infrastructure. Gasunie has come up with timely responses to these requirements, by 

setting up the trading platform TTF, for instance. In addition, partly to improve its cross-border 

service provision, Gasunie was quick to carve out a significant international position for itself.  

 
 

Three strategic pillars 

The strategy of Gasunie is based on three pillars: 
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1. Optimising the value of our existing assets  

Our strategy is firmly based on our gas transport and infrastructure activities. The TSOs GTS and 

Gasunie Deutschland fulfil statutory duties in the field of gas transport, having the task of ensuring 

a well-functioning gas market. In carrying out these tasks, the TSOs are guided by the values of 

safety, reliability and operational excellence, all to the highest standard. To optimise the value of 

our asset portfolio, we develop capacity products and supporting services in the field of transport, 

storage and LNG. In addition, we combine assets so that we can offer innovative products and 

services. We also aim to further strengthen the position of TTF as the most liquid market place in 

continental Europe.  

Besides the necessary building of new infrastructure in Germany to meet the demand for capacity, 

we have also created the possibility of buying back capacity reserved by customers, on the 

condition that we sell this capacity directly on to another customer. This enables the gas market to 

function more efficiently.  

 

2. Strengthening our leading position as cross-border gas infrastructure company in 

Europe 

We continuously seek to make our infrastructure more attractive to European market players 

wishing to transport gas. This serves to stimulate the commercial and physical use of our assets. 

Moreover, by developing a strong position in Europe, we make Gasunie a logical discussion partner 

for regulatory bodies. In that context, we are keen to collaborate with other TSOs. We also keep an 

eye open for possible mergers and acquisitions, as well as participations in pipelines at important 

entry and exit points and on key routes, which may help to strengthen our position still further.  

 

Due to the unbundling of integrated energy companies, infrastructure has become an independent 

sector. In fact, we currently transport gas through our international infrastructure for more than 

100 customers, not only domestic producers but increasingly also importers and international 

transporters of gas. This underlines how important it is for Gasunie to be present at those places 

where gas enters Europe. We can only attract large, international customers wishing to transport 

their gas through our network if we have an active presence at those entry points. The need to 

strengthen our position in Europe in this way is therefore becoming increasingly urgent. 

 

Gasunie was one of the founding members of PRISMA, the European platform for booking gas 

capacity. We occupy an important position within this organisation. We are also a key player in 

ENTSOG, where we participate in discussions at the highest levels about the structure of the 

European gas market. 

 

The position of TTF and adjacent gas hubs has been strengthened by the separation of APX-ENDEX 

into a gas segment (derivatives and the gas spot trade of APX-ENDEX) and an electricity segment 

(the electricity spot market and clearing services), as well as by the participation by 

IntercontinentalExchange (ICE) as a shareholder in the gas part. 
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ICE is one of the biggest operators of trading platforms for global commodity markets. Thanks to 

collaboration with ICE, world-class technology has now become available for the gas trading 

markets in this part of Europe. ICE also has considerable expertise in the field of clearing systems. 

By working together in ICE-ENDEX, both ICE and Gasunie are helping to maintain a liquid, 

transparent and stable gas market for the benefit of European and global customers. This is a 

positive development for traders, suppliers, customers and consumers in the gas market. 

  

3. Enabling the transition towards more sustainable energy usage 

Gasunie believes that in the future it will be possible to provide energy that is cleaner, reliable in 

supply, technically viable and, above all, affordable. We are pleased to be a part of this 

development, and see an ongoing role for natural gas in a sustainable energy mix. Gas is a robust, 

efficient and relatively cheap form of energy with a widespread transport and storage 

infrastructure. It can make the provision of low-carbon energy cost-effective. Energy that is 

generated more sustainably will lead to a greater demand for flexibility and back-up. Gas, unlike 

sustainable forms of energy, is highly flexible. It can be regulated and switched on and off very 

quickly in gas power stations, for example. This flexible character of gas makes it easier to deploy 

more sustainably generated energy through gas-to-power. 

 

Surpluses of sustainably generated wind energy can also be stored in gas form for later use 

(‘power-to-gas’). This will take pressure off the electricity network. Gasunie is also investing in 

research into how electricity can be converted to gas (such as hydrogen and methanised gas). 

Adopting such a ‘chain’ approach to energy supply will enable gas to give energy provision a 

significant innovative boost. 

 

Green gas 

The gas supply can also be made more sustainable by producing green gas and feeding it into the 

network. This makes a direct contribution to the realisation of the Dutch government’s climate 

targets, and fits in with the current rapid development of the market for green gas. Gasunie’s 

extensive experience in blending and accommodating different qualities of gas to form a reliable 

and stable gas supply can also be used to enable the incorporation of sustainable green gas into 

the network and the energy mix. In fact, we are already actively involved in a number of projects 

aimed at increasing the proportion of green gas in the energy mix.  

 

Power-to-gas 

In 2012, we continued our efforts to make energy supply more sustainable by stimulating 

innovative developments, including the development of power-to-gas. Power-to-gas is a highly 

promising development, whereby surplus electricity – generated by solar parks and wind farms – is 

stored in the form of hydrogen. This gas could be transported in our network. Gasunie Deutschland 

is currently actively looking for partners with whom to further develop power-to-gas in 2013. 
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LNG in mobility 

There is a growing realisation that LNG can contribute significantly to making energy use more 

sustainable. LNG is a cleaner fuel than diesel for road freight and shipping, and has strong growth 

potential. The Gate terminal is well positioned to play a key role in facilitating the distribution of 

LNG through its distribution and transshipment facilities. Gasunie and Vopak already have far-

advanced plans to build an LNG Break Bulk terminal next to the Gate terminal on the Maasvlakte. 

The aim is to offer a bunkering and a reloading facility for small-scale LNG for the benefit of road 

freight.  

 

In the future, the transport sector will be facingincreasingly stringent regulations on the use of 

polluting forms of fuel and diesel. LNG will then offer a clean alternative, as trucks running on LNG 

produce much less CO2, emit no sulphur compounds or fine particulate matter, and are much 

quieter. Together with the Energy Valley Foundation and several other parties, Gasunie is taking 

part in the National LNG Platform. The specific goal of this organisation is to have at least 50 inland 

waterway vessels, 50 sea-going vessels and 500 freight vehicles running on LNG in 2015. This 

project is being supported by the Dutch government as part of its ‘Green Deal’ programme to 

encourage environmentally friendly projects. 

 

CO2-neutral gas supply in 2050 

Gasunie and two other independent European gas infrastructure companies – Energinet.dk in 

Denmark and Fluxys in Belgium – have set themselves the target of achieving CO2-neutral gas 

provision in the year 2050. They believe that their gas infrastructure can play a useful part in 

developing a low-carbon economy in Europe. The way in which this happens may differ from 

company to company, depending on the specific energy situation in each country and the set of 

options chosen. In the first instance, Gasunie will focus on green gas, power-to-gas and small-scale 

LNG as providing the promising routes forward. 
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GTS 
 
GTS manages the national gas transport network in the Netherlands and is responsible for its 
management and development. 
 

Balance between short and long term 

The activities of GTS have both a short-term and a long-term dimension. Investing in gas networks 

requires a clear long-term vision. At the same time, the trade in gas is increasingly dominated by 

short-term interests. As a result, GTS faces a dual challenge. In the short term, it has to provide 

the infrastructure and services that make the gas trade possible, while in the long term it needs to 

guarantee a healthy business. 

 

Gas transport 

In 2012, GTS transported more than 1,025 billion kWh (105 billion m3) of gas – an increase on the 

previous year (996 billion kWh, 102 billion m3). The new infrastructurethat became operational at 

the end of 2011 was used during the cold spells at the beginning and end of 2012 to make extra 

gas available to meet the strong domestic demand and to transport more gas to foreign 

destinations. With its gas transport and related services, GTS achieved a revenue of €1 billion in 

2012. 

 

Developing the liquid gas market 

The Netherlands is attractive for suppliers of gas. The gas roundabout policy has led to good 

contacts with our surrounding markets, as a result of which gas can be brought in from various 

sources and directions. Many gas suppliers are active in the Gasunie network. This serves to 

promote trade, and the virtual gas trading point TTF also plays an important role in facilitating this. 

In addition, trading on TTF grew dramatically in 2012, further strengthening TTF’s leading position 

on the European mainland.  

 

This leading position ensures that the gas prices on TTF serve as the benchmark for the rest of 

Europe. As a result of this lively trade in gas, TTF is increasingly attracting the attention of 

international parties. In the meantime, every day, on average some 100 gas traders are active on 

the trading point. Large financial parties have also entered the TTF. A well-operating trading hub 

like this is in the interest of gas users in the region: it is good for the security of supply and 

ensures that the laws of supply and demand can create a proper and reliable balance. This has a 

favourable effect on the price that end-users pay for their gas. 
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TTF  

Compared to 2011, the volume traded on TTF in 2012 grew by almost 20% to an annual volume of 

7,569 billion kWh (775 billion m3). This volume consists both of bilateral trade (OTC) and trade via 

exchanges. The physical volume that flows via TTF (the net TTF volume) grew to 417 billion kWh 

(42.7 billion m3) in 2012. As a result, for the first time, the physical TTF volume was more than the 

domestic gas consumption. This clearly shows that now export markets are also being supplied 

from TTF. 

 

The liquidity of the TTF trade continued to grow in 2012. On average, every m3 was traded more 

than 18 times before delivery took place. In 2011, this figure was 17. On 5 June 2012, the number 

of active TTF traders reached 100. The average daily number of parties active during 2012 was 98, 

with a maximum of 104 being active on any one day. 

 

In comparison with neighbouring gas trading points in Europe, only the British NBP is larger, 

although the difference in liquidity is rapidly decreasing. Compared to the other continental gas 

trading points (Zeebrugge, Gaspool, NCG and PEGs), TTF is by far the largest. In 2012, the traded 

volume on TTF was about 2.5 times the volume of all these other continental trading points put 

together. 

 

Customers and service provision 

The customer base of GTS is growing and is becoming increasingly diverse. To answer the wider 

range of questions being asked, the website has been redesigned. A Customer Desk has also been 

set up to answer customers’ questions. In addition, in order to increase brand recognition, the 

name of GTS was changed to Gasunie Transport Services B.V. in October 2012. 

 

Sharing best practices 

GTS is increasingly working together with other parties and is intensifying the interaction with 

those involved. For example, GTS communicates extensively with customers and local distribution 

companies about maintenance and replacement work on older parts of the network. This improved 

communication will enable us to share best practices more effectively. 

 

Clarity regarding tariffs 

In 2012, a definitive method of regulation was set up, ratified by the CBb. This clearly specifies 

how our standardised asset value is to be determined and the tariffs to be charged from 2006. It is 

expected that in the course of 2013 the NMa will specify new method decisions for GTS’s regulated 

tasks, to come into force on 1 January 2014. 
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Application for certification  

GTS has requested certification as an independent system operator in line with the requirements of 

the European Third Package for energy legislation. Under the Third Package, national energy 

regulators are required to check whether their national system operators comply with the European 

unbundling requirements and operate wholly independently from the production and delivery of 

energy. In the Netherlands, the NMa must check whether GTS conforms to the European 

requirements. The NMa is expected to take a decision on certification in the course of 2013, after 

the European Commission has issued its advice. 

 

EU policy 

The transport of natural gas takes place in a market with internationally operating parties. The 

European Commission develops policy for, amongst other things, cross-border gas transport. Codes 

are being developed which will requiresystem operators to create extra transport capacity, to be 

auctioned, in the first instance, for short-term use. The EU requires TSOs to work closely together 

and to optimise their investments. GTS is pleased with this development, given that gas transport 

has become an international matter. However, this internationalisation process will only take place 

if national regulatory frameworks permit it. 

 

PRISMA European Capacity Platform 

The development of the PRISMA European Capacity Platform was an important step towards an 

integrated European gas market, connecting the gas markets of seven different countries at the 

heart of Europe. Together with other TSOs, GTS was one of the originators of this initiative. The 

platform is managed by PRISMA, which is based in Leipzig. PRISMA is facilitating work on a uniform 

system which, in due course, will enable all customers – regardless of the country they are based 

in – to benefit from new possibilities for cross-border gas transport and gas trading, as they will be 

able to book capacity at the European border points through a single platform. Joining up the gas 

markets in this way creates a larger market with more suppliers. This is good for supply and 

demand, because it results in greater competition – which is in the interest of all gas users in the 

region. PRISMA was chosen as Project of the Year at the European Gas Conference in Vienna. 

 

Infrastructure and market forces 

Every two years, GTS holds a new ‘Open Season’. This is a set period of time during which GTS 

asks its customers to notify it of their long-term need for transport capacity. This enables GTS to 

determine whether it needs to expand the national gas network. The past three Open Seasons 

revealed that the need for capacity was so great that GTS would need to lay new pipelines and 

installations to be able to keep serving the market. The outcome of Open Season 2017 (held in 

2012) was that customers’ requirements can be met on the basis of the existing infrastructure. 

However, it also transpired that demand for transport capacity for shorter periods is growing. It 

also emerged that there are opportunities for secondary trading in capacity.  

 

Multi-year replacement programme  

In order also to be able to continue to meet safety standards and guarantee transport availability in 

the future, in 2012, GTS started a multi-year replacement programme. This programme ensures a 

sustainable security of supply. It is based on an extensive study, which has precisely mapped out 
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which elements in the network need to be replaced and when. Most of the gas transport system 

has now reached an age at which systematic replacement and renewals are necessary. The 

programme focuses especially on the renewal of valve stations, gas receiving stations, and 

metering and regulating stations. The replacement programme will run for 15-20 years. 

 

Composition of gas in the future 

A topic that will require close attention in the near future is the composition of Dutch gas. Most 

Dutch gas traditionally comes from Groningen, with the result that it is more homogeneous than 

elsewhere in Europe. Equipment in the Netherlands is based on that narrow ‘bandwidth’. As 

production from the Groningen gas field shrinks, that bandwidth will need to be widened. It will be 

GTS’s task to ensure that the integrity and the security of the system remain unaffected. 
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Gasunie Deutschland 

 

Gasunie Deutschland is responsible for the management, operation and development of an 

extensive network of gas pipelines in northern Germany. 

 

Gas transport 

In 2012, Gasunie Deutschland transported 236 billion kWh (24.18 billion m3) gas. This is 

comparable to 2011 (239 billion kWh, 24.5 billion m3). From gas transport and related services, 

Gasunie Deutschland achieved a revenue in 2012 of €240 million. 

In 2012, the Transponder business model was successfully implemented. As a result, Gasunie 

Deutschland has become increasingly accountable for its financial results and has received more 

support. In this context, significant efforts were made to further increase the cost-efficiency of 

Gasunie Deutschland’s operations. 

 

Expanding the system 

Following improvements in the regulation for investments in Germany, whereby results are now 

more predictable, Gasunie Deutschland decided to invest in expanding its system in Germany in 

two ways. 

 

The first expansion project involves connecting Nord Stream and NEL to the Gasunie Deutschland 

network. Despite a serious delay in obtaining the necessary licencesand permits for NEL, we 

managed to put 25% of NEL’s capacity into use by temporarily integrating it into the transport 

systems of Ontras and Gasunie Deutschland. Gasunie Deutschland has arranged transport through 

NEL using a different TSO, Gasunie Ostseeanbindungsleitung (GOAL). GOAL received its licence to 

operate in time to enable it to offer its services on the market. In addition, a revenue cap and tariff 

regime were agreed with the German regulator.  

A second expansion project involves expanding cross-border capacity towards Denmark and 

Sweden. This project has now been incorporated into the German Netzentwicklungsplan 2012 

(NEP), which was approved by the German regulator in December 2012. This new capacity will be 

provided gradually to the market over the period 2014–2016. 

 

The German regulator, BNetzA, has not yet taken a final decision on the expected revenue cap for 

Gasunie Deutschland for the second regulatory period (2013– 2017).  Figures indicate that the 

activities of Gasunie Deutschland are highly efficient, providing a good basis for allowing the 

envisaged expansions of the system and a solid revenue. 

 

Day-ahead capacity pilot 

In the summer of 2012, in collaboration with Gasunie Transport Services (GTS), Gasunie 

Deutschland successfully carried out a pilot for booking cross-border day-ahead capacity between 

the Netherlands and Germany, in order to improve the connection between TTF and the Gaspool 

market area. The pilot was supported by the German internet-based capacity platform TRAC-X. 

During the implementation of the EU CAM network code, TRAC-X was legally converted into the 

PRISMA European Capacity Platform, with Gasunie Deutschland and GTS as founding members. 
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Certification 

The European Third Energy Package requires TSOs to be certified. The German regulator BNetzA 

has granted Gasunie Deutschland a TSO certification which is dependent on a positive certification 

of GTS by the Dutch regulator, NMa. The TSO certification for GOAL is expected soon and will also 

depend on a positive GTS certification. 

 

Cost-benefit analysis 

Together with the other German TSOs, Gasunie Deutschland carried out a cost-benefit analysis of 

further consolidation of the Gaspool and NCG market zones into a single German market. The 

analysis showed that such a merger would yield relatively few benefits, given the extra costs 

involved. The German regulator is currently discussing the analysis with market players and 

stakeholders. 

 

As Germany’s Energiewende proceeds, it has become clear that gas-fired power stations will play 

an extremely important role in ensuring the security of supply on the electricity market. In 

December 2012, German energy legislation was amended to ensure that the security of supply 

measures being taken by the gas and electricity industries are better aligned. In addition, the 

commercial principles of cost allocation were established so that customers can switch from L gas 

to H gas quality. This has become necessary, because less L gas is being produced in Germany.  

In 2012, Gasunie Deutschland also connected the biogas plant in Rosche (near Hamburg) to the 

transport system, making it easier for green gas to be added to the system. And finally, Gasunie 

Deutschland has been looking into the possibilities of injecting hydrogen from power-to-gas directly 

into the transport system for natural gas. 
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Participations & Business Development 
 

The aim of the business unit Participations & Business Development is to strengthen Gasunie’s 

position as a leading European gas infrastructure company and to help make possible the transition 

to a more sustainable use of energy. The unit does this by developing new and existing business 

activities, often with partners from the business environment or the financial world, and by acting 

as a shareholder in the companies in which Gasunie has a stake. 

 

Gasunie’s cross-border infrastructure in the Netherlands and Germany forms the backbone of the 

gas roundabout. Gas is brought to the roundabout through the incoming pipeline routes. It can 

then be traded on the Dutch trading point TTF and taken on to users through more than a 

thousand exit points. It can also be stored for later use in underground storage facilities, or be 

transported onward to other countries through exit routes. The system ensures that gas from all 

directions – not only from domestic sources but increasingly also from abroad (Norway, Russia) 

and by way of LNG – can be transported onwards. 

 

Participations & Business Development works at the frontline of Gasunie’s strategy in projects 

aimed at strengthening the position of Gasunie as a cross-border gas infrastructure company in 

Europe. By taking strategic positions in the European gas transport market, Gasunie also 

strengthens the gas roundabout and TTF as a dominant trading point. This is important for sound, 

transparent pricing and for the security of supply in this part of Europe. This, in turn, is in the 

interest of traders, suppliers and customers in the gas sector and of society as a whole. That is why 

Gasunie is working on new inflow and outflow routes for the roundabout, often in conjunction with 

business partners. Energy is no longer a matter limited to national boundaries; it has become an 

international affair. By taking up good positions in Europe, Gasunie is increasing its ability to exert 

influence on gas flows. This will enable the company to optimise its service offering by adding 

cross-border service concepts, for example. In this way, it will also be able to maximise the 

economic value of its networks in the Netherlands and Germany, making the best possible use of 

the capacity in those networks. Participations & Business Development is also working on new 

domains, particularly in the context of the transition to sustainable energy. 

 

Top sector policy 

The energy sector already has a strong position, and has the potential to grow even more. In the 

light of this, the Dutch government has designated it as a ‘top sector’. This means that it will be 

the focus of investments by the government, industry and academia. One of the core themes of 

this policy is natural gas, which is seen as an important field of innovation. With its knowledge and 

research, Gasunie contributes to innovations in relation to energy transition, such as power-to-gas, 

green gas and small-scale LNG.  

 

Nord Stream 

The Nord Stream project, in which Gasunie has a participation of 9%, was completed in 2012 

according to plan, on time and within budget. This was due to excellent project management within 

Nord Stream and to smooth cooperation between the various shareholders of Nord Stream. This 

project opens up a new corridor to the western European market, for one of the largest potential 
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suppliers of European natural gas. 

 

East-west link complete 

Gasunie now has a much stronger position in Germany. This is a very positive development, as the 

German gas market, together with the Dutch gas market, is of vital importance in Europe. Thanks 

to a number of assets, we now have an excellent position on the route from St. Petersburg to 

London. In 2012, the east-west link was firstcompleted in its entirety. The BBL, which transports 

gas to the UK, also forms part of this link. It is now able to accommodate gas trading against the 

physical flow – i.e., from the UK to the Netherlands. As a result, the BBL has become a substantial 

link between the two largest gas trading hubs in Europe, gaining in functionality and strength. 

 

LNG 

The LNG Gate terminal – in which Gasunie, with Vopak, is the majority shareholder – has 

functioned perfectly since it was opened in 2011. The economic return, based on long-term 

capacity contracts with the customers, is also good. Since the nuclear power-station disaster in 

Japan, more LNG has been transported to Asia. LNG’s rising price in Asia has weakened its position 

in Europe. The prospects, however, are encouraging. New projects in Australia will cover the 

shortage of LNG in Asia, and the US is fast becoming a gas-exporting nation. It is expected that 

considerably more LNG will start to come on to the world market in 2015, as a result of which the 

situation can be normalised.  

 

Green Deal 

The Gate terminal takes in LNG and delivers it as gas to the network. However,important 

opportunities are now arising for a user’s market in LNG in its liquid form, particularly in the 

transport sector. This sector is subject to increasingly stringent restrictions on pollution, as 

prescribed by the MARPOL (MARinePOLlution) treaty (an international treaty for preventing 

pollution by ships, drawn up by the International Maritime Organization). Appendix VI, which deals 

with air pollution, has been gradually tightened. As a result of an initial tightening of the treaty for 

the areas around the North Sea and the Baltic Sea, from 2015, LNG will become a suitable 

alternative solution for ships that are now still using fuel oil or diesel. By using LNG, ships will be 

able to considerably reduce their emissions of CO2, sulphur compounds and fine particulate matter. 

That is why, together with Vopak, we are developing facilities at the terminal that can process 

smaller quantities of LNG. A final decision will be taken in the first half of 2013, but preparations 

are already far advanced. Meanwhile, Shell has agreed to be launching customer, and talks are 

also ongoing with other customers. As part of the ‘Small-scale LNG’ Green Deal project (summer 

2012), plans are being made to create the necessary infrastructure (not only in Rotterdam but also 

further down-stream). This would enable, for example, the refuelling of vessels in the 

environmentally sensitive Wadden Sea area. 

 

Green gas 

Green gas (made from biomass) is an up-and-coming phenomenon that promises to become highly 

socially relevant. Obtained through fermentation, green gas can make a substantial contribution to 

improving the sustainability of the energy mix in the Netherlands. But there is still a long way to go 

before the target volumes are reached: there is as yet no stable market for biomass in the 
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Netherlands. However, green gas is expected to become much more important in the future. Soon, 

the gasification of biomass will make it possible to scale up operations further. We are currently 

developing the required technology for this, together with (amongst others) the Energy Research 

Centre in the Netherlands (ECN).  

 

Zuidwending 

Zuidwending, an underground storage facility for G gas near Groningen, was opened in January 

2011 and completed its first operational year in 2012. It can quickly take gas in or send it out as 

required (e.g., in peak hours). This helps to make the gas supply more flexible. Such flexibility is 

becoming increasingly important, because the production of weather-dependent renewables, such 

as wind and solar energy, is not well aligned with the demand for energy and can fluctuate 

considerably. As renewables come to form a larger share of the mix, more and more flexibility will 

be required. 

 

During the cold spell at the beginning of 2012, Gasunie Zuidwending offered its customers a special 

winter arrangement. This enabled them (within the existing flexibility contracts) to make 

temporary use of gas belonging to Gasunie Zuidwending along with the required storage space. 

 

Unbundling of gas and electricity exchange 

In 2012, intensive work was carried out on the unbundling of APX-ENDEX into two autonomous 

entities: one focusing on the electricity spot market and clearing services and the other on 

derivatives and the gas spot market. The latter entity focuses on the derivatives and spot trade 

around the successful virtual trading point TTF in the Netherlands, the UK’s On-the-day Commodity 

Market (OCM) and the Belgian gas trading point Zeebrugge (ZTP). On 26 March 2013, ICE, a 

leading operator of global regulated futures exchanges, clearing houses and over-the-counter 

markets, acquired a majority interest (79.12%). As current shareholder of APX-ENDEX, Gasunie 

retains the other 20.88%. The transaction ensures more liquidity and transparency on the 

continental European gas and electricity markets to the benefit of all market parties, including 

customers and consumers.  
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Corporate Social Responsibility in outline 
 
Safety 

In 2012, we monitored the activities of our contractors more closely. During the year, five cases of 

injury resulting in absence occurred among contractors, contract staff, temporary employees and 

interns in the Netherlands (2011: 7). The number of reportable cases of injury per million hours 

worked in 2012 was 2.5, remaining well below the signal value of < 5.0 (2011: 4.3). This is our 

best result since we started to register reportables in this way (as of 2006). The number of pipeline 

incidents through (mechanical) excavation works fell to 5 (from 7 in 2011), precisely within the set 

signal value for 2012.  

 
Good employment practices 

The average headcount (in FTEs) fell slightly from 1,698 in 2011 to 1,684 in 2012. The average 
age rose from 45.5 to 47.1. In 2012, three WIA3 assessments were requested on account of whole 

or partial disability for work (2011: 3). In 2012, the Competence Management project was 

completed. Its aim was to enable the organisation to make better use of employees’ knowledge 

and skills in order to help the company achieve its strategic goals. As a result, our recruitment and 

selection process has become more transparent and more efficient. 

 

Green gas 

In 2012, the number of parties registered with Vertogas (producers and traders) rose to 39. The 

certified volume of green gas rose from 146.5 million kWh (15 million m3) in 2011 to 254 million 

kWh (26 million m3) in 2012. As part of our footprint reduction policy, we started to undertake the 

‘greening’ of our fleet of cars in 2012.  

 

Stakeholder management 

In 2012, we continued to regularly engage with our stakeholders about our activities, consulting 

with people in the local community and with local governments on a variety of projects. The aim 

was to ensure that we cause as little inconvenience as possible to the local community, or to jointly 

find the best possible solution for embedding our infrastructure into the surrounding landscape. In 

2012, as part of its stakeholder management activities, GTS organised Industry Days and Shipper 

Meetings. In the annual customer satisfaction survey held by GTS, customers gave GTS a good 

score: 7.2 on a scale from 1 to 10.  

 

Environmental care 

Our total CO2-equivalent emissions in 2012 were slightly higher than in 2011. This was mainly 

caused by the cold spells at the beginning and end of 2012: more natural gas had to be 

compressed, as a result of which more carbon dioxide was released into the atmosphere. Our 

methane emissions in 2012 were down slightly compared to 2011. Although this cannot be 

ascribed to any one cause, a significant factor was that less gas was vented during our activities.  

 
  

                                                            
3 Dutch Work and Income (Ability to Work) Act	
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Responsible supply chain management and sustainability 

In 2012, the initial results of the Energy Delta Gas Research (EDGaR) became available. This 

research surveyed the options available, in the light of the strong Dutch position, for facilitating the 

creation of a sustainable energy future. We have also been investigating a number of innovations 

in the field of smart grids, small-scale LNG and CO2-neutral gas transport. 

 

Involvement in our local communities 

In 2012, we also supported various social initiatives through sponsoring and donations. We again 

took part in two national environmental events in the Netherlands, the Night of the Night-time and 

Sustainability Day.  
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Personnel & Organisation 
 

There is still a great demand for staff with technical skills. So far, the economic recession has 

tended to obscure this continuing scarcity, which in due course is likely to cause technically 

oriented companies in the Netherlands, such as Gasunie, considerable problems. Nonetheless, by 

continuously seeking contact with potential employees, we are investing in the future of our 

workforce. 

 

In 2011, we drew up our Efficiency Masterplan, a series of measures designed to reduce 

operational costs by 15% over the period 2012-2014. One of these measures was to reduce the 

number of jobs in the Netherlands by about 90. By the end of 2012, we had discontinued 50 jobs, 

without redundancies (either through natural attrition or by relocation within the company). In 

2013 and 2014, we expect to be able to resolve any overstaffing in the same way. 

 

Pensions 

At the end of 2012, we terminated the pension execution agreement we had with the Gasunie 

pension fund, StichtingPensioenfonds Gasunie. This agreement contained an obligation to make an 

additional payment. It has now been agreed that the old agreement will be replaced by a new 

pension execution agreement that does not contain such an obligation. 

 

Rather than wait for national developments in this field, we have reached a collective labour 

agreement with the unions in which all sides have agreed to work towards a career-average 

pension scheme for inclusion in the next collective labour agreement. This opens the way to a 

dialogue about a new form of financing, whereby risk is transferred from the employer to 

employees and retirees themselves.  

 

Development of the organisation 

In 2012, we also made substantial advances in improving our organisational structure. 

Implementation of the Transponder programme has led to the creation of a number of new 

departments and the merger of others. Others again have been given new or different tasks. 

Formally, the new structure came into force at the end of 2011. We used the year 2012 to adjust 

our ways of working, our processes and procedures. Managers and their teams devoted a great 

deal of energy to defining the implications of Gasunie’s strategy for their departments. They 

formulated tasks and responsibilities, reviewed products and customer relationships, and gave 

special attention to creating the desired culture and encouraging mutual cooperation. 

 

All units and departments wrote an ‘O’ chapter for Gasunie’s business plan, describing how their 

unit would put the new structure into practice, and especially focusing on embedding the ideas 

underlying Transponder and the Gasunie Way of Working. 

 

Storyboarding 

In the area of process optimisation, we have made good progress in making greater use of the 

concept of ‘storyboarding’. This is an approach to cross-departmental business processes in which 

staff from various departments work together on projects to expose inefficiencies in their working 
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processes, and then jointly design more efficient solutions. Storyboarding is not only about 

improving the technology and logistics of a process: importantly, it also deals with aspects of 

culture and cooperation. 

 

Leadership 

At corporate level, our main investment in leadership within Gasunie has been in strengthening the 

philosophy of Transponder and the desired Gasunie culture. To this end, during the year, we 

launched the Gasunie Leadership Programme for the Top 65, and for other senior managers, we 

ran the Gasunie 2012 programme, which was not only designed to develop leadership but also to 

ensure alignment with Gasunie’s strategy. 
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Risk Management 
 

Internal risk management and audit systems 

Our company’s activities are subject to a variety of risks. These result from changes both within 

the company and outside it. We are committed to managing these risks appropriately, and risk 

management therefore forms an integral part of all our company’s processes and activities. 

 

To help us manage our risks, we use a transparent internal risk management and audit system. 

This is designed to provide a reasonable degree of certainty that we are monitoring our 

performance in meeting our operating targets, that the risks attached to our company processes 

and business activities are being properly managed, that our financial accounting is reliable, and 

that we are fully compliant with applicable laws and regulations. As a reference framework for 

planning and evaluating our internal risk management and audit system, we use the Enterprise 

Risk Management model of COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 

Commission).  

 

The measures we take to manage risks are combined in our Risk Management Framework. This 

framework is designed so that risks can be managed both top-down and bottom-up. This is done at 

unit level by means of strategic risk analyses, while at operational level and in the case of projects, 

operational risk analyses and project risk analyses are used. The framework is based on the Three 

Lines of Defence model. Management forms the first line of defence, being responsible for 

controlling its own processes and operational risks, supported by business control. The second line 

of defence is formed by corporate staff departments, who support and monitor the internal risk 

management and control system based onan integrated approach. Finally, the third line of defence 

is the internal audit. 

 

All universally applicable standards are defined in a document entitled Minimum Requirements for 

Management Control. This is a standardised framework for all Gasunie business units. Within the 

framework of the risk management and audit system, managers of departments and subsidiaries 

are responsible for organising and implementing the system within their own part of the 

organisation. Each year, in a Document of Representation, managers give account to the Executive 

Board of how the internal risk management and audit system is working within their unit.  

 

All Gasunie staff are subject to our Code of Conduct. All key processes are covered by process 

descriptions, including the necessary instructions and guidelines. These are regularly updated. In 

the context of the annual accounts, external auditors periodically evaluate the main elements of 

the organisation, including the working of the administrative system and internal audit measures. 

They report their findings to the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board. Once a year, the 

Executive Board discusses the organisation and operation of the entire risk management and audit 

system with the Audit Committee. 
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Risks specific to Gasunie 
 

Strategic risk analysis 

A strategic risk analysis is performed annually. The Executive Board discusses the risks that could 

prevent us from attaining our strategic goals. Both the strategic goals and the risks are discussed 

by the Audit Committee and the Supervisory Board, and are incorporated into the business plans of 

the various business units. Based on the policy plans, audits are then carried out, and adjustments 

are made where necessary. This cycle is part of the risk management and audit system. Identified 

risks are reduced to acceptable limits, in line with Gasunie’s risk profile. 

 

Risks are classified as strategic, operational or commercial. In the case of each risk, we establish 

its impact, ascertain what measures can be taken to avoid it, assess how likely it is that the risk 

will become reality, and finally determine the current status of each risk. The main risks faced by 

Gasunie specifically are described below. 

 

Regulatory risks 

Our business operations are significantly affected by the liberalisation of the European gas market, 

and the resulting EU directives and changes to national legislation. EU regulations are directly 

applicable in the member states, and their governments have appointed regulators (specifically, 

NMa in the Netherlands and BNetzA in Germany) to monitor compliance with relevant laws and 

regulations. This applies to all regulated sections of the gas market, including gas transport. 

 

Gasunie faces substantial risks in relation to the tariffs that can be charged for gas transport and 

related services. Both in the Netherlands and in Germany, there is a risk that, if tariffs are set too 

low, ROI will become unacceptably low, putting pressure on our results and leading to a less 

attractive investment climate. This could be disadvantageous not only for the shareholder, but also 

for all other players in the gas market, including, eventually, consumers. This could also mean that 

we would not be able to implement our strategy effectively. Investing in gas infrastructure is an 

activity for the long term, and it is therefore vital for Gasunie that it can operate within a 

transparent regulatory framework and in a stable investment climate. For this reason, the 

Executive Board places a high priority on reducing this risk, and it explains why we systematically 

make every effort to remain in close contact and dialogue with the regulators and decision-makers 

in this regard. 

 

European regulation is continually changing. Recent examples of this are the introduction of the 

Third Energy Package and the collaborative groups ENTSOG (European Network of Transmission 

System Operators for Gas) and ACER (Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators). It is 

essential that we follow these developments very closely, so that we can at all times react 

appropriately. We do this by, amongst other things, participating intensively in relevant networks, 

and by actively taking part in ENTSOG activities. Significantly, the managing director of GTS, Annie 

Krist, was appointed to the Management Board of ENTSOG on 13 December 2012. 
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Strategy and market developments 

The gas and gas infrastructure markets are in a great state of flux. A number of prominent 

international players are currently trying to strengthen their position in gas transport in mainland 

Europe, and we are competing with them. The risk here for Gasunie is that it may find itself unable 

to react rapidly and effectively enough to the accelerating market integration in major EU member 

states, or to a possible consolidation of gas network companies. The formation of a few, very large 

TSOs may hinder our international expansion, as a result of which we may find ourselves unable to 

strengthen our position as a leading cross-border gas infrastructure company in Europe. We try to 

protect our competitive position by differentiating ourselves by offering superior service and 

innovative products, including in the field of sustainability. In addition, we are looking for 

opportunities to work together and join forces with other parties. To ensure that our strategy and 

the principles and assumptions underlying it are at all times in line with developments relating to 

sustainability, regulation, financing and market developments, we periodically evaluate them and 

where necessary update them.  

 

Operational risks 

Personal and external safety, health and environment are key aspects of our policy. We have set 

up a system which guides the relevant processes, monitors performance and identifies points for 

improvement. We currently manage a 15,000km underground pipeline network and countless 

installations across the Netherlands and northern Germany. Due to the expansion of the urban 

environment and the increase in building work in general, it is becoming increasingly difficult to 

ensure the safe positioning of all our pipelines and to carry out the necessary maintenance and 

repair work to the network. Continuous care is therefore vital to prevent damage to the gas 

transport network and to guard against the potential consequences of such damage. We have an 

extensive management system for maintaining the integrity of the transport network. This includes 

cathodic protection, pipelineroute control and pipeline monitoring. Our multi-year replacement 

programme focuses on renovating (where necessary) valve stations, gas receiving stations, and 

metering and regulating stations. Noise standards and integrity requirements are important criteria 

in this work. Technical security is assured through regular inspection and maintenance of the 

infrastructure. In addition to all technical guidelines, security guidelines and safety instructions, it 

is also important to maintain knowledge and expertise within the company, to keep the related 

core IT systems up to date and to ensure that the organisation is sufficiently flexible.  

 

Commercial risks 

It is essential for any commercially healthy organisation to maintain a strong focus on its 

customers and to make continuous efforts to improve contact with them. Moreover, to meet 

customers’ needs and wishes, the organisation also needs to make timely innovations. It is only by 

operating in this way that an organisation will be able to respond adequately to changes in the 

market.  

 

We participate in various partnerships with other market players, who include BBL, Gate terminal, 

Nord Stream, NEL and, for Gasunie Deutschland, the gas transport companies Deudan and Netra. 

Participating in these partnerships entails risks. We manage these risks by first defining in advance, 

as clearly as possible, the rights, obligations, responsibilities and authorisations of the parties 
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involved, and then carrying out frequent reporting. The principal risks involved in the construction 

of major infrastructures lie in the often complex procedures for obtaining the necessary permits. 

These can lead to the delay or even cancellation of a project. To implement our strategy, we have 

substantial borrowing requirements. However, in the current financial market, there is a risk that it 

will be impossible to arrange sufficient financing, or only at a high price. We therefore need to 

monitor our creditworthiness, and take a broad view of the money and capital markets when 

looking for ways of meeting our financial needs. Fortunately, our current position is such that we 

are able to attract sufficient capital on favourable terms. 

 

In Control Statement  

The Executive Board is aware that, no matter how professional our risk management systems may 

be, they cannot provide an absolute guarantee that we will achieve our business goals, or that the 

risk of material inaccuracies, loss, fraud and infringements of legislation and regulations will not 

occur. 

 

The Executive Board hereby states that, with regard to financial reporting risks, the internal risk 

management and audit systems offer a reasonable degree of certainty that the financial reporting 

does not contain any material inaccuracies, and that the risk management and audit systems 

functioned satisfactorily during the reporting year. 
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Summary of financial results 
 
Key figures 
In millions of euros 2012  2011 
    
Income 1,506  1,726 
Total expenses -/- 834  -/- 866 
    
Operating business result 672  860 
Impairments -  -/- 1,300 
    
Operating result 672  -/- 440 
Financial income and expenses -/- 202  -/- 159 
    
Result before taxation 470  -/- 599 
Taxation -/- 111  -/- 3 
    
Result after taxation 359  -/- 602 
    

 
Income 
Income was € 220 million less than in 2011, mainly due to the settlement (of approx. € 215 
million) relating to tariffs charged in the past on the basis of NMamethod decisions set for GTS at 
the end of 2011.  
 
Operating result 
The operating result fell by approx. € 188 million, mainly due to the settlement by GTS relating to 
tariffs charged in the past on the basis of the new NMa method decisions. The income decline 
mentioned above is set off by lower costs.  
 
Corrected figures 
In millions of euros 2012  2011 
    
Income 1,696  1,658 
Total expenses -/- 834  -/- 854 
    
Operating result 
 
Net profit 

862 
 

501 

 804 
 

502 
 
In the financial summary above, the operating result is corrected for the effects of the new method 
decisions on earnings (2012: approx. € 215 million and 2011: approx. € 68 million), a one-off 
compensation received by Gasunie Deutschland, and impairments. 
 

The corrected operating result for 2012 shows an increase of approx. € 58 million compared to 

2011. The income and operating result in 2012 were also affected by the results generated by Gate 

terminal B.V.’s LNG terminal, which went into operation on 1 September 2011, and therefore 

contributed to the results for a full year for the first time in 2012.Total operating expenses  



42 
	

(i.e., excluding depreciation and amortisation) fell by 9% compared to 2011.Total operating 

expensesincluding depreciation and amortisation fell by 2% compared to 2011. This was in part 

due to the results of the Efficiency Masterplan, which we started at the end of 2011 to reduce 

operational costs. In 2011, these expenses were also affected by a provision for clearing costs and 

redevelopment. 

 
 

 
Investments 

In 2012, we successfully concluded our expansion investments in the Heiligerleenitrogen buffer and 

Open Season 2012. In addition, we made normal investments for maintaining our gas 

infrastructure. For example, we invested significantly in accelerating our activities in the context of 

our multi-year replacement programme. 
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Expectations 
On the basis of current insights, the company expects income from normal business operations and 
result after taxation in 2013 to be at a level that is similar to 2012. It should be noted, however, 
that the settlement relating totariffs charged in the past on the basis of the NMa’s method 
decisionswill again affect results in 2013.  
 
Funding 
At year-end 2012, total interest-bearing debt amounted to € 5,209 million: an increase of € 436 
million compared to year-end 2011. This increase is a result of the two public bonds that were 
issued in the second half of 2012. At the beginning of July, a 10-year € 500 million bond with an 
interest coupon of 2.625% was issued.At the end of October, a 3-year € 500 million bond with an 
interest coupon of 0.875% was issued. Both bondswere issued under the existing Euro Medium 
Term Note (EMTN) programme. In 2012, this EMTN programme was increased by € 2.5 billion to  
€ 7.5 billion.  
 
The bonds were issued in order to reduce the refinancing risk resulting from the redemption peak 
in October 2013, when the 5-year bond of originally € 1.4 billion will be redeemed. In 2012, the 
market circumstances for issuing new bonds were very favourable for financially stable companies 
such as Gasunie.  
 
Part of the proceeds from the 10-year bond that was issued at the beginning of July, was used to 
purchase € 284 million of outstanding bonds that mature in 2013. Together with the proceeds from 
the 3-year bond that was issued at the end of October, the remaining proceeds of the 10-year 
bond will be used to redeem the remaining part of the aforementioned 5-year bond in October 
2013. By temporarily depositing these bond proceeds, the ‘cash and cash equivalents’ balance item 
increased by € 840 million to € 909 million at year-end 2012. In 2012, the net debt position 
(interest-bearing debt minus cash) decreased by € 404 million to €4,300 million at year-end.  
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In December 2012, a credit facility of € 150 million was signed with the European Investment 
Bank, which can be increased to € 250 million. Under this facility, Gasunie can issue long-term 
loans. In 2012, Gasunie did not issue any loans under this facility.  
 
The above-mentioned funding activities are in line with the treasury policy aimed at maintaining 
Gasunie’s liquidity position at an adequate level. Besides the EMTN programme and the loan facility 
set up at the end of 2012 with the European Investment Bank, Gasunie has a Euro Commercial 
Paper (ECP) programme and a total of € 910 million in committed credit facilities at its disposal. 
Under the ECP programme, up to € 750 million in short-term debt can be raised. Of the committed 
credit facilities, the 5-year € 800 million stand-by credit facility that was concluded in October 2010 
is the most important. During 2012, neither the ECP programme, nor the stand-by credit facility 
was used. 
 
Credit ratings 
In 2012, the rating agencies Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s did not adjust Gasunie’s long-term 
credit rating. Gasunie has an AA- long-term credit rating with a negative outlook from Standard & 
Poor’s and A2 with a stable outlook from Moody’s. 
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Report of the Supervisory Board 
 

Introduction 

Although Gasunie is not listed on the stock exchange, it follows – in line with the wishes of the 

shareholder – the principles and best practices of the Dutch Corporate Governance Code. 

 

Strategy 

In 2012, the Executive Board continued to work out the details of the company strategy, which was 

subsequently approved by the Supervisory Board. Gasunie’s strategic goals are the following: 

 To optimise the value of its existing infrastructure through operational excellence, 

improvement of its operational efficiency, and increased use of its existing assets. In 2012, 

the first measures were taken to increase efficiency, by implementing the Efficiency 

Masterplan, a programme aimed at achieving both structural and cultural change. 

 To identify and followup on new opportunities for expanding the gas roundabout concept, 

with a view to enabling Gasunie to maintain its leading position, and to use this position in 

the converging EU gas market, not least in the interest of maintaining security of supply in 

the Netherlands. 

 To move towards the more sustainable use of energy, and to make gas more sustainable 

as an energy carrier. Gas will play a key role in the transition to sustainable energy sources 

and will also continue to play an important role in a sustainable society. Gasunie actively 

participates in various research projects, with the aim of ensuring that the gas 

infrastructure that has been so carefully built up will be an integral part of the energy 

infrastructure of the future. 

 

In addition to pursuing the above strategic goals, the company is continuously managing strategic, 

operational and commercial risks, while developing further a strategic risk analysis.  

 

To guarantee the correct execution of the above strategy, both collective and individual targets 

have been set within the applicable remuneration policy. These targets will be used to determine 

the variable part of salaries. 

 

Business operations 

Health, Safety and Environment 

On the basis of the results realised, the Supervisory Board can state that security of supply in 2012 

was at a high level, with fewer pipeline incidents occurring than in 2011. 

 

The Executive Board and all Gasunie employees deserve praise for the company’s excellent safety 

performance in 2012, with fewer incidents being reported than in 2011. 
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Financial performance 

The Supervisory Board expresses its admiration for the Executive Board’s efforts to further improve 

business performance. Net profit is developing well, despite the fact that it is lower than it could 

have been, due to the repayment obligation imposed by the NMa. Revenue remains high, while 

costs have been reduced. The Supervisory Board is very pleased that Gasunie is in a position to 

pay a considerable dividend to the State for 2012. 

 

In 2012, a number of steps were taken to increase efficiency. In particular, the Efficiency 

Masterplan was introduced. This is designed to deliver a substantial, structural improvement in the 

cost structure. Already before the end of the year, the Masterplan had resulted in the desired 

reduction in costs. 

 

In 2012, the Dutch Industrial Appeals Tribunal CBb rejected the appeals against the NMa’smethod 

decisions, ending a period of regulatory uncertainty for the company. Meanwhile, preparations for 

the next regulatory period are in progress. 

 

Gasunie’s financial position, as reflected in its credit rating, remains good, indicating that the 

financial world recognises that Gasunie is a sound company.  

 

European strategy 

The development of the gas infrastructure in the Netherlands is nearly at an end. In the coming 

decades, the Netherlands will shift from being a gas exporting country to a gas importing and a gas 

transporting country. Europe – and not its individual countries – will be its field of work in the near 

future. The company’s European strategy is essential in maintaining and growing the value of 

Gasunie. It is also fully in line with the desired European integration of gas infrastructure networks. 

With its cross-border network, Gasunie is in an excellent position to become an important player at 

European level. The company naturally wishes to use this advantage to make a contribution to the 

Dutch economy, not only now but also in the longer term. Attracting transit flows optimises the 

ROI of the Gasunie network, while also underpinning security of supply and the efficient functioning 

of the market. Gasunie’s current infrastructure in the Netherlands and Germany combined with the 

company’s participation in the Nord Stream pipeline and the BBL together form a direct east-west 

connection. Gasunie’s strategy will be an important factor in enabling the Netherlands to remain an 

important gas country in the future.Other significant steps taken by Gasunie in 2012 include the 

completion of the second Nord Stream pipeline and the nitrogen buffer at Heiligerlee. 

 

Making energy more sustainable 

Gas is playing a prominent role in the transition to making energy supply more sustainable. In fact, 

it is indispensable in supplementing solar and wind energy. Small-scale LNG is also expected to 

play an important part in the transition to more sustainable energy. In light of this, in 2012, 

Gasunie signed a letter of intent with Vopak for the development of an LNG Break Bulk terminal. 

Small-scale LNG is seen as a future alternative to diesel in road transport and in shipping.  
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The Supervisory Board warmly endorses the initiatives taken by the Executive Board in the field of 

corporate social responsibility (CSR). Our CSR activities are reported on annually in a separate 

report. The Board particularly approves of the steps Gasunie has taken with respect to: 

 Making energy supplies more sustainable in the future, through its active participation in 

research projects relating to green gas and power-to-gas 

 Reducing the company’s own footprint, for example by reducing direct emissions and 

increasing energy efficiency  

 Creating awareness among Gasunie employees by including CSR goals in the criteria for 

variable remuneration. 

 

Inquiry into the takeover of the BEB network 

The Dutch Minister of Finance commissioned an independent inquiry into Gasunie’s takeover of the 

German BEB network in 2007. The inquiry was made due to the impairments that Gasunie had to 

take in the years following the acquisition, because of the German regulator setting tariffs at a 

much lower level than had been foreseen at the time of the acquisition. The inquiry’s findings were 

published in December 2012. Gasunie cooperated fully with this inquiry and supports its 

recommendations. Indeed, a large number of them had already been implemented based on the 

company’s own evaluation.  

 

The Supervisory Board expresses its deep regret that the impairments on the German network 

turned out to be necessary. Nonetheless, the Supervisory Board considers the BEB network to be 

of great strategic value, particularly because it contributes to greater liquidity and the more 

efficient functioning of the market, factors that also benefit consumers in the Netherlands. 

Moreover, investments in infrastructure are necessarily long-term, with the profits only 

materialising over the course of time. 

 

To facilitate an open discussion about the inquiry’s findings, three members of the Supervisory 

Board, in consultation with the shareholder and the Executive Board, have offered to resign from 

the Supervisory Board.  

 

Annual accounts 

The annual accounts for 2012 were drawn up by the Executive Board and audited by the external 

auditors, Ernst & Young Accountants LLP. The auditors’ opinion compiled by Ernst & Young 

Accountants LLP is included after Other information. 

 

The Supervisory Board has accepted these accounts and recommends that the General Meeting of 

Shareholders adopt the 2012 annual accounts. It also recommends that the General Meeting of 

Shareholders adopt the profit appropriation for 2012 proposed by the Executive Board. 

 

Finally, the Supervisory Board recommends that the General Meeting of Shareholders discharge the 

members of the Executive Board from liability for the policy implemented and the Supervisory 

Board for the supervision exercised. 
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Composition of the Supervisory Board and posts held 

On 1 May 2012, Mr C. Griffioen stepped down as a member of the Supervisory Board. Mr R. de 

Jong was appointed by the shareholder to the Board with effect from 16 May 2012. 

 

The Supervisory Board has three advisory committees: the Audit Committee, the Remuneration, 

Selection & Appointments (RSA) Committee and the Strategic Investments Committee. Each 

committee consists of three or four members of the Supervisory Boards. A summary of the 

principal employment and other commitments of the members of the Supervisory Board is given at 

the end of this annual report. The date of the Meeting of Shareholders at which the annual 

accounts of the previous financial year were adopted is taken as the date of retirement or 

reappointment. The current composition of the Supervisory Board is not in agreement with the 

balanced composition as mentioned in the Management and Supervision Act (Art. 2:166 of the 

Dutch Civil Code). When new members need to be appointed, attention will be paid to strictly 

complying with this provision. The profile of the position has been adjusted accordingly.  

 

In the judgement of the Supervisory Board, Gasunie has complied with best-practice provision 

III.2.1 of the Dutch Corporate Governance Code, which determines that all Supervisory Board 

members, with the exception of a maximum of one person, must be independent in the sense of 

best-practice provision III.2.2. Gasunie has also complied with best-practice provision III.6.3, 

which determines that transactions with conflicts of interest must be published in the Annual 

Report, mentioning the conflicting interest. For the sake of completeness, we note that no 

transactions with conflict of interest took place in 2012. 

 

Retirement schedule 

 

 

Name 

Date of first 

appointment 

End of 4-

year term 

Date of 

reappointment(s) 

G.J. van Luijk (1943) 1 Sept. 2005 2015 2007/2011 

H.L.J. Noy (1951) 1 July 2005 2016 2008/2012 

A. Lont (1958) 1 Sept. 2005 2013 2009 

J.P.H.J. Vermeire (1944) 1 Oct. 2007 2014 2010 

M.J. Poots-Bijl (1969) * 1 Sept. 2011 2013  

R. de Jong (1948) ** 16 May 2012 2014  

*   Ms M.J. Poots-Bijl replaces Mr M.H. van der Woude in accordance with the original retirement 

schedule. 

** Mr R. de Jong replaces Mr C. Griffioen in accordance with the original retirement schedule. 

 

NB: The order of retirement given in the schedule is based on the members’ dates of birth. Account 

is taken of the principles and best practices for the Supervisory Board, Article 3.3 (e): “None of its 

members may be appointed after the third period of office of four years, or after the twelfth year in 

office”.   
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Activities of the Supervisory Board 

In addition to meetings of the committees mentioned below, the Supervisory Board met seven 

times in 2012. At these meetings, the Board consulted closely with the Executive Board not only on 

the matters mentioned above but also on Gasunie’s strategic focus and its possible consequences 

for financial and corporate policy. The Board accepted the recommendations of its Remuneration, 

Selection & Appointments Committee regarding the variable remuneration and the targets for 2012 

for the members of the Executive Board. In addition, the Board looked into the matter of strategic 

alliances, and various infrastructure projects, such as the multi-year replacement programme. The 

Board’s own functioning was evaluated in 2012. 

 

Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee met three times in 2012, discussing amongst other things the 2012 quarterly 

reports, the 2012 semi-annual report, the auditor’s statement to the 2012 semi-annual accounts, 

the 2011 annual report and annual accounts, the 2013-2015 business plan, the 2013 funding plan, 

the audit results, the audit plan for 2013 and beyond, the appointment of the next auditor, the 

pension update, the 2011 Document of Representation and the 2012 strategic risk analysis. 

 

At the meetings of the Supervisory Board, the chairman of the Audit Committee accounted for the 

supervisory measures implemented by the Audit Committee with regard to the company’s financial 

activities. The audit plan, management letter and auditor’s statement to the annual accounts were 

discussed with the auditor. 

 

Remuneration, Selection & Appointments Committee 

The Remuneration, Selection & Appointments Committee met three times in 2012. The topics 

discussed by the Committee included the remuneration policy, the status of the pension plans, the 

employment contracts, the realisation of the targets for 2011, and determination of the targets of 

the members of the Executive Board for 2012. The Committee expressed its opinion on the 

composition of the Supervisory Board (including the appointment of a new member, in consultation 

with the Works Council), and also on succession planning regarding the Executive Board. 

 

In 2012, Mr H.A.T. Chin Sue stood down as a member of the Executive Board, and Mr R. Oudejans 

was appointed as a member of the Executive Board. 

 

Strategic Investments Committee 

The Strategic Investments Committee met five times in2012. The main task of this Committee is to 

facilitate an efficient corporate process for approving major investments. The Committee advises 

the full Supervisory Board on major investment proposals. The Committee expresses an opinion on 

the economic feasibility of the investment proposals and tests the proposals against strategic 

policy. The Committee discussed matters such as developments in the field of small-scale LNG, the 

2017 GTS Open Season and the various infrastructural and strategic projects in progress. 
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Name 

Supervisory 

Board 

Audit 

Committee 

Remuneration

, Selection & 

Appointments 

Committee 

Strategic 

Investments 

Committee 

C. Griffioen1 Vice-chairman 1 Chairman 1 Member 1  

A. Lont Member   Member 

R. de Jong Member 2 Member 3   

G.J. van Luijk Chairman  Chairman Member 

H.L.J. Noy Vice-chairman 4 Member 5 Member 6 Chairman 

M.J. Poots-Bijl Member Chairman 7 Member  

J.P.H.J. Vermeire Member Member  Member 
 

1Resigned as of 1 May 2012 
2 From 16 May 2012 
3 From 1 July 2012 
4 From 1 July 2012  
5 Until 1 July 2012  
6 From 1 July 2012  
7 From 1 May 2012  

 

Remuneration policy for the Executive Board 

The remuneration policy for the individual members of the Executive Board is described elsewhere 

in this Annual Report. 

 

Meetings with the Works Council 

A representative of the Supervisory Board attended consultations between the Executive Board and 

the Works Council on two occasions in 2012. 

 

Acknowledgements 

The Supervisory Board wishes to express its appreciation of the results achieved in 2012, and 

thanks the Executive Board, the rest of the management and all employees for their dedication and 

hard work. The Board wishes them every success in meeting the goals for 2013. 

 

On behalf of the Supervisory Board of 

N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie, 

 

G.J. van Luijk, Chairman 
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Corporate Governance 
 

The Dutch Corporate Governance Code is intended to contribute to a more efficient supervision of 

the Executive Board and a more balanced distribution of responsibilities between the Executive 

Board, the Supervisory Board and shareholders. In principle, it applies only to listed companies. 

The Code first took effect on 1 January 2004. The Corporate Governance Code Monitoring 

Committee has since revised it, the revised version taking effect on 1 January 2009. Gasunie 

complies with the Code, except for the points mentioned below. 

 

Statement on organisational structure 

Because Gasunie is a wholly owned state company, the revised two-tier board 

system(‘structuurregime’)applies to the company. 

 

Application of the Dutch Corporate Governance Code 

Not all the principles and best-practice provisions contained in the Code are applicable to Gasunie. 

However, most of those that are applicable are adhered to. In accordance with the Corporate 

Governance guidelines, the few that are not adhered to are detailed below.  

 
Executive Board 

II.2.12 The [remuneration] report shall be posted on the company’s website.  

 

Reason for departure from this best-practice provision: 

Transparent insight into the remuneration policy and its application in the year under review is 

given in the Annual Report. 

 
Supervisory Board 

III.5If the Supervisory Board consists of more than four members, the Board will appoint from its 

number an audit committee, a remuneration committee and a selection and appointments 

committee.  

 

Reason for departure from this principle: 

Because their tasks are closely related, the Remuneration Committee and the Selection and 

Appointments Committee are combined to form a single committee.  

 

III.5.11. The chairmanship of the remuneration committee shall not be held by the chairman of the 

Supervisory Board, or by a former director of the company, or by a member of the Supervisory 

Board who is a director of another listed company. 

 

Reason for departure from this best-practice provision: 

The Supervisory Board is of the opinion that its chairman should be closely involved in preparing 

the salary and remuneration policy, especially due to the current high profile of this policy. The 

Board has therefore decided not to separate chairmanship of the Board from that of the 

Remuneration, Selection and Appointments Committee. 
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The following documents are available on the updated website gasunie.nl: 

 Procedure governing the activities of the Executive Board 

 Procedure governing the activities of the Supervisory Board 

 Whistleblowers’ scheme 

 Code of Conduct 

 

For the sake of completeness, we confirm here that we adhere to best-practice provision II.3.4, 

which requires that transactions made by Supervisory Board members with conflicts of interest be 

mentioned in the Annual Report.  In 2012, no such transactions took place.  
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Remuneration policy for the Executive Board 
 

The remuneration policy was adopted by the General Meeting of Shareholders on 23 April 2010, as 

proposed by the Supervisory Board, with due account taken of the recommendation of the 

Remuneration, Selection and Appointments Committee. 

 

Context of the remuneration policy 

In just a few years, Gasunie has grown into an international gas infrastructure company with many 

international customers in a converging European market. The company is not only active in 

regulated markets, but also develops non-regulated activities, and creates value for its 

stakeholders. It creates value for the Dutch economy primarily through the development of a 

strong ‘hub’ function in a liquid market, through enabling the throughput of significant gas flows 

and competitive gas trading for the domestic gas market, through offering flexibility through its 

storage facilities, and through developing and maintaining the L-gas market.  

 

Since 1 January 2012, N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie has had a new senior management structure. 

This consists of an Executive Board and three business units, i.e., GTS, Gasunie Deutschland, and 

Participations & Business Development. In addition to these business units, there are Asset Service 

Providers (Operations and Projects) and a number of Corporate Service Providers. The company 

has a number of subsidiaries and joint ventures.  

 

The aims and principles underlying the remuneration policy 

The aim of the remuneration policy is to attract, motivate and retain Executive Board members of 

the right quality and experience, both from within the company and in the form of proven talent 

from the market. This management talent is necessary for Gasunie to achieve its essential strategic 

objectives. The implementation of this policy is based on the attainment of challenging objectives 

and the rewarding of those responsible, based on the following considerations: 

 The remuneration policy must reflect the balance between short- and long-term results, 

and between operational and strategic performance. 

 The company bases remuneration packages for members of the Executive Board on a 

market comparison, based on a relevant reference group in the labour market. 

 The level and structure of the remuneration of members of the Executive Board is 

determined on the basis of analyses that also take into account the remuneration ratios 

within the company. 

 In principle, having the State as a 100% shareholder, Gasunie applies the same principles 

that are applied to the remuneration policy in state-owned companies. If the Supervisory 

Board feels that this may lead to unacceptable risks for the company, it will consult with 

the shareholder.   
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Remuneration structure 

The remuneration consists of the following elements: 

 A fixed component (basic annual salary) 

 A variable component, dependent on the attainment of both short- and long-term goals 

 The employer’s contribution to the pension premium 

 Other secondary employment conditions. 

 

Basic annual salary 

When determining the basic annual salary for members of the Executive Board (the fixed 

component),the Supervisory Board bases its decision on the results of a market comparison with a 

labour market reference group chosen for this purpose. The Supervisory Board has verified that the 

external consultant who carried out this market comparison in 2009 is independent of the members 

of the Executive Board. 

 

At the request of the shareholder, the Supervisory Board will limit the sum of the fixed and variable 

salary on appointment to a maximum of €350,000. The Supervisory Board decides on annual 

salary increments. If the maximum salary has been reached, further growth is limited to the 

structural increments laid down in the collective labour agreement. 

 

Variable remuneration 

The variable remuneration is based on the remuneration policy that has been approved by the 

shareholder. The maximum variable remuneration is 35% of the basic annual salary. The targets 

that must be attained in order to qualify for these bonuses are agreed annually. These targets will, 

where possible, be both measurable and ambitious. The Supervisory Board is authorised to adjust 

the variable component within the limits mentioned below if it is likely to lead to unfair outcomes 

due to exceptional circumstances during the performance period. The Supervisory Board is also 

authorised to reclaim from members of the Executive Board a variable bonus that was awarded on 

the basis of inaccurate data (financial or otherwise).   

 

Progress in attaining the targets will be measured after the end of the year concerned, initially by 

the Remuneration, Selection and Appointments Committee and then by the full Supervisory Board.  

 

The Supervisory Board has chosen performance criteria that relate to the implementation of 

Gasunie’s strategic goals, both short- and long-term. For each pillar of the strategy, one or more 

performance criteria have been developed. The three strategic pillars of Gasunie and the associated 

performance criteria are as follows:  

1. To optimise the value of our existing assets (Financial targets and Asset Utilisation Rate) 

2. To strengthen our leading position as a cross-border gas infrastructure company in Europe 

(Economic Value Added) 

3. To enable the transition towards more sustainable energy usage (Corporate Social 

Responsibility) 
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In defining the company’s strategy, account is explicitly taken of the social impact of Gasunie’s 

activities and their effects on the environment and society. Criteria have therefore also been 

defined to assess performance in this area.  

 

Given the nature of the variable remuneration elements, the possibility of carrying out a scenario 

analysis (as mentioned in the Corporate Governance Code) is not relevant. 

 

Variable short-term remuneration 

The purpose of the variable short-term remuneration is to reward the attainment of the agreed 

challenging targets in a number of primarily operational key areas. These operational targets apply 

to all Gasunie staff; attainment of some of these targets (i.e., the collective Gasunie targets) will 

also reward other employee groups. 

 

The criteria for awarding the variable remuneration relate mainly to the implementation of the 

strategy. The strategy has been approved by the Supervisory Board and tested against Gasunie’s 

public interest. This is reflected in, for example, challenging, quantified targets relating to safety, 

security of supply and cost-efficiency.  

 

At the request of the shareholder, thevariable component is subject to an upper limit of 25% of the 

individual’s basic annual salary. A long-term bonus of up to 10% may also be awarded (see below).  

 

The breakdown of this 25% is as follows: 

 

Collective group targets (10%):  

 Financial 

o Result before tax 

o Operating costs 

4 % 

 Operational 

o Improving employee safety for in-house and contract staff at Gasunie 

locations and on projects 

o Security of supply – ensuring an uninterrupted gas supply, 24 hours a 

day, 365 days a year 

4 % 

 Corporate Social Responsibility 

o Reducing the average number of kilometres driven 

o Reducing paper consumption (to year-end 2012) 

2% 
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Individual targets (15%): 

 

 Targets relating to the individual Executive Board member’s area of 

responsibility 

 

10% 

 Overall assessment of the contribution made by the individual Executive Board 

member (to be determined by the Supervisory Board) 

 

5% 

 

Variable long-term remuneration 

Gasunie also pays its Executive Board members a variable bonus, linked to the creation of value 

over the long term. With effect from 2012, the variable long-term bonus will have three 

components.  The first is the Operational Cost Index for the TSOs, which reflects the ratio of 

operating costs to the asset base for which the costs are incurred. The second component is the 

Asset Utilisation Rate, also for the TSOs; this component indicates the extent to which the assets 

are actually used (the commercial utilisation level). The third component is EVA™ (Economic Value 

Added), which also existed prior to 2012. This performance is measured over a period of three 

years and is dependent on the development of the EVA (EVA = (ROIC – WACC) × Invested Capital) 

for the non-TSO parts of the company. If the three components are realised in full, the variable 

salary amounts to 4%, 3% and 3% of the basic annual salary respectively. 

 

Procedure 

The targets for eligibility for variable remuneration are agreed at the start of the relevant year 

between the Supervisory Board and the members of the Executive Board, once the chairman of the 

Executive Board has discussed the proposal to this effect with the Remuneration, Selection and 

Appointments Committee. 

 

Variable bonuses are paid following approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders of the annual 

accounts for the year for which the targets were set. 

 

Pension provisions 

Gasunie offers its Executive Board members a career-average pension scheme. The retirement age 

currently provided for is 65. Any statutory changes to the retirement age will be taken into 

account. If a member of the Executive Board stands down before reaching retirement age but 

continues to be employed by Gasunie, agreements will be made about that individual’s pension 

provisions up to retirement age. 

 

Other secondary employment conditions 

Gasunie has put together a package of secondary employment conditions for its Executive Board 

members which also apply to other staff. 
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Other conditions 

 Term of office 

Members of the Executive Board are appointed for a period of four years, with a possibility 

of reappointment for a further four years. Members stand down on reaching the age of 62. 

 Notice period 

For members of the Executive Board a notice period of two months applies. For other 

Gasunie employees, a notice period of four months must be observed. 

 Compensation for dismissal 

Compensation for dismissal for Executive Board members will be limited to a maximum of 

one year’s basic salary, in accordance with the Corporate Governance Code, except where 

such a limitation is clearly unreasonable.  

 Change in control 

Executive Board members are covered by a ‘change in control’ clause, which states that if 

they are forced to leave the company due to a merger or the acquisition of the company by 

an external party, or in the event of a fundamental change in the nature, management or 

structure of the company that is beyond the control of the Executive Board, they will be 

awarded compensation up to a maximum of one year’s basic salary, regardless of which 

party terminates the employment contract.  

 Balanced composition 

The current composition of the Board is not in compliance with a balanced composition as 

mentioned in the Management and Supervision Act (art. 2:166 BW). When new members 

need to be appointed, attention will be specifically paid to conforming to this provision. 

 

Remuneration package for 2012 

Based on the policy outlined above, the Supervisory Board agreed the following basic annual 

salaries and variable bonuses for members of the Executive Board active on 31 December 2012: 

 

In euros Basic annual salary 2012 Variable bonus (for performance 

2012) 

 

P.C. van Gelder, Chairman  268,783 80,638 

I.M. Oudejans 247,321 17,314 

G.H. Graaf 233,585 65,407 

 

See note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the allocation of other remuneration 

package components in 2012.  

 

Composition of the Executive Board 

Mr Chin Sue retired from the Executive Board on 1 July 2012. He will continue in the employment 

of Gasunie, performing various duties, until 1 July 2013.  

Mr Oudejans was appointed as CFO on 1 October 2012. 
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Statement by the Executive Board 
 
(as defined in Section 5:25c, 2 (c) Financial Supervision Act) 
 
The Executive Board hereby declares, to the best of its knowledge, that: 

1. the annual accounts give a fair representation of the assets, liabilities, financial position 
and result of N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie and of the legal entities included in the 
consolidation, and 

 
2. the annual report gives a fair representation of the situation on the balance sheet date, the 

status of the company during the financial year, and those of its affiliates whose accounts 
are included here, and that the annual report accurately describes the actual risks with 
which the company is faced. 

 
 
 
P.C. van Gelder, Chairman 
I.M. Oudejans 
G.H. Graaf 
 
 
Groningen, 3 April 2013 
  



59 
	

Members of Boards and Works Councils 
As at 31 December 2012  

 

Supervisory Board  

G.J. van Luijk, Chairman 

R. de Jong 

A. Lont     

H.L.J. Noy 

M.J. Poots-Bijl 

J.P.H.J. Vermeire 

 

Executive Board  

P.C. van Gelder, Chairman and CEO  

I.M. Oudejans, CFO 

G.H. Graaf, COO 

 

Directors, also members of the Management Board 

A.J. Krist, Managing Director, Gasunie Transport Services B.V. 

C.S. Pisuisse, Director, Legal, Regulation and Public Affairs 

J. Schumann, Managing Director, Gasunie Deutschland GmbH & Co. KG 

U. Vermeulen, Managing Director, Participations & Business Development 

 

Works Council, Gasunie the Netherlands 

D.J. Scholing (Chairman) 

P.A. Altena 

R.J.M. Beij 

P.J. Berben 

J.D. Bos 

J.H.J. Curfs 

A.M. Dam 

H.D. Koers 

S.J. de Moel 

H. Pastoor 

F. Post 

P. Potjewijd 

M.J.W. Schoonheijm 

G.A.J. Stallenberg 

T. Wouda 
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Works Councils, Gasunie Deutschland  

Hannover/Steimbke 

D. Pröve (Chairman) 

T. Holeczy (Deputy Chairman) 

J. Bode 

S. Böker 

K. Fischer 

S. Fuest 

S. Hermenau 

 

Schneiderkrug 

U. Neitz (Chairman) 

R. Hollwedel 

J. Lohmüller 

S. Lüttel 

H. Stengel 
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Principal employment and other commitments of members of the 
Supervisory Board of N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie 
As at 31 December 2012  

 

 

The members of the Supervisory Board all have Dutch nationality, except Mr Vermeire, who has 

Belgian nationality. 

 

R. de Jong (as of 16 May 2012) 

Principal employment: 

None 

Previous position: 

Member of the Executive Board and CFO, Essent NV (until 1 May 2010) 

Other commitments: 

Board member, Stichting Aandelenbeheer BAM Groep 

Board member, Stichting tot het houden van Preferente- en Prioriteitsaandelen B Wereldhave 

Member of the Supervisory Board, Waarborgfondsvoor de Zorgsector 

Member of the Supervisory Board, USG People NV 

Member of the Supervisory Board, Enexis Holding NV 

Chair, Supervisory Board, EAH Holding BV 

Chair, Supervisory Board, Bakeplus Holding BV 

 

A. Lont 

Principal employment: 

CEO, Statnett SF 

Other commitment:  

Chair, Supervisory Board, Institutt for Energiteknikk, Kjeller, Norway 

  

G.J. van Luijk   

Principal employment: 

None 

Previous position: 

Chair, Executive Board, TU Delft 

Other commitments: 

Member, Advisory Board, Energy Delta Gas Research (EDGaR) 

Member, Advisory Board, Institute for Sustainable Process Technology (ISPT) 

 



62 
	

H.L.J. Noy 

Principal employment: 

None 

Previous position: Chair, Executive Board and CEO, ARCADIS NV (until 16 May 2012) 

Other commitments: 

Chair, Executive Board, Hogeschool Arnhem and Nijmegen (HAN) (until 31 December 2012) 

Board member, Stichting Administratiekantoor TKH Group 

Board member, Stichting Administratiekantoor ING Groep 

Board member, Vereniging Effecten Uitgevende Ondernemingen (VEUO) 

Member of the Supervisory Board, Fugro N.V. 

Member of the Supervisory Board, Koninklijke BAM Groep N.V. 

Extraordinary board member, Onderzoeksraad voor Veiligheid 

 

M.J. Poots-Bijl 

Principal employment: 

Member of the Executive Board and CFO, KoninklijkeVolkerWessels NV  

Other commitments: 

Member of the Board of Management, Bouwend Nederland 

Member of the Curatorium RC Training Programme, Erasmus Universiteit 

 

J.P.H.J. Vermeire   

Principal employment: 

Managing Partner, J.V. Consult BVBA 

Previous position: 

Chair, Supervisory Board, Distrigas (until 1 March 2012) 

Other commitments: 

Honorary President, International Group of LNG Importers (GIIGNL) 

Senior Fellow,Energy Delta Institute 
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List of abbreviations 
 

ACER  Agency for the Cooperation of Energy Regulators 

APX ENDEX Amsterdam Power Exchange European Energy Derivatives Exchange 

BBL  Balgzand-Bacton Line 

BNetzA  BundesNetzAgentuur 

CBb  College van Beroep voor het bedrijfsleven (Dutch Industrial Appeals Tribunal) 

CFO  Chief Financial Officer 

COSO  Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission 

CSR  Corporate Social Responsibility 

ECN  Energy Research Centre the Netherlands 

ECP  Euro Commercial Paper 

EDGaR  Energy Delta Gas Research 

EMTN  Euro Medium Term Note 

ENTSOG European Network of Transmission System Operators for Gas 

ETS  Emissions Trading System 

EU  European Union 

EVA  Economic Value Added 

FTE  Full Time Equivalent 

G gas  Groningen gas 

GOAL  Gasunie Ostseeanbindungsleitung 

GTS  Gasunie Transport Services 

H gas  High-calorific gas 

HSE  Health, Safety and Environment 

ICE  IntercontinentalExchange 

IEA  International Energy Agency 

IMO  International Maritime Organization 

LNG  Liquefied Natural Gas 

MARPOL MARinePOLlution 

NBP  National Balancing Point 

NC CAM Network code for Capacity Allocation Mechanisms 

NCG  NetConnect Germany 

NEL  Nordeuropäische Erdgasleitung 

NEP  Netzentwicklungsplan 

NMa  NederlandseMededingingsautoriteit (DutchCompetition Authority) 

NTA  Nederlandse Technische Afspraak (Dutch Technical Agreement) 

NV  NaamlozeVennootschap(Public Limited Company) 

OCM  On-the-day Commodity Market 

OTC  Over-the-counter 

ROI  Return on Investment 

ROIC  Return on Invested Capital 
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TSO  Transmission System Operator 

TTF  Title Transfer Facility 

WACC  Weighted Average Cost of Capital 

WIA  Werk en InkomennaarArbeidsvermogen (Work and Income [Ability to work] Act) 

ZTP  Zeebrugge Trading Point 
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Consolidated Financial Statements 



66 
	

Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December  
(before profit appropriation) 
 
In millions of euros Notes 2012  2011 
     
Assets 
 
Fixed assets 

- tangible fixed assets 
- intangible fixed assets 
- investments in associates 
- other equity interests 
- deferred tax assets 

 
 
 

3 
4 
5 
6 
8 

 
 
 

8,925.9 
5.8 

128.6 
403.9 
479.9 

  
 
 

8,694.1 
7.7 

129.2 
252.6 
546.2 

     

Total fixed assets  9,944.1  9,629.8 

     
Current assets 

- stocks 
- trade and other receivables 
- cash and cash equivalents 
 

 
9 

10 
11 

 
37.0 

182.9 
909.1 

 

  
33.2 

377.8 
68.5 

 

Total current assets  1,129.0  479.5 
     

Total assets 
 

 11,073.1  10,109.3 
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In millions of euros Notes 2012  2011 
     
Equity and liabilities 
 
Total shareholder’s equity 

 
 

12+13 

 
 

4,856.5 

  
 

4,437.3 
     
Long-term liabilities 

- interest-bearing loans 
- deferred tax liabilities 
- employee benefits 
- provisions 
- other long-term liabilities 

 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 

 
4,059.1 

192.5 
250.7 

98.0 
89.5 

  
4,454.6 

200.3 
166.2 
99.0 
66.1 

     

Total long-term liabilities  4,689.8  4,986.2 
     
Current liabilities 

- current financing liabilities 
- trade and other payables 

 
19 
20 

 
1,149.8 

377.0 

  
318.6 
367.2 

     

Total current liabilities  1,526.8  685.8 
     

Total equity and liabilities 
 

 11,073.1  10,109.3 
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Consolidated profit and loss account 
 
In millions of euros Notes  2012   2011 
       
Continuing operations 
 
Gross income 
Repayment of tariff settlement 
 

 
 

20 

 
 

1,720.9 
(214.8) 

   
 

1,725.8 
- 

 

Net income   1,506.1   1,725.8 
 
Capitalised expenditure 
Staff costs 
Other operating expenses 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Goodwill impairments 
Gas transport network impairments 
 

 
 

23 
24 

3+4 
1 
1 
 

 
88.6 

(188.7) 
(464.6) 
(269.3) 

- 
- 

   
104.2 

(180.3) 
(541.3) 
(248.0) 
(679.4) 
(620.6) 

 
 
 
 

Total expenses 
 

  (834.0)   (2,165.4) 

Operating result   672.1   (439.6) 
       
Finance revenue 
Finance costs 
Share in result of associates 
 

25 
26 
5 

 2.1 
(227.8) 

23.8 
 

  8.1 
(190.3) 

22.7 
 

Result before taxation 
 

  470.2   (599.1) 

Taxes 
 

27  (111.5)   (2.9) 

Result after taxation   358.7   (602.0) 
       
Discontinued operations 
 
Result on discontinued operations after 
taxation 
 

   
 
 

- 

   
 
 

- 

Result for the year 
 

  358.7   (602.0) 

Result attributable to shareholder   358.7   (602.0) 
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 
 
In millions of euros Notes Cash flow 

hedge 
reserve 

Fair 
value 

reserve 

Other 
reserves 

Unappro-
priated 

result 

Total 

       
2012       
Total of results taken to the profit and 
loss account (result for the year) 
 

  
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
358.7 

 
358.7 

Movement in cash flow hedge reserve, 
of which corporate income tax  
 
Balance of actuarial gains and losses on 
employee benefits,  
of which corporate income tax 
 
Movement in other equity interests stated 
at fair value 
 

13 
 
 
 

16 
 
 
 

6 

(20.2) 
5.0 

 
 

- 
- 
 
 

- 
 

- 
- 
 
 

- 
- 
 
 

137.6 
 

- 
- 
 
 

(82.9) 
21.0 

 
 

- 
 

- 
- 
 
 

- 
- 
 
 

- 
 

(20.2) 
5.0 

 
 

(82.9) 
21.0 

 
 

137.6 
 

Total of results taken to equity 
 

 (15.2) 137.6 (61.9) - 60.5 

Total of comprehensive income  (15.2) 137.6 (61.9) 358.7 419.2 
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In millions of euros Notes Cash flow 
hedge 

reserve 

Fair 
value 

reserve 

Other 
reserves 

Unappro-
priated 

result 

Total 

       
2011       
Total of results taken to the profit and 
loss account (result for the year)  
 

  
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(602.0) 

 
(602.0) 

Movement in cash flow hedge reserve, 
of which corporate income tax  
 
Balance of actuarial gains and losses on 
employee benefits, 
of which corporate income tax 
 
Movement in other equity interests stated 
at fair value 
 
Other movements 
 

13 
 
 
 

16 
 
 
 

6 

(27.5) 
6.9 

 
 

- 
- 
 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
- 
 
 

- 
- 
 
 

37.8 
 

- 

- 
- 
 
 

(76.5) 
19.2 

 
 

- 
 

0.1 
 

- 
- 
 
 

- 
- 
 
 

- 
 

- 

(27.5) 
6.9 

 
 

(76.5) 
19.2 

 
 

37.8 
 

0.1 
 

Total of results taken to equity 
 

 (20.6) 37.8 (57.2)  
- 

(40.0) 

Total of comprehensive income  (20.6) 37.8 (57.2) (602.0) (642.0) 
       

 
The total of comprehensive income for 2012 and 2011 is fully attributable to the shareholder. 
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Consolidated statement of movements in equity 
 
In millions of euros Share 

capital 
Cash flow 

hedge 
reserve 

Fair 
value 

reserve 

Other 
reserves 

Unappro-
priated 

result 

Total 

       
2012       
Balance as at 1 January 2012 
 
Total of comprehensive income for 
the financial year 
 
Withdrawn from other reserves 
 

0.2 
 
 

- 
 

- 
 

(37.5) 
 
 

(15.2) 
 

- 

37.8 
 
 

137.6 
 

- 

5,038.8 
 
 

(61.9) 
 

(602.0) 

(602.0) 
 
 

358.7 
 

602.0 

4,437.3 
 
 

419.2 
 

- 
 

Balance as at 31 December 2012 0.2 (52.7) 175.4 4,374.9 358.7 4,856.5 
       
2011       
Balance as at 1 January 2011 
 
Total of comprehensive income for 
the financial year  
 
Dividend paid for 2010 
 
Added to other reserves 

0.2 
 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 

(16.9) 
 
 

(20.6) 
 

- 
 

- 

- 
 
 

37.8 
 

- 
 

- 

4,823.8 
 
 

(57.2) 
 

- 
 

272.2 

453.7 
 
 

(602.0) 
 

(181.5) 
 

(272.2) 

5,260.8 
 
 

(642.0) 
 

(181.5) 
 

- 
 

Balance as at 31 December 2011 0.2 (37.5) 37.8 5,038.8 (602.0) 4,437.3 
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Consolidated cash flow statement 
 
In millions of euros Notes  2012   2011 
       
Cash flow from operating activities 
Income 
Total expenses 

  
1,506.1 
(834.0) 

 

   
1,725.8 

(2,165.4) 
 

 

Operating result 
 

 672.1   (439.6)  

Adjustments for: 
- depreciation and amortisation 
- impairments 
- movement in stock 
- movement in receivables 
- movement in non-interest-bearing liabilities 
- other movements 

 

 
3+4 

1 
9 
 

 
269.3 

- 
(3.8) 

5.2 
(2.4) 
18.8 

   
248.0 

1,300.0 
(5.4) 

(123.3) 
156.0 
10.4 

 

Cash flow from business operations   959.2   1,146.1 
 
Interest received 
Dividend received on investments in associates 
Interest paid 
Corporate income tax paid/received 
 

 
 

5 

 
1.3 

24.5 
(223.5) 

173.1 

   
8.1 

23.1 
(186.3) 
(93.2) 

 

   (24.6) 
 

  (248.3) 
 

Cash flow from operating activities   934.6   897.8 
       
Cash flow from investing activities 
Investments in tangible and intangible fixed 
assets  
Disposals of tangible and intangible fixed assets 
Acquisition of share in joint venture, net of 
available cash and cash equivalents 
Investments in associates 
Investments in other equity interests 
Disposals of associates 
Disposals of other equity interests 
 

 
 

3+4 
3+4 

 
2+7 

5 
6 
5 
6 

 
 

(501.3) 
13.4 

 
(8.5) 
(0.1) 

(13.7) 
- 

0.0 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 

(680.5) 
4.1 

 
0.0 

(3.4) 
(23.8) 

0.1 
- 

 

Cash flow from investing activities   (510.2)   (703.5) 
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Transport   424.4   194.3 
       
Cash flow from financing activities 
New long-term loans 
Repayment of long-term loans 
Movement in short-term financing 
Dividend paid 
 

 
14 
14 
19 
29 

 
1,000.0 
(298.1) 
(285.7) 

- 

   
571.0 

(466.1) 
(207.7) 
(181.5) 

 

Cash flow from financing activities   416.2 
 

  (284.3) 
 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents   840.6   (90.0) 
       
Cash and cash equivalents at previous year-end  68.5   158.5  
Cash and cash equivalents at year-end 
 

 909.1   68.5  

 
 

  840.6   (90.0) 

 



74 
	

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
 
The financial statements are a translation of the official Dutch version adopted by the General 
Meeting of Shareholders. 
 
The preparation and adoption of the financial statements 
The 2012 financial statements were prepared by the Executive Board on 3 April 2013. The financial 
statements as prepared were submitted on 23 April 2013 to the General Meeting of Shareholders 
for adoption. 
 
 
Nature of business operations 
N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie (Gasunie) is a European gas infrastructure company. Gasunie’s network 
ranks among Europe’s largest high-pressure gas transport networks and consists of over 15,000 
kilometres of pipelines in the Netherlands and northern Germany, dozens of installations and 
approximately 1,300 gas-receiving stations. The gas network conveys around 100 billion cubic 
metres of natural gas a year. Gasunie serves the public interest in the markets where it operates 
and seeks to maximise value creation for its stakeholders. It was the first independent gas 
transport provider with a cross-border network in Europe. Gasunie provides gas transport services 
through its subsidiaries Gasunie Transport Services B.V. (GTS) in the Netherlands and Gasunie 
Deutschland Transport Services GmbH in Germany. The company also provides other gas 
infrastructure-related services, such as the storage of gas and LNG, and certification of green gas 
through its subsidiary Vertogas. Gasunie seeks to deploy its infrastructure and knowledge for the 
ongoing development and integration of renewable energy sources, particularly green gas. 
 
The company has its registered office in Groningen, the Netherlands, and is registered at the 
Chamber of Commerce under number 02029700. 
 
All shares outstanding as at the balance sheet date are held by the DutchState. 
 
 
Basis of preparation 
The company’s Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as endorsed by the European Union and 
applicable as at 31 December 2012. 
 
New reporting standards 
The following new standards and interpretations were endorsed for use in the European Union and 
took effect in 2012: 
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards – Severe Hyperinflation 

and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters (Amendments) 
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments – Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure Requirements (Amendments) 
 IAS 12 Income Taxes – Deferred Taxes: Recovery of Underlying Assets (Amendments) 
 
The adoption of the aforementioned standards and interpretations has no effect on the equity or 
result of the company in 2012 and requires no additional disclosures. 
 
The IFRS standards and the interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations 
Committee that have been published and endorsed for use in the European Union, but are not yet 
effective, have not been adopted by the company. These include, as of the financial year 2013: 
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 IFRS 7 Financial Instruments – Disclosure: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
(Amendments) 

 IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 
 IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements – Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive 

Income (Amendments) 
IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised) 
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine 
 
The company expects the above standards to have an effect on the presentation of the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and to require additional disclosures. The 
company does not expect any material effect on the equity or result of the company. 
 
As of the 2014 financial year, these include: 
 IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
 IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 
 IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities 
 IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (Revised) 
 IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Revised) 
 IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 

(amendments) 
 
The company is currently examining to what extent the above standards will have a material effect 
on the equity or result of the company in the period of first-time adoption and to what extent this 
will require any further disclosure to the financial statements. 
 
As of the 2013 financial year, the following new standards and interpretations will take effect, but 
have not yet been endorsed for use in the European Union: 
 IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards – Government Loans 

(Amendments) 
 Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (2009-2011) 
 
The adoption of the aforementioned standards and interpretations has no material effect on the 
equity or result of the company and does not require any additional disclosures. 
 
As of the 2014 financial year, the following new standards and interpretations will take effect, but 
have not yet been endorsed for use in the European Union: 
 IFRS 10, 11 & 12 – Transition Guidance (Amendments) 
 IFRS 10, 11 & IAS 27 – Investment Entities (Amendments) 
 
The company is currently examining to what extent the above standards will have a material effect 
on the equity or result of the company in the period of first-time adoption and to what extent this 
will require any additional disclosures.  
 
As of the 2015 financial year, the following new standard and interpretation will take effect, but has 
not yet been endorsed for use in the European Union: 
 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets and 

Financial Liabilities (Phase 1) 
 
The company expects the adoption of the above standard and interpretation to have no material 
effect on the equity or result of the company, but expects that it will require additional disclosures. 
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Management judgements and estimates 
In preparing the financial statements, management makes estimates and assessments which affect 
the assets and liabilities presented as at the balance sheet date and the result for the financial 
year. These judgments and estimates have a significant effect on the valuation of fixed assets, the 
provision for clearance costs and redevelopment, deferred taxation and pensions. 
 
Fixed assets 
Fixed assets include the gas transport network. 
 
Tangible fixed assets are valued at cost less straight-line depreciation based on their expected 
useful life, taking into account their residual value and impairments. To this end, assumptions were 
made about the useful life, the residual value and the future cash flows of the transport pipelines in 
particular. 
 
An important part of our operating activities is subject to regulation. The future cash flows and 
related recoverable amount of the regulated assets are partly based on judgments and estimates 
about the cash flows that can be earned within the relevant regulatory framework. For more 
information, see note 1 to the consolidated balance sheet. 
 
A provision for long-term general clearance costs is not recognised, because it is currently 
considered unlikely that there will be any need for the removal of transport pipelines and 
appurtenances. The income from alternative use (in the longer term) less the cost of conservation 
is expected to offset the cost of removal, social or otherwise. 
 
Provision for clearance and redevelopment 
This provision is recognised in response to management decisions to decommission, remove or 
redevelop specific assets within the foreseeable future (e.g., due to new legislation). For the time 
being, the size of the provision has been determined on the basis of general key figures (e.g., unit 
costs plus a generic project management surcharge). It will be possible to estimate the costs 
involved more accurately during actual clearance and redevelopment, and the provision will be 
adjusted accordingly at that time. 
 
Deferred tax assets 
A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences and available carry-
forward losses, to the extent that it is likely that taxable profit will be available for set-off. To this 
end, assumptions have been made about future taxable profits. 
 
Pensions 
The costs relating to the defined benefit pension plans and the valuation of defined benefit pension 
liabilities are determined using actuarial calculations. To this end, significant assumptions have 
been made about the market interest rate on high-quality corporate bonds for the purpose of 
determining the discount rate, expected future salary increases, expected future increases in 
pensions, and the expected return on plan assets. For more information, see note 16 to the 
consolidated balance sheet. 
 
 
Consolidation and accounting principles 
The consolidated financial statements include the financial data of N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie and 
its group companies. Group companies are legal entities and companies over which the company 
exercises control. 
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Group companies are fully consolidated from the date on which control of the group company is 
obtained until the date that control no longer exists. The items in the consolidated financial 
statements are calculated in accordance with consistent accounting policies. 
 
Intercompany account balances and unrealised results relating to group companies are eliminated. 
Unrealised losses are also eliminated, except when a loss is an indication of impairment. 
 
The group companies included in the consolidation are the following: 
 
Company Registered office Interest as at  

31 December 
  2012 2011 
    
Gasunie Transport Services B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 100% 
Gastransport Noord-West Europa B.V.  Groningen, Netherlands 100% 100% 
GastransportNoord-West Europa Holding B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 100% 
GastransportNoord-West Europa Services 1 B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 100% 
GastransportNoord-West Europa Services 2 B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 100% 
GastransportNoord-West Europa Services 3 B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 100% 
GastransportNoord-West Europa Services 4 B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 100% 
Gasunie BBL B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 100% 
Gasunie Engineering B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 100% 
Gasunie Germany B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% - 
Gasunie LNG BBR B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% - 
Gasunie LNG Holding B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 100% 
Gasunie Underground Storage (GUUS) B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 100% 
Gasunie Zuidwending B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 100% 
Vertogas B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 100% 
Cupa Holding GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 100% 
Cupa Transport Services GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 100% 
Gasunie Deutschland GmbH & Co. KG Hannover, Germany 100% 100% 
Gasunie Deutschland Services GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 100% 
Gasunie Deutschland Technical Services GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 100% 
Gasunie Deutschland Transport Services GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 100% 
Gasunie Deutschland Transport Services Holding GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 100% 
Gasunie Deutschland Verwaltungs GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 100% 
Gasunie Ostseeanbindungsleitung (GOAL) GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 100% 
Gasunie Infrastruktur AG Zug, Switzerland 100% 100% 
    

 
Gasunie Germany B.V. and Gasunie LNG BBR B.V. were founded in 2012. Throughout both 2012 
and 2011, Nederlandse Gasunie exercised control over the other legal entities mentioned above. 
 
In 2012, Gas Transport Services B.V. changed its name to Gasunie Transport Services B.V. 
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Joint ventures (listed below) are consolidated proportionally. 
 
Company Registered office Interest as at  

31 December 
  2012 2011 
    
BBL Company V.O.F. Groningen, Netherlands 60% 60% 
Gate terminal B.V. Rotterdam, Netherlands 45% 42.5% 
Gate terminal C.V. Rotterdam, Netherlands 45% 42.5% 
Gate terminal Management B.V. Rotterdam, Netherlands 50% 50% 
DEUDAN - Deutsch/Dänische Erdgastransport-GmbH Handewitt, Germany 75% 75% 
DEUDAN - Holding GmbH Hannover, Germany 51% 51% 
    

 
Based on agreements between the partners of BBL Company V.O.F., N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie has 
no control over the company, its equity interest qualifying as a joint venture. 
 
In 2012, Gasunie LNG Holding B.V. increased its 42.5% interest in Gate terminal C.V. by 2.5% to 
45%, accordingly increasing the associated interest in Gate terminal B.V. from 42.5% to 45%. 
 
In 2011, Gasunie Deutschland Transport Services GmbH acquired 49% additional shares in 
DEUDAN - Deutsch/Dänische Erdgastransport-GmbH and 0.01% additional shares in DEUDAN - 
Deutsch/Dänische Erdgastransport-GmbH & Co. KG. On the basis of the current agreements, 
DEUDAN - Deutsch/DänischeErdgastransport-GmbH and DEUDAN - Holding GmbH qualify as joint 
ventures, despite the majority shareholdings. 
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Accounting policies 
 
General 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. Unless stated 
otherwise below, this general policy has been applied throughout. 
 
 
Foreign currency 
The euro is the functional and reporting currency of the company. The consolidated financial 
statements have been prepared in euros. 
 
Transactions in foreign currencies are recognised at the rate of exchange of the functional currency 
on the transaction date. 
 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are converted at the exchange 
rate as at the balance sheet date. Any differences are recognised in the profit and loss account. 
 
 
Business combinations (acquisitions) 
Business combinations are recognised in accordance with the acquisition method as described in 
IFRS 3, Business Combinations (Revised). The acquisition price is calculated as the sum of the 
assets transferred by the acquiree, any liabilities entered into or acquired, and equity instruments 
issued by the acquirer. Costs relating to the acquisition are taken directly to the profit and loss 
account. The identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired as part of the business 
combinations are recognised by the acquiring party at fair value on the date of acquisition.  
 
 
Fixed assets 
Tangible fixed assets 
Tangible fixed assets are valued at cost less straight-line depreciation, based on the expected 
useful life, taking into account the residual value and impairments. The fair value of the assets at 
the time of the conversion to IFRS (1 January 2004) is used as the assumed cost price. The 
residual value of the asset, its useful life and the valuation methods used are reviewed and, if 
necessary, adjusted at the end of the financial year. 
 
Third-party contributions to the cost of construction of the gas transport network are deducted 
from the investments. 
 
Tangible fixed assets not yet completed as at the balance sheet date are recognised as ‘fixed 
assets under construction’. On commissioning, the relevant assets are classified according to their 
nature in one of the main categories. The volumes of gas permanently present in the pipelines 
needed for gas transportation are included under ‘other fixed operating assets’. 
 
Tangible fixed assets are classified in the following categories: 
 Land and buildings 
 Compressor stations 
 Installations 
 Main transmission lines and related plant and equipment 
 Regional transmission lines and related plant and equipment 
 LNG storage 
 Underground gas storage 
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 Other fixed operating assets 
 
Impairments of tangible fixed assets 
At regular intervals, and whenever there is reason to do so, the company investigates whether 
there is any impairment of tangible fixed assets. This involves determining the recoverable amount 
of the assets. If the recoverable amount is less than the current carrying amount, the difference is 
taken to the profit and loss account. Due to the nature of the assets, it is often not possible to 
determine the recoverable amount of each asset. In such cases, the recoverable amount of the 
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined. 
 
If there is reason to do so, the company investigates whether the impairment of a tangible fixed 
asset recognised in previous periods no longer exists or has decreased. 
 
Intangible fixed assets 
Exploitation rights 
Exploitation rights are valued at cost less straight-line amortisation based on the expected useful 
life, taking into account the residual value and impairments. The residual value of the asset, the 
useful life and the amortisation method and terms are assessed at least at the end of the financial 
year and adjusted, if necessary. 
 
Impairments of exploitation rights 
If there is reason to do so, the company investigates whether an impairment of the exploitation 
rights exists. This involves determining the recoverable amount of the assets. If the recoverable 
amount is less than the current carrying amount, the difference is taken to the profit and loss 
account.  
 
Goodwill 
Goodwill is the surplus of the acquisition price above the Gasunie share in the net fair value of the 
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Goodwill is recognised as intangible fixed 
assets. After initial recognition, goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairments. 
 
For the purpose of determining any impairments, goodwill acquired in a business combination is 
allocated to one or more cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of 
the combination, no later than in the financial year following the acquisition date. 
 
Impairment of goodwill 
Every year, and if there is reason to do so, the company assesses whether there is any impairment 
of goodwill which has been acquired in a business combination and which has been allocated to one 
or more cash-generating units. 
 
To that end, the company determines the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit (or 
group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated. If the recoverable amount is 
less than the current carrying amount, the difference is taken to the profit and loss account. 
Impairments of goodwill are not reversed in future periods.  
 
Investments in associates 
Participations over which the company exercises significant influence on operating and financial 
policies are valued using the equity method. 
 
The company’s share in the result of associates is recognised in the profit and loss account. 
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Investments in other equity interests 
After initial recognition, other equity interests are stated at fair value with unrealised gains or 
losses taken to equity until the other equity interests are no longer recognised or are subject to 
impairment. The accumulated gains or losses are then taken to the profit and loss account. 
 
Wherever the fair value of the other equity interests cannot be determined reliably, it is stated at 
cost.  
 
 
Current assets 
Stocks 
Stocks of maintenance materials and parts are stated at average cost, net of a provision for 
obsolescence. 
 
Receivables 
Receivables are stated at amortised cost less a provision for doubtful debts. A provision for 
doubtful debts is recognised if there is an objective reason to do so. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash includes available cash in hand and credit balances at banks. Cash equivalents are held with 
the aim of meeting current liabilities in cash, and are not normally used for investments or other 
purposes. An investment is only recognised as cash equivalent if it can be immediately converted 
into a known cash amount and is not subject to a material risk of fluctuation in value. 
 
 
Long-term liabilities  
These are liabilities with a remaining term to maturity of more than one year. Repayment 
obligations on long-term liabilities falling due within one year are shown under ‘current liabilities’. 
 
Interest-bearing loans are initially recognised at the fair value of the proceeds less transaction 
costs. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans are subsequently carried at amortised cost, 
based on the effective interest method. 
 
 
Employee benefits 
Long-term liabilities for employee benefits relate to pension liabilities, jubilee benefits and the costs 
of post-retirement fringe benefits for non-active and retired employees. 
 
Pension liabilities 
N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie and the group companies and joint ventures included in the 
consolidation have several pension plans in place entitling their employees to a number of benefits, 
including a retirement pension and a dependants’ pension. Two of these plans are based on a final 
salary scheme, one on a contingent average earnings scheme, and the other two on a defined 
contribution scheme. Under IAS 19, Employee Benefits, the pension plans that are based on a final 
salary scheme or a contingent average earnings scheme are considered defined benefit plans. One 
defined contribution scheme applies to Gate terminal B.V. employees; another is currently being 
developed for Gasunie Deutschland employees who joined the company as of 2012. 
 
The entitlements of the other employees in the Netherlands are funded through annual 
contributions and transferred to StichtingPensioenfonds Gasunie, which administers the pension 
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plan. The fund invests in all pension plans administered by StichtingPensioenfonds Gasunie. The 
entitlements of Gasunie Deutschland employees are not funded. 
 
The provision for pension liabilities is calculated using the projected unit credit method of actuarial 
cost allocation. According to this method, the present value of the pension entitlements is 
calculated on the basis of the number of active service years until the balance sheet date, the 
estimated salary as at the expected retirement date, and the market interest rate on high-quality 
corporate bonds. To determine the pension costs, the expected return on plan assets is included in 
the calculation. As of 2013, under IAS 19, Employee Benefits (Revised), the expected return will be 
determined on the basis of the discount rate applied in determining pension liabilities. 
 
Actuarial gains and losses are fully and directly recognised in equity in the period in which they 
occur, net of deferred taxation. The abolition of the corridor method under IAS 19, Employee 
Benefits (Revised), which will become effective as of the 2013 financial year, does not affect the 
equity and result of N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie. 
 
The net liability under the defined benefit plan consists of the present value of the gross liability 
less the fair value of the plan assets. If this results in an asset, plan assets are only included in the 
balance sheet if realisation is possible in the future through the payment of lower contributions or 
refunds. 
 
Actuarial calculations are drawn up by external actuaries every year. 
 
Provision for jubilee benefits 
This provision relates to jubilee benefits paid by N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie to its employees. 
Account is taken of the likelihood that the allowance will be paid and of a discount rate before 
taxation which incorporates the prevailing market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks inherent in the commitment. 
 
Provision for the costs of post-retirement fringe benefits for non-active and retired employees 
This provision relates to the allowance which N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie pays to its employees after 
their retirement. It represents the present value of the benefits already committed to non-active 
and retired employees. Account is taken of the mortality rate and a discount rate before taxation 
which incorporates the prevailing market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
inherent in the commitment. 
 
The assumptions on which this provision is based are tested periodically against mortality, interest 
and cost developments, and adjusted, if necessary. 
 
 
Provisions 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best possible estimate, as at the balance sheet date, 
of the expenditure required to meet existing commitments, taking into account the probability of 
the possible outcome of the relevant event. 
 
If the impact of the time value of money is material, a provision is recognised, based on the 
present value of the expenditure deemed necessary to settle the commitment. 
 
The discount rate is determined before taxation, and takes into account the prevailing market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks inherent in the commitment. 
 



83 
	

Provision for reorganisation expenses 
This provision serves to cover the liabilities (in respect of non-active employees) arising from 
previously implemented reorganisations. 
 
Provision for clearance costs and redevelopment 
This provision is recognised due to management decisions to decommission, remove or redevelop 
specific assets within the foreseeable future (e.g., due to new legislation). 
 
 
Current liabilities  
These are liabilities with a term of one year or less. 
 
 
Income 
Income is the income from gas transport and related services to third parties, net of discounts and 
taxes, such as VAT. 
 
If the result of a transaction involving the provision of a service can be estimated reliably, the 
income relating to the service is recognised in proportion to the services performed in the financial 
year. 
 
Services relating to the provision of transport capacity are separate from actual use. They are 
deemed to have been supplied if the capacity was at the customer’s disposal for the duration of the 
agreed period. 
 
The difference between ‘gross income’ and ‘net income’ is the ‘repayment of tariff settlement’. On 
11 October 2011, the Dutch regulator (NMa) took new ‘method decisions’ for the periods 2006-
2009 and 2010-2013. In these decisions, lower tariffs were set for 2006-2011 than were charged 
by Gasunie at that time in accordance with the method decisions then in force. N.V. Nederlandse 
Gasunie is now obliged to repay the difference to its customers by lowering the transport tariffs in 
2012 and 2013. The effect of the lowering of the tariffs on the income is shown separately in the 
profit and loss account. 
 
 
Capitalised expenditure 
Capitalised expenditure includes operating expenses incurred by the company in connection with 
the production of tangible fixed assets. These expenses mainly comprise the costs of the 
company’s own workforce and temporary workers, plus part of the overhead of support 
departments.  
 
 
Other operating expenses 
The expenses are determined on a historical basis, taking into account the accounting policies set 
out above, and are allocated to the reporting period to which they relate. Losses are recognised in 
the reporting period in which they are expected to occur. 
 
 
Finance revenue and costs 
This item includes income and expenses relating to financing. 
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Interest income is recognised on a pro rata time basis in the profit and loss account, taking into 
account the effective interest rate for the asset concerned, provided the income can be measured 
and is likely to be received. 
 
Interest expenses are capitalised if they relate to the purchase, construction or production of 
qualifying assets, providing the assets need a long period before being ready for their intended 
use. 
 
Other interest expenses are recognised on a pro rata time basis in the profit and loss account, 
taking into account the effective interest rate for the liability concerned. 
 
 
Share in result of associates 
This item includes income and expenses with respect to investments in associates. 
 
 
Corporate income tax  
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is 
recognised for all deductible temporary differences and available carry-forward losses to the extent 
that it is likely that taxable profit will be available for set-off.  
 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are stated at the undiscounted value of the expected cash flows. 
The tax rates used for the valuation are those that are expected to apply in the period in which the 
deferred tax items will be realised, based on the tax rates and tax legislation in force as at the 
balance sheet date. The movements arising from this are taken to the profit and loss account, 
except for movements relating to the revaluation of the tangible fixed assets as at 1 January 2004, 
the tax treatment of the purchase price paid by the DutchState, actuarial gains and losses and the 
cash flow hedge reserve. These movements are recognised directly in equity. 
 
Tax assets and liabilities (deferred or otherwise) are netted, provided the general conditions for 
setting off tax items have been met. 
 
N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie and its wholly-owned Dutch subsidiaries form a fiscal unity. No 
corporation tax is assigned to these group companies. The fiscal burden included in the corporate 
profit and loss account relates to all the companies in the fiscal unity.  
 
Gasunie Deutschland GmbH & Co. KG and its wholly-owned German subsidiaries form a fiscal unity 
in Germany for the purposes of trade tax and corporate income tax, including the reunification 
surcharge. 
 
Tax is calculated based on the recognised result, taking into account tax-exempt items and costs 
that are either non-deductible or only partly deductible. 
 
 
Cash flow statement 
This statement shows the cash flows generated by N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie. The cash flow from 
operating activities is determined using the indirect method, based on the income presented in the 
consolidated profit and loss account. 
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Financial information by segment 
The information relating to the operating activities for which separate financial information is 
available, and of which the operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision-
maker, covers gas transport activities as well as new business activities. 
 
The operating segments identified within Gasunie based on IFRS 8 are the following:  
 Gasunie Transport Services 
 Gasunie Deutschland 
 Participations & Business Development 
 
For more detailed financial information per segment, see notes 30 to 33 to the consolidated 
financial statements. 
 
 
Derivative financial instruments  
Cash flow hedge accounting 
Cash flow hedge accounting is applied to derivative financial instruments that have been 
specifically designated for this purpose by management, and are used to hedge a highly probable 
cash flow, while satisfying all other conditions.  
 
They are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which the contract is entered into, and the 
fair value is subsequently periodically reassessed. The fair value is determined based on the 
market value of comparable instruments. 
 
Gains or losses on the effective part of the hedging instrument are recognised in the cash flow 
hedge reserve in equity, net of deferred taxation. Any ineffective parts are recognised directly in 
profit or loss. 
 
When a hedging instrument is settled, gains or losses on the effective part continue to be 
recognised in equity for as long as the underlying cash flow is expected to continue. If it is not 
expected to continue, the gains or losses on the effective part, which are recognised in equity, are 
taken directly to the profit and loss account. 
 
Effective derivative financial instruments designated for hedge accounting are recognised in the 
same way as the underlying contract. Depending on the nature and the term of the underlying 
contract, the instruments are classified as long-term or current liabilities. 
 
Other derivative financial instruments 
Other derivative financial instruments used for hedging existing risks, such as interest-rate swaps 
and forward exchange contracts, are initially recognised at fair value. Changes in value are 
recognised in the profit and loss account. 
 
The fair value is determined on the basis of the market value of comparable instruments. If the fair 
value is positive, the instrument is included under ‘other receivables’; if the fair value is negative, 
the instrument is included under ‘other liabilities’. Depending on the nature and the term of the 
underlying contract, the instruments are classified as long-term or current liabilities. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
 
1. Impairment tests  
General 
Whenever there is reason to do so, the company investigates whether there is any impairment of 
tangible or intangible financial fixed assets. 
 
There is an impairment if the recoverable amount of an asset or group of assets is less than the 
carrying amount. The recoverable amount is determined on the basis of the indirect recoverable 
amount, which is calculated on the basis of future cash flows estimated by management. The cash 
flows are based on the business plan for the next three years adopted by the Executive Board as 
well as on a recent long-range forecast. The total planning period runs to the end of 2062. 
 
When carrying out an impairment test, management makes assumptions, including those regarding 
short- and long-term developments in the regulatory framework, makes estimates of aspects such 
as future cash flows, and determines the discount rate. These assumptions, estimates and 
judgments significantly affect the indirect recoverable amount. 
 
Impairment tests as at 31 December 2012 
Gas transport network in the Netherlands 
On 12 October 2011, in line with its statutory duty (transport, balancing regime and quality 
conversion), the Dutch Competition Authority NMa published two method decisions and X-factor 
decisions, covering the periods 2006-2009 and 2010-2013 respectively. The relevant decisions on 
tariffs were adopted in December 2011. 
 
A number of stakeholders and GTS appealed against the new method decisions. On 8 November 
2012, the Dutch Industrial Appeals Tribunal CBb ruled that the objections were unfounded. This 
means that GTS can maintain the current tariffs established by the NMa unchanged. 
 
The ruling of the CBb has no adverse implications for the valuation of the gas transport network in 
the Netherlands, as that valuation is already partly determined on the assumption that the tariffs 
would remain unchanged. 
 
Management has concluded that there is no reason to perform analytical tests to determine any 
possible impairments of the gas transport network in the Netherlands. 
 
Gas transport network in Germany 
The German regulator Bundesnetzagentur (BNetzA) is in the process of determining the 
permissible revenue for the regulatory period 2013-2017, on the basis of the projected permissible 
costs for the period, possibly reduced by an efficiency factor.  
 
As part of this process, on 6 June 2012, BNetzA sent a draft letter to Gasunie Deutschland with its 
findings. Gasunie Deutschland replied in writing towards the end of June, and explained its point of 
view in more detail in mid-July. At the time, it was expected that BNetzA would take a definitive 
decision on the permitted costs in the third quarter of 2012, to be followed by the establishment of 
a benchmark to serve as the basis of the efficiency factor.  
 
Based on the information available when the 2012 half-yearly accounts were drawn up, 
management saw no reason to expect that previous projections of the permissible turnover for the 
regulatory period 2013-2017 would need significant adjustment. Accordingly, management also 



87 
	

concluded that there was no need at that time to carry out a quantitative study into any 
exceptional value fluctuations of the gas transport network in Germany. 
 
BNetzA took a decision regarding the permitted costs in the second half of 2012; the decision 
regarding the efficiency factor is expected to be taken in the first quarter of 2013. It will be 
possible to appeal against the definitive decisions, if necessary. 
 
Based on the information available when the 2012 annual accounts were drawn up, management 
sees no reason to expect that previous projections of the permissible turnover for the regulatory 
period 2013-2017 will need significant adjustment. Accordingly, management also concludes that 
there is no need to carry out a quantitative study into any exceptional value fluctuations of the gas 
transport network in Germany. 
 
Impairment tests in 2011  
Impairment of the gas transport network in the Netherlands (at 30 June 2011), of the goodwill (at 
30 June 2011), and of the gas transport network in Germany (at 31 December 2011) may be 
summarised as follows.  
 
At the end of 2011, management concluded that there was no reason to carry out a quantitative 
study into any impairment of the gas transport network in the Netherlands. 
 
Gas transport network in the Netherlands and the goodwill (at 30 June 2011) 
In June 2010, the CBb withdrew the method decisions for the period 2009-2012 that the NMa had 
established in December 2008 for GTS. The CBb also ruled that the NMa had erroneously failed to 
decide on a method of regulation for the years 2006-2008. 
 
On 17 May 2011, in line with its statutory duty (i.e., transport, balancing and quality conversion), 
the NMa published two draft method decisions: one for 2006-2009 and the other for 2010-2013. 
 
The company officially notified the NMa of its objections to the method decisions. These objections 
were published on the NMa’s website, as part of an informal opinion (Zienswijze) formulated by the 
NMa. 
 
On the basis of the information available when the half-yearly accounts for 2011 were drawn up, 
and taking into account the current great uncertainty, management concluded that as of 30 June 
2011, there is some impairment of the gas transport network in the Netherlands and of the 
goodwill of € 220.6 million and € 679.4 million respectively, making a total of € 900.0 million. 
 
Gas transport network in Germany at 31 December 2011 
External indicators (information regarding the future development of the regulatory model and a 
downward adjustment of the permitted ROI) justified carrying out a quantitative study into any 
impairment of the gas transport network in Germany to the level as at 31 December 2011. 
 
On the basis of the information available when the annual accounts for 2011 were drawn up, and 
taking account of the major uncertainties, management concluded that as at 31 December 2011, 
impairment losses of € 400.0 million should be recognised on the gas transport network in 
Germany, comprising impairment losses of € 327.3 million on tangible fixed assets and € 72.7 
million on financial fixed assets. 
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2. Treatment of acquisitions 
Acquisitions in 2012 
In 2012, through Gasunie LNG Holding B.V., N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie expanded its interest of 
42.5% in Gate terminal C.V. and Gate terminal B.V. by 2.5% to 45%. For more information, see 
note 7 to the consolidated balance sheet. 
 
Acquisitions in 2011 
In 2011, through Gasunie Deutschland Transport Services GmbH, N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie 
acquired 49% additional shares in DEUDAN - Deutsch/DänischeErdgastransport-GmbH and 0.01% 
additional shares in DEUDAN - Deutsch/DänischeErdgastransport-GmbH & Co. KG, as well as an 
interest of 9.1% in TRAC-X Transport Capacity Exchange GmbH. For more information, see notes 
5, 6 and 7 to the consolidated balance sheet. 
 
 
3. Tangible fixed assets 
 

In millions of euros Carrying 
amount as 

at 1 Jan. 
2012 

Acqui-
sitions *) 

Additions Disposals Depre-
ciation 

Impair-
ments 

Carrying 
amount as 
at 31 Dec. 

2012 
        
Land and buildings 103.9 - 2.4 0.4 3.9 - 102.0 
Compressor stations 776.4 - 77.2 0.4 39.1 - 814.1 
Installations 835.4 - 214.0 7.4 55.6 - 986.4 
Main transmission lines and 
related plant and equipment 

 
4,694.5 

 
- 

 
219.6 

 
10.3 

 
97.6 

 
- 

 
4,806.2 

Regional transmission lines and 
related plant and equipment 

 
694.5 

 
- 

 
53.7 

 
1.9 

 
12.0 

 
- 

 
734.3 

LNG storage 367.4 30.1 1.1 - 12.8 - 385.8 
Underground gas storage 489.4 - (0.3) 3.5 13.3 - 472.3 
Other fixed operating assets 170.7 - 41.9 2.1 33.1 - 177.4 
Fixed assets under construction 
 

561.9 - (108.3) 6.2 - - 447.4 

Total for 2012 financial year 8,694.1 30.1 501.3 32.2 267.4 - 8,925.9 
        

*) Increase due to acquisition of share in joint venture 
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In millions of euros Carrying 
amount as 

at 1 Jan. 
2011 

Acqui-
sitions 

Additions Disposals Depre-
ciation 

Impair-
ments 

Carrying 
amount as 
at 31 Dec. 

2011 
        
Land and buildings 102.3 - 6.4 0.9 3.9 - 103.9 
Compressor stations 602.2 - 244.9 1.7 34.2 34.8 776.4 
Installations 840.4 - 105.9 4.4 56.1 50.4 835.4 
Main transmission lines and 
related plant and equipment 

 
4,806.0 

 
- 

 
378.1 

 
6.5 

 
87.4 

 
395.7 

 
4,694.5 

Regional transmission lines and 
related plant and equipment 

 
763.4 

 
- 

 
15.1 

 
0.9 

 
16.1 

 
67.0 

 
694.5 

LNG storage - - 371.4 - 4.0 - 367.4 
Underground gas storage - - 502.8 - 13.4 - 489.4 
Other fixed operating assets 134.8 - 66.9 0.1 30.9 - 170.7 
Fixed assets under construction 
 

1,572.9 - (1,011.0) - - - 561.9 

Total for 2011 financial year 8,822.0 - 680.5 14.5 246.0 547.9 8,694.1 
        

 

*) Including any impairments 
 
Depreciation periods 
As of 1 January 2008, the remaining depreciation period for investments in transmission pipelines 
was extended to 55 years. The carrying amount on this date and the investments in transmission 
pipelines as of this date are depreciated until 2063. 
 
As of 1 January 2004, the depreciation period for compressor stations and installations is 30 years 
(on average). 
 

In millions of euros Cost as at  
31 Dec. 2012 

Accumulated 
depreciation *) as 

at 31 Dec. 2012 

Cost as at  
31 Dec. 2011 

Accumulated 
depreciation *) as 

at 31 Dec. 2011 
     
Land and buildings 169.3 67.3 167.6 63.7 
Compressor stations 1,102.1 288.0 1,027.1 250.7 
Installations 1,470.9 484.5 1,281.4 446.0 
Main transmission lines and 
related plant and equipment 

 
6,420.7 

 
1,614.5 

 
6,227.3 

 
1.532.8 

Regional transmission lines and 
related plant and equipment 

 
944.3 

 
210.0 

 
895.6 

 
201.1 

LNG storage 403.3 17.5 371.4 4.0 
Underground gas storage 499.1 26.8 502.8 13.4 
Other fixed operating assets 520.5 343.1 495.7 325.0 
Fixed assets under construction 
 

447.4 - 561.9 - 

Total  11,977,6 3,051.7 11,530.8 2,836.7 
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The depreciation periods for the other components are as follows: 
 Buildings: 50 years 
 LNG storage: 15 to 40 years, approximately 30 years on average 
 Underground gas storage: 0 to40 years, approximately 35 years on average 
 Other fixed operating assets: 3 to 20 years 
 
Land is not depreciated. 
 
Gas transport network impairments 
See note 1 to the consolidated balance sheet for more details on this matter. 
 
 
4. Intangible fixed assets 
 
In millions of euros Exploitation 

rights 
Goodwill Total 

    
2012    
Balance as at 1 January    
 - cost 9.7 - 9.7 
 - accumulated depreciation (2.0) - (2.0) 

Carrying amount 7.7 - 7.7 
    
Movements in the financial year    
 - amortisation (1.9) - (1.9) 

Total movements (1.9) - (1.9) 
    
Balance as at 31 December    
 - cost 9.7 - 9.7 
 - accumulated depreciation (3.9) - (3.9) 

Carrying amount 5.8 - 5.8 
    
2011    
Balance as at 1 January    
 - cost 9.7 679.4 689.1 

Carrying amount 9.7 679.4 689.1 
    
Movements in the financial year    
 - impairments - (679.4) (679.4) 
 - amortisation (2.0) - (2.0) 

Total movements (2.0) (679.4) (681.4) 
    
Balance as at 31 December    
 - cost 9.7 679.4 689.1 
 - accumulated depreciation *) (2.0) (679.4) (681.4) 

Carrying amount 7.7 - 7.7 
    

*) Including any impairments 
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Exploitation rights 
Gasunie Zuidwending B.V. has acquired the exploitation rights of part of the transmission capacity 
of the natural gas storage facility in Zuidwending (Province of Groningen). The exploitation rights 
relate to the period 2011 to 2015. From the beginning of 2011, the intangible fixed asset is 
amortised on a straight-line basis consistent with the useful life of the rights. 
 
Goodwill impairments 
See note 1 to the consolidated balance sheet for more details on this matter. 
 
 
5. Investments in associates 
N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie has interests in the following companies, either directly or through its 
group companies: 
 
 
Company 

 
Registered office 

Interest as at 31 
December 

  2012 2011 
    
APX B.V. Amsterdam, Netherlands 20.9% 20.9% 
C.V. GasexpansieIJmond Groningen, Netherlands 50% 50% 
Energie Data Services Nederland (EDSN) B.V. Arnhem, Netherlands 25% 25% 
Global Gas Networks Initiative (GGNI) B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 25% 25% 
Rotterdamse Cintra Maatschappij B.V. Rotterdam, Netherlands 25% 25% 
DEUDAN - Deutsch/Dänische Erdgastransport-GmbH & 
Co. KG 

Handewitt, Germany 33.3% 33.3% 

GASPOOL Balancing Services GmbH Berlin, Germany 16.7% 16.7% 
NETRA GmbH Norddeutsche Erdgas Transversale Emstek/Schneiderkrug, 

Germany 
33.3% 33.3% 

NETRA GmbH Norddeutsche Erdgas Transversale & 
Co. KG 

Emstek/Schneiderkrug, 
Germany 

28.7% 28.7% 

    

 
N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie is managing partner of C.V. Gasexpansie IJmond. 
 
In early 2013, APX B.V. will be split into a Power part and a Gas part. Following this split, N.V. 
Nederlandse Gasunie will hold a 20.9% share in the Gas part. The transaction is expected to result 
in a loss of € 1.7 million. In 2012, this loss has been taken to ‘result on investments in associates’. 
In addition, the impairment of C.V. GasexpansieIJmond of € 1.1 million is included in this result. 
 
The interest of N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie in GASPOOL Balancing Services GmbH changed in 2011, 
following the merger with Aequamus GmbH. This transaction had no impact on the result.Under the 
agreements between the shareholders of GASPOOL Balancing Services GmbH, the company has 
significant influence.  
 
Eemshaven LNG Terminal B.V. was wound up in 2011, with no impact on the result. 
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Movements in investments in associates: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January 129.2 198.9 
   
Investments 0.1 - 
Acquisitions - 3.4 
Movements directly in equity - 0.1 
Result on investments in associates 23.8 22.7 
Dividend received (24.5) (23.1) 
Disposals/changes in interests - (0.1 
Impairments of gas transport network - (72.7) 
   

Balance as at 31 December 
 

128.6 129.2 

 
For information on impairments, see note 1 to the consolidated balance sheet. 
 
The share in the assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and in the income and result of 
associates for the financial year is as follows: 
 
In millions of euros 31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011 
   
Assets 344.0 386.8 
Liabilities 217.6 262.6 
   
Income 44.6 44.3 
Result after taxation 23.8 22.7 
   

 
 
6. Other equity interests 
On 10 June 2008, N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie acquired a 9% interest in Nord Stream AG, which is 
constructing, and will subsequently operate, two gas pipelines across the Baltic Sea from Russia to 
Germany. The equity interest in Nord Stream AG is intended to be a long-term investment 
supporting the objectives of N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie. The first of the two gas pipelines was put 
into operation on 1 October 2011, the second on 8 October 2012. 
 
The interest in Nord Stream AG is stated at fair value, taking account of a 7.5% discount rate after 
taxation on the projected cash flow. As an indication, all things being equal, if the discount rate 
changes by 0.5% points, this will result in a change in the fair value amount of € 33 million at 
year-end 2012. During the construction phase, fair value was estimated on the basis of cost. 
 
In 2011, the company acquired a 9.1% interest in TRAC-X Transport Capacity Exchange GmbH, 
which is stated at fair value. In 2012, 0.8% of this interest was sold, bringing the share at year-
end 2012 to 8.3%. This transaction had no impact on the result. 
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In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January 252.6 191.0 
   
Investments 13.7 23.8 
Movements in fair value directly incorporated into shareholder’s equity 137.6 37.8 
   

Balance as at 31 December 
 

403.9 252.6 

 
 
7. Interests in joint ventures 
The company has, indirectly, a 60% interest in BBL Company V.O.F, which is jointly controlled by 
Gasunie BBL B.V. and two other parties. BBL Company V.O.F. operates a gas pipeline between 
Balgzand in the Netherlands and Bacton in the United Kingdom. The pipeline became operational in 
December 2006. 
 
The company has, indirectly, a 50% interest in Gate terminal Management B.V., a 45% interest in 
Gate terminal C.V. and a 45% interest in Gate terminal B.V. These interests involve a joint venture 
with KoninklijkeVopak N.V. for the operation of a terminal for liquefied natural gas (LNG) on the 
Maasvlakte (an area of reclaimed land near the port of Rotterdam). 
 
In 2012, Gasunie LNG Holding B.V. increased its 42.5% interest in Gate terminal C.V. by 2.5% to 
45%. Its corresponding interest in Gate terminal B.V. increased from 42.5% to 45% accordingly. 
The acquisition price was € 10.2 million. In the overview of consolidated cash flow, the acquisition 
price is set off against the cash present (€ 1.7 million). In the notes to the consolidated balance 
sheet, the movements are explained under ‘increase due to acquisition of share in joint venture’. 
 
In 2011, Gasunie Deutschland Transport Services GmbH acquired 49% additional shares in 
DEUDAN - Deutsch/DänischeErdgastransport-GmbH for € 0.0 million. On the basis of the current 
agreements, DEUDAN - Deutsch/DänischeErdgastransport-GmbH and DEUDAN - Holding GmbH 
qualify as joint ventures, despite the majority shareholding of 75% and 51% respectively. The 
effect of the proportional consolidation on the balance sheet and profit and loss account is € 0.0 
million. 
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The share in the assets and liabilities as at balance sheet date, and in the income and expenses of 
the joint ventures for the financial year as included in the consolidation, is set out below: 
 
In millions of euros 31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011 
   
Fixed assets 687.2 685.5 
Current assets 56.2 38.9 
   

Total assets 743.4 724.4 
   
Long-term liabilities 398.7 370.7 
Current liabilities 22.7 28.0 
   

Total liabilities 421.4 398.7 
   
Net investment 
 

322.0 325.7 

Income 132.9 90.9 

Result after taxation 70.2 60.5 

   

 
 
8. Deferred tax assets 
The deferred tax assets arise from temporary differences between the valuation in the financial 
statements for financial reporting purposes and those for tax purposes of Gasunie Nederland. They 
can be broken down as follows: 
 
In millions of euros 31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011 
   
Tax treatment of purchase price paid by the DutchState 
Tax treatment of the provision for employee benefits 
Tax treatment of the tariff settlement provision 
Tax treatment of financial instruments 
Tangible fixed assets 
Losses available for set-off 
 

1,692.0 
45.1 

(44.9) 
19.3 

(1,231.6) 
- 
 

1,744.9 
26.7 

(98.6) 
13.2 

(1,144.8) 
4.8 

 

Total deferred tax assets 
 

479.9 546.2 

 
Tax treatment of purchase price paid by the DutchState 
When N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie was restructured, the DutchState made a deemed capital 
contribution to the company for tax purposes. 
As a result, as of 2005, additional depreciation for tax purposes applied to N.V. Nederlandse 
Gasunie in the form of a revaluation of the network. The resultant deferred tax asset is taken to 
equity. The effects of the tariff adjustments were, and are, also taken to equity. 
 
Tax treatment of the tariff settlement provision 
On 11 October 2011, the Dutch Competition Authority NMa adopted new method decisions for the 
periods 2006-2009 and 2010-2013. These decisions established lower tariffs for the period 2006-
2011 than those charged by N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie in the corresponding period, in line with 
previous method decisions. N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie is required to refund the difference to its 
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customers by reducing the transport tariffs in 2012 and 2013. To that end, a provision was formed 
for tax purposes. 
 
Movements in deferred tax assets are: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January 546.2 771.3 
   
Movements taken to the profit and loss account (91.4) (250.5) 
Movements taken to equity 23.9 25.4 
Increase due to acquisition of share in joint venture 1.2 - 
   

Balance as at 31 December 
 

479.9 546.2 

 
A breakdown of the movements taken to the profit and loss account and to equity for 2012 is 
shown below: 
 
In millions of euros Profit and loss 

account 
Equity Increase due to  

acquisition of 
share in joint 

venture 
    
Purchase price paid by the DutchState (52.9) - - 
Provision for employee benefits (0.5) 18.9 - 
Tariff settlement provision 53.7 - - 
Financial instruments  - 5.0 1.1 
Tangible fixed assets (86.8) - - 
Losses available for set-off (4.9) - 0.1 
    

Total 
 

(91.4) 23.9 1.2 

 
A breakdown of the movements taken to the profit and loss account and to equity for 2011 is 
shown below: 
 
In millions of euros Profit and loss 

account 
Equity Increase due to 

acquisition of 
share in joint 

venture 
    
Purchase price paid by the DutchState (52.8) - - 
Provision for employee benefits 0.8 18.5 - 
Tariff settlement provision (98.6) - - 
Financial instruments  - 6.9 - 
Tangible fixed assets (103.0) - - 
Losses available for set-off 3.1 - - 
    

Total 
 

(250.5) 25.4 - 
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9. Stocks 
Stocks, with a recognised value of € 37.0 million as at 31 December 2012 (2011: € 33.2 million), 
consist almost entirely of maintenance materials and parts that are measured on an average-cost 
basis. The amount stated takes into account a provision of € 6.8 million (2011: € 7.4 million) for 
obsolescence. Movements in the provision are credited to the result.  
 
 
10. Trade and other receivables 
 
In millions of euros 31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011 
   
Trade receivables 152.7 186.7 
Tax and social security contributions 0.4 162.4 
Other receivables 
 

29.8 28.7 

Total trade and other receivables 
 

182.9 377.8 

 
The other receivables as at31 December 2011 comprise a loan granted to Nord Stream AG totalling 
€ 11.0 million. In 2012, this funding was repaid in full.  
 
Trade and other receivables totalled € 182.5 million (2011: € 215.4 million). The analysis of the 
age of these receivables as at the balance sheet date is set out below: 
 

 
Movements in the provision for doubtful debts are set out below: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January 0.2 - 
   
Additions - 0.2 
Release credited to the result 
 

(0.2) - 

Balance as at 31 December 
 

- 0.2 

 
The receivables are individually reviewed to determine the amount of the provision, primarily 
taking into account the age of the receivable and the creditworthiness of the debtor. 
 
 

In millions of euros Total  Not due and 
not impaired 

Due and not impaired 

    < 30 
days 

30-60 
 days 

60-90  
days 

90-120 
 days 

> 120  
days 

         
2012 182.5  179.1 1.9 0.4 0.1 - 1.0 
2011 
 

215.4  202.8 5.0 2.1 2.4 0.7 2.4 
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11. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
In millions of euros 31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011 
   
Banks 82.0 18.8 
Deposits receivable 
 

827.1 49.7 

Total cash and cash equivalents 
 

909.1 68.5 

 
The bank balances carry an interest rate based on daily interest, and the deposits receivable a 
market-based interest rate in line with the individual term. The deposits receivable mostly have 
remaining terms of four or ten months. 
 
 
12. Equity 
Issued share capital 
The authorised share capital as at 31 December 2012 amounts to € 756,000, and is divided into 
7,560 shares, each having a nominal value of € 100, of which 1,512 have been issued and paid up 
in full. 
 
Other reserves 
Items included under ‘other reserves’ are classified as retained earnings under IFRS. 
 
Dividend 
The Executive Board proposes to take 40% of the profit for 2012 (€ 143.5 million) to the general 
reserve and to distribute 60% (€ 215.2 million) to the shareholder. This dividend proposal has not 
been taken into account in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2012 or in the notes. 
 
No dividend was distributed to the shareholder for 2011. 
 
 2012 2011 
   
Final dividend to be distributed (in millions of euros) 215.2 - 
Dividend per share (in thousands of euros) 142.3 - 
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13. Cash flow hedge reserve 
Movements in the cash flow hedge reserve are as follows: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January (37.5) (16.9) 
 
Movement of the valuation of transactions for hedging  
(interest-based) cash flows recognised in the reserve,  
of which corporate income tax 
Transferred to the profit and loss account, 
of which corporate income tax 
 

 
 

(18.4) 
4.6 

(1.8) 
0.4 

 

 
 

(25.8) 
6.5 

(1.7) 
0.4 

 

Balance as at 31 December 
 

(52.7) (37.5) 

 
The cash flow hedge reserve as at year-end 2012 relates to two cash flow hedges, as was the case 
in 2011. They are N.V. NederlandseGasunie’s cash flow hedge, relating to two bond loans, and the 
Gate terminal B.V.’s cash flow hedge. 
 
In millions of euros 31 Dec. 2012  31 Dec. 2011 
      
Cash flow hedge N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie, 
of which corporate income tax 
 

10.4 
(2.6) 

  12.2 
(3.0) 

 

  7.8   9.2 
      
Cash flow hedge Gate terminal B.V., 
of which corporate income tax 
 

(80.7) 
20.2 

 

  (62.3) 
15.6 

 

 

  (60.5)   (46.7) 
      

Total 
 

 (52.7)   (37.5) 

 
N.V. NederlandseGasunie’s cash flow hedge reserve relating to two long-term bond loans concerns 
swaptions settled in 2006, of which the results have been included in the cash flow hedge reserve 
and which will subsequently be transferred to the profit and loss account during the remaining term 
of the underlying bond loan. An amount of € 2.1 million (2011: € 2.8 million) from the balance of € 
7.8 million (2011: € 9.2 million) will be released on a straight-line basis up to and including 2016, 
and € 5.7 million (2011: € 6.4 million) on a straight-line basis up to and including 2021. 
 
In July 2008, Gate terminal B.V. took out a private loan with a variable interest rate. The variable 
interest rate was converted into fixed interest by means of a swap transaction. This transaction 
aims to largely offset changes in the cash flows (interest-based or otherwise) caused by changes in 
the market interest rate. The transaction was specifically designated for this purpose by 
management. The swap transaction is recognised in the balance sheet under ‘other long-term 
liabilities’. 
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14. Interest-bearing loans 
The total amount of € 4,059.1 million (2011: € 4,454.6 million) of long-term loans comprises € 
3,250 million (2011: € 3,650 million) of long-term bonds and € 809.1 million (2011: € 804.6 
million) of private loans. The long-term bonds are fixed-interest bonds as at the balance sheet 
date. The private loans as at the balance sheet date consist of € 500 million (2011: € 500 million) 
of fixed-interest loans and € 309.1 million (2011: € 304.6 million) of floating-interest loans. 95% of 
the interest rate risk at year-end 2012 relating to the € 309.1 million is hedged by a swap 
transaction. At year-end 2011, 90% of the interest rate risk relating to the € 304.6 million in 
variable interest loans was hedged by a swap transaction. 
 
The company has no open positions in foreign currencies. 
 
Movements in interest-bearing loans: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January 
 

4,454.6 3,896.7 

Issued bond loans 1,000.0 500.0 
Private loans contracted - 71.0 
Increase in private loans due to acquisition of interest in joint venture 17.6 - 
Other increases 1.1 - 
Early repayment on bond loans (284.2) - 
Repayment commitments in next financial year 
 

(1,130.0) (13.1) 

Balance as at 31 December  
 

4,059.1 4,454.6 

 
In July 2012, a prepayment of € 284.2 million took place on bond loans with a total nominal value 
of € 1.4 billion, an interest coupon of 6.000% and a tenor until the end of October 2013. In 
addition, two new bond issues took place, each with a nominal value of € 500.0 million, an interest 
coupon of 2.625% and 0.875% respectively, and terms of 10 years and 3 years respectively. 
 
The reason for the prepayment and the issuing of the new bonds is to reduce the refinancing risk in 
2013. The prepayment took place at a price above nominal value. The difference of € 20.1 million 
between the exercise price and the nominal value is reported as ‘interest expenses’. 
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Future repayments: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
 
Repayment commitments in 

  

2012 - 13.1 
2013 1,130.0 1,413.5 
2014 15.5 14.6 
2015 516.4 15.5 
2016 716.4 715.5 
2017 767.0 766.0 
After 2017 
 

2,047.9 
 

1,534.1 
 

Total repayment commitments 
 

5,193.2 4,472.3 

 
The table below provides a breakdown of the long-term loans, including repayment obligations. 
 
Balance as at 31 December 2012: 
 
Remaining principal 
sum outstanding from 
original loan in  
millions of euros 

Term Interest rates Interest review 
date 

Nominal amount 
outstanding in 

millions of euros 

     
700.0 2006-2016 4.250% not applicable 700.0 
300.0 2006-2021 4.500% not applicable 300.0 
115.8 2008-2013 6.000% not applicable 115.8 
1,000.0 2008-2013 6.000% not applicable 1.000.0 
125.0 2008-2022 4.500% not applicable 125.0 
125.0 2008-2023 4.804% not applicable 125.0 
139.0 *) 2008-2029 5.737% 15th of every month 139.0 
139.0 *) 2008-2029 5.873% 15th of every month 139.0 
750.0 2009-2017 5.125% not applicable 750.0 
125.0 2009-2024 4.266% not applicable 125.0 
20.5 *) 2009-2029 7.694% 15th of every month 20.5 
28.9 *) 2009-2029 7.217% 15th of every month 28.9 
125.0 2010-2025 3.581% not applicable 125.0 
500.0 2011-2021 3.625% not applicable 500.0 
500.0 2012-2022 2.625% not applicable 500.0 
500.0 2012-2015 0.875% not applicable 500.0 
     

Total 
 

   5,193.2 

 
If the DutchState ceases to hold all of N.V. NederlandseGasunie’s shares, the interest rates of the 
four € 125 million European Investment Bank loans will be adjusted to reflect the lender’s credit 
risk policy. 
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Balance as at 31 December 2011: 
 
Remaining principal 
sum outstanding from 
original loan in  
millions of euros 

Term Interest rates Interest review 
date 

Nominal amount 
outstanding in 

millions of euros 

     
700.0 2006-2016 4.250% not applicable 700.0 
300.0 2006-2021 4.500% not applicable 300.0 
400.0 2008-2013 6.000% not applicable 400.0 
1,000.0 2008-2013 6.000% not applicable 1,000.0 
125.0 2008-2022 4.500% not applicable 125.0 
125.0 2008-2023 4.804% not applicable 125.0 
145.5 *) 2008-2029 5.886% 15th of every month 136.9 
145.5 *) 2008-2029 5.903% 15th of every month 136.9 
750.0 2009-2017 5.125% not applicable 750.0 
125.0 2009-2024 4.266% not applicable 125.0 
22.0 *) 2009-2029 7.718% 15th of every month 20.1 
30.9 *) 2009-2029 7.347% 15th of every month 28.4 
125.0 2010-2025 3.581% not applicable 125.0 
500.0 2011-2021 3.625% not applicable 500.0 
     

Total 
 

   4,472.3 

*) These loans were concluded by Gate terminal B.V. in the form of long-term facilities and are 
consolidated proportionally. The facilities are drawn in several tranches. 
 
The weighted average interest rate for the long-term loans as at the balance sheet date was 4.3% 
(year-end 2011: 5.0%). 
 
Interest rate risk is managed by means of financial derivatives (see also note 21). 
 
Security has been provided for loans concluded by Gate terminal B.V. This security relates to the 
pledging of all assets and future cash flows of Gate terminal B.V. No collateral has been provided 
for the other interest-bearing loans concluded by N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie. 
 
 
15. Deferred tax liabilities 
The deferred tax liabilities arise from temporary differences between the valuation in the financial 
statements for financial reporting purposes and those for tax purposes of Gasunie Deutschland. 
They can be broken down as follows: 
 
In millions of euros 31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011 
   
Tangible fixed assets 
Provision for employee benefits 
Other deferred tax liabilities 
 

177.4 
(9.8) 
24.9 

184.1 
(7.3) 
23.5 

Total deferred tax liabilities 
 

192.5 200.3 
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Movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January 200.3 308.9 
   
Movements taken to the profit and loss account (5.7) (107.9) 
Movements taken to equity (2.1) (0.7) 
   

Balance as at 31 December 
 

192.5 200.3 

 
A breakdown of movements taken to the profit and loss account and to equity in 2012 is shown 
below: 
 
In millions of euros 
 

Profit and loss 
account 

Equity 

   
Tangible fixed assets (6.7) - 
Provision for employee benefits (0.4) (2.1) 
Other movements 
 

1.4 - 

Total 
 

(5.7) (2.1) 

 
A breakdown of movements taken to the profit and loss account and to equity for 2011 is shown 
below: 
 
In millions of euros 
 

Profit and loss 
account 

Equity 

   
Tangible fixed assets (97.4) - 
Provision for employee benefits (0.5)  (0.7) 
Other movements 
 

(10.0) - 

Total 
 

(107.9) (0.7) 
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16. Employee benefits 
 
In millions of euros 31 Dec. 2012  31 Dec. 2011 
      
A. Pension liabilities, the Netherlands 179.5   106.1  
B. Pension liabilities, Gasunie Deutschland 
 

60.2 
 

  49.0 
 

 

  239.7   155.1 
      
C. Jubilee benefits   5.5   5.6 
D. Post-retirement fringe benefits 
 

 5.5   5.5 

Total 
 

 250.7   166.2 

 
Provisions for pension liabilities 
The assumptions underlying the calculation of the pension liabilities are set out below: 
 

 Netherlands Germany 
 2012 2011 2012 2011 

     
Discount rate 3.3% 3.9% 3.3% 3.9% 
Expected future salary increases 3.7% 3.7% 2.8% 2.8% 
Expected future pension increases  1.8% 1.8% 1.8% 1.8% 
Expected return on plan assets 
 

4.0% 4.0% - - 

 
In 2012, the expected return on plan assets was maintained at 4.0% on the basis of the returns 
realised in previous years and the expected future returns.  
 
Five-year summary (balance at year-end): 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 
      
Present value of pension entitlements 1,306.3 1,113.4 996.2 858.6 734.9 
Plan assets (1,066.6) (958.3) (925.0) (865.0) (729.3) 
Pension provision 239.7 155.1 71.2 (6.4 5.6 
Experience adjustments to plan liabilities 1.2 (16.8) 41.4 70.2 (0.4 
Experience adjustments to plan assets 
 

77.5 13.6 41.8 47.9 (171.2) 
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A. Provision for pension liabilities, the Netherlands 
A breakdown of the provision for pension liabilities in respect of employees in the Netherlands is 
shown below: 
 
In millions of euros 31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011 
   
Present value of pension entitlements 1,246.1 1,064.4 
Plan assets 
 

(1,066.6) (958.3) 

Pension provision 
 

179.5 106.1 

 
Movements in the pension provision are: 
 
In millions of euros  2012 2011 
   
Present value of pension entitlements 
Balance as at 1 January 
 
Increase in pension entitlements 
Accrued interest 
Actuarial result 
Pension benefits paid 
 

 
1,064.4 

 
26.8 
40.8 

153.2 
(39.1) 

 

 
953.5 

 
19.9 
42.9 
87.7 

(39.6) 
 

Balance as at 31 December 1,246.1 1,064.4 
   
Plan assets 
Balance as at 1 January 
 
Expected return 
Employer’s pension contributions received 
Actuarial result 
Pension benefits paid 
 

 
958.3 

 
39.3 
30.6 
 77.5 

(39.1) 

 
925.0 

 
36.7 
22.6 

 13.6 
(39.6) 

Balance as at 31 December 
 

1,066.6 958.3 

 
All plan assets are administered by StichtingPensioenfonds Gasunie. 
 
Pursuant to the pension execution agreement between StichtingPensioenfonds Gasunie and N.V. 
Nederlandse Gasunie, which has been terminated by N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie as of 1 January 
2013, the company has undertaken to pay an additional contribution to restore the funding ratio of 
the fund to 105% to the extent that the funding ratio is less than 105% as at 31 December. 
 
On 31 December 2012, the pension fund had a funding ratio of less than 105%, based on 
provisional figures. Under the above agreement, the pension fund may claim an additional 
contribution from N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie to restore its funding ratio to 105% as at the balance 
sheet date. Based on a provisional calculation of the pension fund’s equity and pension liabilities, 
the amount of the additional contribution to be paid by the company may be approximately € 6 
million. This obligatory additional contribution has not been recognised in the balance sheet, in 
accordance with the relevant IFRS standard. 
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Under the new pension execution agreement between StichtingPensioenfonds Gasunie and N.V. 
Nederlandse Gasunie, which will take effect on 1 January 2013, the obligatory additional 
contribution of the company will be cancelled. 
 
In millions of euros  2012 2011 
   
Actuarial results taken directly to equity 
Actuarial result on pension entitlements 
Actuarial result on plan assets 
 

 
(153.2) 

77.5 
 

 
(87.7) 

13.6 
 

Total actuarial result 
 

(75.7) (74.1) 

 
The actuarial result in 2012 is largely influenced by the lower discount rate and the change in the 
survivors’ rate tables on the one hand, and the return on plan assets on the other. 
 
The actuarial result in 2011 is largely influenced by the lower discount rate on the one hand, and 
experience adjustments to the pension liabilities and the return on plan assets on the other. 
 
The accumulated actuarial gains and losses total € 403.4 million negative at year-end 2012 (year-
end 2011: € 327.7 million negative). 
 
The plan assets for each investment category are set out below: 
 
In percentages 31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011 
   
Property and shares 
Bonds 
Cash 
 

38 
59 

3 

53 
44 
3 

Total 
 

100 100 

 
The actual return on plan assets for 2012 is 12.0% (2011: 5.6%). The company expects to be 
liable for approximately € 26.6 million of regular pension contributions to the pension fund in 2013. 
 
As at 31 December 2012, and just as at 31 December 2011, no financing was granted by 
StichtingPensioenfonds Gasunie to N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie and its associates. The pension fund 
does not invest in property or other assets used by N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie and its associates. 
 
The total pension costs for the defined benefit pension plans as presented in the profit and loss 
account comprise: 
 
In millions of euros  2012 2011 
   
Increase in pension entitlements 
Accrued interest 
Expected return on plan assets 
 

26.8 
40.8 

(39.3) 

19.9 
42.9 

(36.7) 

Total pension costs 
 

28.3 26.1 
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A process for developing a new pension scheme is being set up. 
 
B. Provision for pension liabilities, Gasunie Deutschland 
The pension provision relates to the pension plan as applicable to Gasunie Deutschland employees. 
 
The provision for pension liabilities comprises: 
 
In millions of euros 31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011 
   
Present value of pension entitlements 60.2 49.0 
Plan assets 
 

- - 

Pension provision 
 

60.2 49.0 

 
Movements in the pension provision are: 
 
In millions of euros  2012 2011 
   
Present value of pension entitlements 
Balance as at 1 January 
 
Increase in pension entitlements 
Accrued interest 
Actuarial result 
Pension benefits paid 
 

 
49.0 

 
2.2 
1.9 
 7.2 

(0.1) 
 

 
42.7 

 
2.0 
1.9 

 2.4 
- 
 

Balance as at 31 December 
 

60.2 
 

49.0 
 

 
In millions of euros  2012 2011 
   
Actuarial results taken directly to equity 
Actuarial result on pension entitlements 
 

 
(7.2) 

 

 
(2.4) 

 

Total actuarial loss 
 

(7.2) (2.4) 

 
The accumulated actuarial gains and losses, taken directly to equity, amount to € 18.6 million 
negative at year-end 2012 (year-end 2011: € 11.4 million negative). 
 
The total pension costs for the defined benefit pension plan as presented in the profit and loss 
account comprise: 
 
In millions of euros  2012  2011 
   
Increase in pension entitlements 
Accrued interest 
 

2.2 
1.9 

 

2.0 
1.9 

 

Total pension costs 
 

4.1 3.9 
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A process for developing the contribution scheme as agreed for employees joining the company 
from 2012.  
 
C. Provision for jubilee benefits 
The provision relates to jubilee benefits paid to its employees by N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie to 
recognise length of service. Movements in the provision are set out below: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January 
 
Additions 
Charges 
Short-term share of the provision 
(buy-out on account of adjustment of the scheme) 
 

5.6 
 

0.4 
(0.5) 

 
- 

7.7 
 

0.2 
(0.8) 

 
(1.5) 

Balance as at 31 December 
 

5.5 
 

5.6 
 

 
The existing jubilee scheme was replaced by a new scheme on 1 January 2012. Employees 
received a lump sum payment as compensation in January 2012. 
 
D. Provision for costs of post-retirement fringe benefits for non-active and retired employees 
The provision relates to the allowance which N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie pays to its employees after 
their retirement.  
 
A scheme forming part of the fringe benefits package related to future termination of employment 
(including retirement, early retirement and death) was discontinued as at 31 December 2011. In 
February 2012, employees were compensated for any loss that they would sustain as a result of 
the discontinuation of the scheme. 
 
Due to the termination of the above scheme, the provision for costs of post-retirement fringe 
benefits is lower than in previous years. 
 
Movements in the provision are set out below: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January 
 
Additions 
Charges 
Release 
Short-term share of the provision 
(buy-out on account of adjustment of the scheme) 
 

5.5 
 

0.9 
(0.9) 

- 
 

- 

9.7 
 

0.2 
(0.9) 
(1.0) 

 
(2.5) 

Balance as at 31 December 
 

5.5 5.5 

 
The provision is primarily long-term and not fully funded. 
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17. Provisions 
Provision for reorganisation expenses 
This provision serves to cover the liabilities (in respect of non-active former employees) arising 
from previously implemented reorganisations. Movements in the provision are set out below: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January 
 
Additions 
Short-term share of the provision 
 

0.1 
 

0.0 
(0.0) 

0.3 
 

- 
(0.2) 

Balance as at 31 December 
 

0.1 0.1 

 
Provision for clearance costs and redevelopment 
Movements in the provision are set out below: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January 
 
Additions 
Charges 
Release 
 

98.9 
 

9.0 
(8.5) 
(1.5) 

 

34.5 
 

66.0 
(1.6) 

- 

Balance as at 31 December 
 

97.9 98.9 

 
This provision was recognised in 2010 due to management decisions to decommission, remove or 
redevelop specific assets within the foreseeable future (e.g., due to new legislation). The provision 
relates to the redevelopment of site-related and group-related bottlenecks, obligations to 
disengage decommissioned branches from the grid, and the decision to redevelop or replace 
certain pipeline sections. 
 
Pipelines that had already been disengaged were added to the redevelopment programme in 2011, 
and in 2012 pipelines were added that had earlier been taken over from third parties. The last part 
of the redevelopment programme is expected to be carried out in 2019. 
 
A provision for long-term general clearance costs is not recognised, because it is currently 
considered unlikely that the removal of transport pipelines and appurtenances will be needed. The 
income from alternative use (in the longer term) less the cost of conservation is anticipated to 
offset the cost of removal, social or otherwise. 
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18. Other long-term liabilities 
 
In millions of euros 31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011 
   
Derivative financial instruments 
Other long-term liabilities 
 

87.8 
1.7 

 

65.1 
1.0 

 

Total other long-term liabilities 
 

89.5 
 

66.1 
 

 
In July 2008, Gate terminal B.V. took out a private loan with a floating interest rate. The floating 
interest was converted into fixed interest by means of a swap transaction. At year-end 2012, the 
valuation of the swap transaction, including accrued interest, amounted to € 87.8 million negative 
(2011: € 65.1 million negative). 
 
 
19. Current financing liabilities 
 
In millions of euros 31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011 
   
Repayments on long-term loans 
Short-term loans 
 

1,130.0 
19.8 

 

13.1 
305.5 

 

Total current financing liabilities 
 

1,149.8 
 

318.6 
 

 
As at the end of 2012, N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie had taken out € 19.8 million (2011: € 305.5 
million) of short-term loans based on standard market terms and conditions. At year-end 2012 and 
2011, these short-term loans primarily related to money market deposits. 
 
In addition to the current financing liabilities mentioned above, N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie has 
credit facilities for temporary financing totalling € 910 million (2011: € 915 million) and a 
commercial paper programme of € 750 million (2011: € 750 million). No funds were drawn under 
these credit facilities as at year-end 2012 and 2011. The credit facilities are committed. In 2015, 
an € 800 million credit facility will expire. The interest payable on the credit facilities is based on 
market standard floating rates. No security has been provided for the credit facilities by N.V. 
Nederlandse Gasunie. 
 
 
20. Trade and other payables 
 
In millions of euros 31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011 
   
Trade payables 
Tax liabilities 
Other liabilities, accruals and deferred income 
 

35.4 
42.1 

299.5 
 

61.3 
13.2 

292.7 
 

Total trade and other payables 
 

377.0 
 

367.2 
 

 
Trade and other payables do not bear interest. 
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‘Other liabilities, accruals and deferred income’ includes the net amounts of the expected gas 
purchase invoices for balancing the gas transport network. The company has changed the valuation 
method for these liabilities on account of recent changes in regulations, delivery conditions and 
experiences. The effect of this revised estimate is € 59.3 million positive, which was recognised as 
‘income’ in 2011. 
 
 
21. Financial risks 
General 
The main risks to which N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie is exposed are market risks (consisting of 
interest rate risks and currency risks), credit risks and liquidity risks. The company uses financial 
risk management to limit these risks by operational and financial measures. Specific instruments 
are used for this purpose, depending on the nature and size of the risks. 
 
The Treasury department is responsible for executing financial risk management. The use of 
specific risk instruments requires prior approval from the Executive Board, which receives regular 
reports on the nature and size of the risks as well as the measures taken. 
 
N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie may use derivative financial instruments to manage currency and 
interest rate risks arising from ordinary operational activities. The risk policy aims to limit the 
short-term effects of interest and exchange rate fluctuations on the result, and in the long term to 
follow prevailing market interest rates and market currency exchange rates. 
 
Financial instruments are only used to hedge risks and not for trading or any other purpose. 
 
For the disclosure of currency and interest rate risks, IFRS 7 prescribes sensitivity analyses that 
show the financial effects of reasonable hypothetical changes in relevant risk variables on the profit 
and loss account and on equity. These effects are determined by relating the hypothetical changes 
to the risk variables to the balance sheet values of the financial instruments as at the reporting 
date, assuming that the balance sheet values as at the reporting date are representative of the 
whole period. 
 
Interest rate risks 
The risk to which the company is exposed resulting from fluctuations in market interest rates 
mainly relates to the long-term commitments with a floating interest rate. The company is also 
exposed to an interest rate risk in the period between the decision to issue long-term loans with a 
fixed rate and the realisation of these loans. 
 
For the project financing of one of the consolidated joint ventures, the interest rate risk was 
managed by means of a swap transaction in the period between the decision to finance the project 
and the time of actually doing so. This swap transaction is also being used to manage the interest 
rate risk during the total maturity of the project financing. The transaction is designed to effectively 
offset changes in the cash flows (interest-based or otherwise) caused by changes in the market 
interest rate (cash flow hedge). Since there are no margin obligations on this swap, it does not 
constitute a liquidity risk. 
 
At year-end 2012, the variable interest-bearing share of the loan portfolio is 0.3% (2011: 1%). A 
1%-point increase/decrease of the interest rate will respectively increase/decrease the annual 
interest expenses of the loan portfolio by € 0.1 million (2011: € 0.4 million). 
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The effect of a 1%-point increase/decrease on the valuation of the financial instruments that are 
recognised by direct movements in equity is a € 6 million decrease/increase (2011: € 5 million 
decrease/increase), net of corporate income tax. 
 
Currency risks 
Currency risks arise, as defined in IFRS 7, if financial instruments are concluded in a currency that 
is different from the functional currency, and if the financial instruments are of a monetary nature.  
 
N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie seeks to limit currency risks. To this end, it uses forward exchange 
contracts and currency swaps. Foreign exchange instruments are only used on the basis of 
underlying positions. Currency risks are fully hedged to the extent that there is sufficient certainty 
about the amount and timing of the foreign currency cash flows. 
 
At year-end 2012, there were no liabilities denominated in GBP that were hedged by means of 
forward transactions (2011: € 3.3 million). 
 
In 2012, balance sheet liabilities do not include any GBP positions (2011: € 0.2 million) or CHF 
positions (2011: € 0.1 million). Foreign currencies were converted into euros at the year-end 
exchange rate. 
 
In millions of euros Position Exchange rate 

Increase/ 
decrease 

Effect on 
result before 

taxation 

Effect on equity 

     
2011     
Euro/GBP 0.2 +/- 30% -/+ 0.1 - 
Euro/CHF 0.1 +/- 30% - - 
     

 
The sensitivity analysis takes into account the past fluctuation range of currencies. The same 
ranges are used by the company for its analyses of potential risks. There were no other significant 
foreign currency positions. 
 
Credit risks 
Credit risks relate to the loss that would arise if counterparties were to default entirely as at the 
balance sheet date and fail to meet their contractual obligations. The company is not exposed to 
any material credit risk with regard to any individual customer or counterparty. 
 
When employing derivative financial instruments, to reduce counterparty risk, the company uses 
strict limits concerning the credit risk exposure allowed for each counterparty. The company has 
drawn up criteria for selecting counterparties involved in financial instrument transactions. These 
criteria limit the risks associated with possible credit concentrations and market risks. As at year-
end 2012 and 2011, no collateral was placed by counterparties at N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie to 
hedge counterparty risks with respect to financial instruments. 
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Guarantees received from third parties 
N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie and its group companies have received the following guarantees from 
third parties: 
 
In millions of euros 31 Dec. 2012  31 Dec. 2011 
 Number Value  Number Value 
      
Bank guarantees 75 116.1  58 59.4 
Deposits 32 5.2  31 6.8 
Sureties 26 166.7  24 139.2 
Letters of Credit 2 0.7  - - 
Other 
 

2 46.0  2 43.4 

 137 334.7  115 
 

248.8 

 
The bank guarantees received relate mainly to sureties from contractors for new construction 
projects. The deposits and sureties received relate to sureties from gas transport agreements. The 
deposits are held in cash. The interest on deposits is credited to the issuer of the guarantee.  
 
The individual terms of the guarantees received are generally short (one to three years), with the 
terms of a few guarantees exceeding five years. The guarantees are not freely assignable.  
 
Liquidity risk 
The liquidity risk is the risk that the company has insufficient cash to meet its short-term liabilities. 
N.V. NederlandseGasunie’s policy is to reduce this risk at minimal cost. The options for reducing 
the liquidity risk depend on the solvency of an enterprise. As a solvent company, N.V. Nederlandse 
Gasunie is in a good position to obtain credit facilities. It quantifies the liquidity risk by using a 
multi-year forecast of capital costs and a liquidity forecast with a horizon of at least one year for 
operational expenses. 
 
The company has committed credit facilities of up to € 910 million (2011: € 915 million), a € 750 
million commercial paper programme (2011: € 750 million) and a credit facility of € 150 million 
(2011: nil) with the European Investment Bank. It also has a € 7.5 billion Medium Term Note 
(MTN) programme (2011: € 5 billion), with € 3.1 billion available for new issues as at year-end 
2012. 
 
Rating 
In 2012, the rating agencies Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s did not adjust Gasunie’s long-term 
credit rating. Gasunie’s credit rating from Standard & Poor’s is AA- with a negative outlook and A2 
with a stable outlook from Moody’s. 
 
Dividend policy 
N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie aims to achieve a ratio of liabilities to equity which will enable the 
company to realise its strategy. 
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Summary of future cash flows 
The maturity profile of future cash flows pertaining to long-term and current liabilities outstanding 
as at the balance sheet date is as follows: 
 
In millions of euros Total Payable 

imme-
diately 

< 1 
year 

1-5 
years 

> 5 
years 

      
2012      
Long-term liabilities      
 - interest-bearing loans 4,063.2 - - 2,015.3 2.047.9 
 - derivative financial instruments 87.8 - - - 87.8 
 - other long-term liabilities 1.7 - - 0.4 1.3 
      
Current liabilities      
 - current financing liabilities 1,149.8 19.8 1,130.0 - - 
 - trade payables  35.4 34.4 1.0 - - 
 - tax liabilities 42.1 42.1 - - - 
 - other liabilities, accruals and deferred income 299.5 105.5 194.0 - - 
      
Interest payable on liabilities 1,148.5 - 214.0 548.2 386.3 
      

Total 6,828.0 201.8 1,539.0 2,563.9 2,523.3 
      
2011      
Long-term liabilities      
 - interest-bearing loans 4,459.2 - - 2,159.1 2,300.1 
 - derivative financial instruments 65.1 - - - 65.1 
 - other long-term liabilities 1.0 - - 0.7 0.3 
      
Current liabilities      
 - current financing liabilities 318.6 10.3 308.3 - - 
 - trade payables  61.3 61.3 - - - 
 - tax liabilities 13.2 13.2 - - - 
 - other liabilities, accruals and deferred income 292.7 105.1 187.6 - - 
      
Interest payable on liabilities 1,215.0 - 224.6 581.0 409.4 
      

Total 6,426.1 189.9 720.5 2,740.8 2,774.9 
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Guarantees issued 
N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie and its group companies have issued the following guarantees to third 
parties: 
 
In millions of euros 31 Dec. 2012  31 Dec. 2011 
 Number Value  Number Value 
      
Bank guarantees 2 1.4  2 0.1 
Parent guarantees 6 729.5  6 950.0 
Sureties 
 

2 30.0  2 30.0 

Total guarantees issued by Gasunie 
 

10 760.9  10 980.1 

 
The sureties are issued for a specific purpose and mainly relate to investment projects. The 
guarantees are not freely transferable and their terms are generally short (one to two years). 
 
In 2010, N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie acted as a guarantor for the payment obligations of Gasunie 
Deutschland for a maximum of € 320 million regarding an investment project in Germany. During 
the project, the guarantee is reduced by the value of the investments made. At year-end 2012, the 
remaining guarantee was € 115 million. The guarantee will end upon completion of the investment 
project, which is currently scheduled for the end of 2013. 
 
The company is guarantor for Gate terminal B.V. for € 52.5 million of leases payable to the Port of 
Rotterdam Authority and two sureties provided to shippers totalling € 30 million. The remaining 
term of the guarantee for the Port of Rotterdam is 15 years and for the two sureties more than 20 
years.  
 
The Nord Stream project was funded with almost € 6 billion in borrowed capital. During 
construction, the investors (including N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie) guarantee their share in the 
project to the providers of the borrowed capital. At year-end 2011, N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie 
guaranteed € 350 million for construction phase 1, and € 220 million for construction phase 2. In 
2012, construction phase 1 was completed, so that N.V. NederlandseGasunie’s completion 
guarantee of € 350 million for this construction phase lapsed. At year-end 2012, N.V. Nederlandse 
Gasunie was still guarantor for € 220 million for construction phase 2. This completion guarantee is 
expected to run to mid-2014. 
 
Following the lapse of the completion guarantee for construction phase 1 in 2012, a Change in Law 
Commitment Agreement came into force between Nord Stream AG and the lenders, which 
guarantees that the lenders will be compensated for any negative effects of changes in laws or 
regulations. 
 
For construction phase 1, the guarantee resulting from the Change in Law Commitment Agreement 
may be invoked due to the negative consequences arising from changes in the laws and regulations 
(or their interpretation) during the period from 16 April 2009 to 14 May 2010.  
 
With respect to construction phase 2, the Change in Law Commitment Agreement applies to 
negative consequences arising from changes in laws or regulations (or their interpretation) during 
the period from 16 April 2009 to 21 April 2011. 
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The Change in Law Commitment Agreement can only be invoked if, as a result of changes in laws 
or regulations in the said periods, Nord Stream’s customer, in whole or in part, will be exempted 
from its payment obligations, as a consequence of which Nord Stream AG is no longer able to pay 
its operating costs or meet its obligations to its lenders. 
 
If laws or regulations come into force or are changed which do not related to the above-mentioned 
periods, no claim can be made on the basis of the Change in Law Commitment Agreement. This 
guarantee does not cover any changes in Russian laws or regulations.  
 
The Change in Law Commitment Agreement runs until 2026. The chance that this guarantee will be 
invoked is considered to be very small. The maximum share of N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie in this 
guarantee to lenders is € 570 million. The guarantee reduces proportionally with the repayments 
made on the debt. At year-end 2012, the remaining guarantee is max. € 559 million, of which € 
220 million is concurrent with the completion guarantee for construction phase 2. The share of N.V. 
Nederlandse Gasunie in this guarantee in relation to the operating costs of Nord Stream is 
expected to be approx. € 13 million in 2013 and approx. € 8 million per year from 2014. The above 
table includes € 339 million relating to this guarantee. 
 
In 2009, N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie issued a purchase guarantee to N.V. KEMA totalling € 87.5 
million for a period of ten years, starting from € 14 million in 2010 and gradually decreasing to € 5 
million in 2019. The guarantee concerns the purchase of services to ensure the safe and reliable 
transport of gas and the development of sustainable initiatives. The guarantee commitments were 
fulfilled for 2012. This purchase guarantee is included in note 22 to the consolidated balance sheet 
under ‘other commitments’. 
 
For ease of comparison, the details of 2011 have been adjusted in the table. On balance, the 
guarantees have increased by € 606.9 million. The biggest change is due to the re-categorisation 
of the Nord Stream guarantee (€ 570 million) from item 22 to item 21 of the notes to the 
consolidated balance sheet. 
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Fair value and carrying amount of financial instruments  
The table below compares the carrying amount and fair value of the financial instruments: 
 
In millions of euros 2012  2011 
 Carrying 

amount 
Fair value  Carrying 

amount 
Fair value 

      
Financial assets      
Fixed assets      
- other equity interests 403.9 403.9  252.6 252.6 
      
Current assets      
- trade receivables 152.7 152.7  186.7 186.7 
- tax and social security contributions 0.4 0.4  162.4 162.4 
- other receivables 29.8 29.8  28.7 28.7 
- cash and cash equivalents 
 

909.1 909.1  68.5 68.5 

Total 1,495.9 1,495.9  698.9 698.9 
      
Financial liabilities      
Long-term liabilities      
- interest-bearing loans 4,059.1 4,568.0  4,454.6 4,892.1 
- derivative financial instruments 87.8 87.8  65.1 65.1 
- other long-term liabilities 1.7 1.7  1.0 1.0 
      
Current liabilities      
- current financing liabilities 1,149.8 1,200.8  318.6 318.6 
- trade payables 35.4 35.4  61.3 61.3 
- tax liabilities 4.,1 42.1  13.2 13.2 
- other liabilities, accruals and deferred 
income 
 

 
299.5 

 
299.5 

  
292.7 

 
292.7 

Total 5,675.4 6,235.3  5,206.5 5,644.0 
      

 
The following methods are used to determine the approximate fair values of these instruments: 
 For trade receivables, tax and social security contributions, other receivables, cash and cash 

equivalents, current financing liabilities, trade payables, tax liabilities, and other liabilities, 
accruals and deferred income, the carrying amount approximates the fair value because of the 
short period to the due date for each of these instruments. 

 The other equity interests are stated at fair value, which is based on the present value of the 
cash flows. 

 The derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value, which is calculated by discounting 
their future cash flows at the appropriate rates taken from the current interest curve. 

 The interest-bearing loans are bonds with a listing on the Amsterdam stock exchange, and 
private loans. The fair value of the bonds is the market value at the year-end closing price. The 
fair value of the private loans has been calculated by discounting the future cash flows against 
the current interest curve.  
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N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie uses the following hierarchy of methods to determine and measure the 
fair value of the derivative financial instruments for presentation in the balance sheet: 
Level 1: Based on prices in active markets for the same instrument 
Level 2:  Based on prices in active markets for comparable instruments, or based on other 

measurement methods, with all required key data being derived from publicly 
available market information 

Level 3:  Based on other measurement methods, with all required key data not being derived 
from publicly available market information. 

 
The assets and liabilities presented at fair value in the balance sheet are determined in accordance 
with the following hierarchy: 
 
In millions of euros Total Level 1  Level 2 Level 3 
     
2012 
- other equity interests 
- derivative financial instruments 
 
2011 
- other equity interests 
- derivative financial instruments 

 
403.9 
87.8 

 
 

252.6 
65.1 

 
- 
- 
 
 

- 
- 

 
- 

87.8 
 
 

- 
65.1 

 
403.9 

- 
 
 

252.6 
- 

     

 
For explanation of the movements of the other capital interests, please see note 6 to the 
consolidated balance sheet. 
 
 
22. Commitments not included in the balance sheet 
Contingent liabilities for the Nord Stream project 
In the fourth quarter of 2007, N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie concluded a provisional agreement with 
Gazprom, enabling Gasunie to acquire a 9% interest in Nord Stream AG on 10 June 2008. Nord 
Stream AG is constructing, and will subsequently operate, two gas pipelines across the Baltic Sea 
from Russia to Germany. The expected investment by Nord Stream AG in the gas pipeline is € 7 
billion, excluding financing costs.  
 
For an overview of the guarantees provided in connection with Nord Stream, please see note 21 to 
the consolidated balance sheet. 
 
Investment commitments 
At year-end 2012, N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie had off-balance-sheet commitments totalling € 221 
million relating to investment projects, compared with € 169 million in 2011.  
 
The figure for 2012 includes € 79 million (2011: € 63 million) for the construction of the 
NordeuropäischeErdgasleitung, € 67 million (2011: € 64 million) for Integrated Open Season 
Netherlands and Germany, € 18 million (2011: € 13 million) for the construction of the gas storage 
facility in Zuidwending, and € 16 million for the construction of the Bergermeer underground gas 
storage facility.  
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Lease commitments (operating lease) 
Lease commitments at year-end 2012 totalled € 65 million (2011: € 64 million). A breakdown is 
shown below: 
 
Term Commitment 

as at 31 Dec. 2012 
Commitment 

as at 31 Dec. 2011 
   
0 – 1 year € 11 million € 10 million 
1 – 5 years € 15 million € 15 million 
> 5 years 
 

€ 39 million € 39 million 

 
These commitments include the operating leases for company cars and private vehicles. The fixed 
lease payment is partly based on the value of the leased vehicle and the anticipated running costs, 
which are based on a standard annual number of kilometres driven. A variable allowance is also 
paid per kilometre over and above the standard number of kilometres. The average remaining term 
of the lease commitments is approximately two years. The actual operating lease costs for 
company cars and private vehicles for 2012 amounted to approximately € 9 million (2011: approx. 
€ 9 million). 
 
An operating lease also existed for computer equipment, which was terminated in 2011. The lease 
related to the supply, replacement and maintenance of the hardware of N.V. NederlandseGasunie’s 
office IT system and server park. The actual operating lease costs for computer equipment for 
2011 amounted to approximately € 4 million. 
 
Several leases were concluded for the site of the LNG terminal in Rotterdam (Gate), the largest of 
which, in terms of size, was with the Port of Rotterdam Authority. These relate to leases for land at 
the location of the Port Authority, each having a remaining term of 45 years. At year-end 2012, the 
average lease commitments for all contracts amounted to approximately € 1 million per year 
(2011: approx. € 1 million). 
 
Other commitments 
The other commitments at year-end 2012 totalled € 427 million (2011: € 498 million). A 
breakdown of these commitments is shown below: 
 
Term Contract value 

as at 31 Dec. 2012 
Contract value 

as at 31 Dec. 2011 
   
0 – 1 year € 154 million € 168 million 
1 – 5 years € 167 million € 197 million 
> 5 years 
 

€ 106 million € 133million 

 
The ‘other commitments’ were entered into with suppliers for the purpose of carrying out 
operational activities. 
 
The comparative figures for 2011 of ‘other commitments’ have been adjusted, as inter-company 
obligations have now been completely eliminated from the consolidated contract value. 
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Notes to the consolidated profit and loss account 
 
23. Staff costs 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Salaries 
Social security costs 
Pension costs 
 

140.1 
16.0 
32.6 

136.4 
13.7 
30.2 

Total staff costs 
 

188.7 180.3 

 
 
Remuneration for members of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board 
I. Members of the Executive Board 
 
In euros Salary Variable 

remuneration 
Deferred 

remuneration 
**) 

Other  
benefits *) 

     
2012 
Executive Board 
 
P.C. van Gelder, Chairman  
I.M. Oudejans 
(as of 1 October 2012) 
G.H. Graaf 
H.A.T. Chin Sue 
(until 1 July 2012) 
 

 
 
 

266,667 
 

61,831 
230,152 

 
121,765 

 

 
 
 

80,638 
 

17,314 
65,407 

 
32,875 

 

 
 
 

44,098 
 

10,141 
44,829 

 
290,765 

 

 
 
 

50,321 
 

6,483 
45,203 

 
89,219 

 

*) In 2012, Gasunie discontinued or simplified a number of schemes applying to the workforce as a 
whole. The biggest of these was the jubilee arrangement recognising long service. To compensate 
for this, one-off payments were made. The sums shown in this column also include (as of 2012) 
the tax liability of lease cars. The comparative figures have been adjusted accordingly. 
 
**) Gasunie operates a separate average salary scheme for members of the Executive Board who 
were appointed after 1 July 2010. The premium shown in the above table is the average premium 
for the members of the Executive Board. The premium percentages have changed following the 
appointment of new members. The scheme itself has not changed. 
 
On 1 July 2012, Mr H.A.T. Chin Sue stepped down from the Executive Board. It has been agreed 
that he will remain in the employ of Gasunie until 1 July 2013 at the latest, and until that time will 
perform various activities on behalf of Gasunie. In respect of the termination of his membership of 
the Executive Board and of his employment, he was allocated an appropriate payment within the 
framework of the Corporate Governance Code. 
 
The variable remuneration shown in the table above is based on achieving agreed targets during 
the financial year. The agreed targets comprise both collective Gasunie targets and individual 
targets, as described in the section entitled ‘Remuneration policy for the Executive Board’. The 
collective Gasunie targets relate to achieving agreed financial and operational results over 2012. 
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The company is liable for a total of € 70,625 in ‘crisis levy’ (an additional tax on salaries over € 
150,000) in respect of the remuneration paid to board members in 2012. This sum is not included 
in the above table. 
 
In euros Salary Variable 

remuneration 
Deferred 

remuneration 
Other benefits 

     
2011 
Executive Board 
 
P.C. van Gelder, Chairman  
H.A.T. Chin Sue 
G.H. Graaf 
(as of 1 October 2011) 
E. Dam 
(until 1 October 2011) 
P.E.G. Trienekens 
(until 1 July 2011) 
 

 
 
 

262,275 
241,435 

 
56,679 

 
180,553 

 
119,670 

 
 
 

60,848 
31,660 

 
10,203 

 
25,571 

 
31,114 

 
 
 

29,667 
81,583 

 
8,107 

 
309,112 

 
37,308 

 
 
 

48,545 
54,420 

 
5,032 

 
35,906 

 
22,148 

 
Mr E. Dam stood down from the Executive Board on 1 October 2011. It was agreed that he would 
remain in the employ of Gasunie until 1 August 2012, and until that time would perform various 
activities on behalf of Gasunie and spending 50% of his time at Gasunie on secondment to the 
Energy Delta Institute. Mr Dam retired from work on 1 August 2012. In respect of the termination 
of his membership of the Executive Board and of his employment, he was allocated an appropriate 
payment within the framework of the Corporate Governance Code. 
 
II. Supervisory Board members 
 
In euros Remuneration 
  
2012 
G.J. van Luijk, Chairman 
H.L.J. Noy, Vice-Chairman 
R. de Jong (as of 16 May 2012) 
A. Lont 
M.J. Poots-Bijl 
J.P.H.J. Vermeire 
C. Griffioen (until 1 May 2012) 
 

 
39,627 
31,595 
15,000 
26,775 
28,917 
30,000 
10,353 

2011 
G.J. van Luijk, Chairman 
C. Griffioen, Vice-Chairman 
A. Lont 
H.L.J. Noy 
M.J. Poots-Bijl(as of 1 September 2011) 
J.P.H.J. Vermeire 
 

 
39,591 
31,248 
26,938 
32,325 
9,069 

30,000 

 
The remuneration of the members of the Supervisory Board for the 2012 financial year amounts to 
a total of € 182,267 (2011: € 169,171). 
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III. Former members of the Executive Board 
Mr E. Dam stood down from the Executive Board on 1 October 2011. It was agreed that he would 
remain in the employ of Gasunie until 1 August 2012, and until that time would perform various 
activities on behalf of Gasunie and spending 50% of his time at Gasunie on secondment to the 
Energy Delta Institute. Mr Dam retired from work on 1 August 2012.  
 
On 1 July 2012, Mr H.A.T. Chin Sue stepped down from the Executive Board. As mentioned above, 
his employment will terminate on 1 July 2013 at the latest. 
 
In euros Salary Variable 

remune-
ration 

Deferred 
remune-

ration 

Other  
benefits *) 

     
2012 
E. Dam 
(for the period 1 January-31 July 2012) 
H.A.T. Chin Sue 
(for the period 1 July-31 December 2012) 
 
2011 
E. Dam 
(for the period 1 October-31 December 2011) 
 

 
 

108,324 
 

123,714 
 
 
 

42,845 

 
 

36,832 
 

32,875 
 
 
 

5,999 

 
 

41,297 
 

44,031 
 
 
 

15,563 

 
 

79,125 
 

20,500 
 
 
 

7,568 

*) In 2012, Gasunie discontinued or simplified a number of schemes applying to the workforce as a 
whole. The biggest of these was the jubilee arrangement recognising long service. To compensate 
for this, one-off payments were made. The sums shown in this column also include (as of 2012) 
the tax liability of lease cars. The comparative figures have been adjusted accordingly. 
 
The company is liable for a total of € 44,995 in ‘crisis levy’ (an additional tax on salaries over € 
150,000) in respect of the remuneration paid to board members in 2012. This sum is not included 
in the above table. 
 
 
24. Other operating expenses 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Costs of subcontracted work and other external costs 
Costs of network operations 
Other operating costs 
 

216.7 
181.4 

66.5 
 

238.7 
203.7 
98.9 

 

Total other operating expenses 
 

464.6 541.3 

 
‘Other operating costs’ include the additions to the provision for clearance costs and redevelopment 
totalling € 9.0 million (2011: € 66.0 million) and movements in the provision for obsolescence 
amounting to € 0.6 million positive (2011: € 0.1 million negative). 
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25. Finance revenue 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Interest income 
 

2.1 
 

8.1 
 

Total finance revenue 
 

2.1 
 

8.1 
 

 
Interest income relates to loans granted and receivables. 
 
 
26. Finance costs 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Interest expenses 
Exchange results 
Other finance costs 
 

225.1 
0.1 
2.6 

189.5 
0.6 
0.2 

Total finance costs 
 

227.8 
 

190.3 
 

 
The interest expenses on financing liabilities stated at amortised cost amount to € 241.1 million 
(2011: € 231.7 million). Of this sum, € 20.1 million relates to the difference between the exercise 
price and the nominal value of the premature repayment of bond loans in July 2012 (see also note 
14 to the consolidated balance sheet). The interest expenses relating to short-term financing 
amount to € 1.1 million (2011: € 2.0 million). Of the interest expenses, a total of € 17.1 million 
was capitalised in 2012 (2011: € 44.2 million), based on a weighted average interest rate of 4.7% 
(2011: 5.1%). 
 
 
27. Taxes 
The taxes on the result in the consolidated profit and loss account comprise the following 
components: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Corporate income tax payable for the financial year 
Corporate income tax payable for the previous financial years 
Deferred corporate income tax which became acute in the financial year 
Movement in deferred taxation 
 

25.8 
- 
 

- 
85.7 

14.3 
(4.3) 

 
(149.7) 

142.6 

Total taxes 
 

111.5 
 

2.9 
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The reconciliation between the effective tax rate and the applicable tax rate for the consolidated 
financial statements is set out below: 
 
In percentages  2012   2011 
      
Profit and loss account 
Applicable rate (standard tax rate, the Netherlands)  
Prior-year adjustments 
Effect of tax rate change on deferred taxation 
Other differences 
 

 
25.0 

- 
- 

(1.3) 
 

   
25.0 
 0.6 

(0.1) 
6.6 

 

 

 
 
Effect of goodwill impairment 
 

 23.7 
 

- 
 

  32.1 
 

(32.6) 
 

Effective rate 
 
Deferred taxation 
Applicable rate (for subsequent financial years) 
Effective rate (for subsequent financial years) 
 

 23.7 
 
 

25.0 
25.0 

 

  (0.5) 
 
 

25.0 
25.0 

 

 
The other differences relate to non-taxable amounts as a result of factors such as the application of 
the participation exemption in the Netherlands and the differences in tax rates between the 
Netherlands and Germany. 
 
 
28. Workforce 
The average number of employees in full-time equivalents in 2012 totalled 1,684 (2011: 1,698). At 
year-end 2012, the company employed 1,685 full-time equivalents (2011: 1,683). 
 
 
29. Dividend paid and proposed 
The Executive Board proposes to take 40% of the profit for 2012 (€ 143.5 million) to the general 
reserve and to distribute 60% (€ 215.2 million) to the shareholder. This dividend proposal has not 
been included in the balance sheet as of 31 December 2012 and the notes. No dividend was 
distributed for 2011. 
 
 
30. Financial information by segment 
The information is segmented in line with the various areas in which the Group is active. The 
operating segments reflect the management structure of the Group. The following segments are 
distinguished: 
 
 Gasunie Transport Services 

This segment concerns the network management in the Netherlands and is responsible for 
managing transport, developing the pipeline network and related plants, as well as promoting 
market forces. 
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 Gasunie Deutschland 
This segment concerns the network management in Germany and is responsible for managing 
transport, developing the pipeline network and related plants, as well as promoting market 
forces. 

 Participations & Business Development  
This segment focuses on facilitating access to the new gas flows for northwest Europe using an 
LNG connection and long-distance pipelines, and on utilising the geological infrastructure for 
the purpose of storing natural gas. Another activity of this segment is participation in 
international and national projects relating to the natural gas infrastructure in the Netherlands 
and Germany. This segment also includes joint ventures relating to pipelines that connect the 
Gasunie transport network with foreign markets, such as the BBL pipeline to the United 
Kingdom.  
 

The accounting policies used for these segments are the same as those applied to the consolidated 
and company financial statements. 
 
As of 1 January 2012, information will be given in terms of the above three segments. This is in 
line with internal reporting to management and replaces the previous segmentation into Regulated 
Network Management in the Netherlands and Germany (TSO) and Participations & Business 
Development (Non-TSO). 
 
In addition, in the internal reporting to management, the item ‘results of participations’ has been 
reallocated from ‘segment result’ to ‘financial income and expenses’, in order to be aligned with the 
‘operating result’. 
 
The comparative figures for 2011 were adjusted accordingly. 
 
The assets, liabilities, income and results of a segment comprise both items directly related to the 
segments and items that can reasonably be attributed to them. Transaction prices for inter-
segment transactions are determined at arm’s length. 
 
I. Information on assets and liabilities 
 
In millions of euros Assets  Liabilities 
 31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011  31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011 
      
Segments      
- Gasunie Transport Services 7,446.7 7,351.5  466.8 415.3 
- Gasunie Deutschland 1,063.4 1,005.7  294.1 295.0 
- Participations & Business 
Development 1,658.8 1,526.4  56.8 42.8 
Inter-segment (12.9) (12.8)  (12.9) (12.8) 
      

Segment total 10,156.0 9,870.8  804.8 740.3 
      
Unallocated assets and liabilities  

917.1 
 

238.5 
  

5,411.8 
 

4,931.7 
      

Total consolidated assets and 
liabilities 
 

 
11,073.1 

 
10,109.3 

  
6,216.6 

 
5,672.0 
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The unallocated assets and liabilities relate to financing, acute corporate income tax and VAT. 
 
II. Information on income and result 
 
In millions of euros Income  Segment result 
 2012 2011  2012 2011 
     
Segments      
- Gasunie Transport Services 1,053.9 1,365.8  422.6 462.7 
- Gasunie Deutschland 239.6 195.4  83.0 (361.5) 
- Participations & Business 
Development 271.8 222.8  166.5 138.6 
Inter-segment (59.2) (58.2)    
      

Segment total 1,506.1 1,725.8  672.1 239.8 
      
Unallocated costs    - (679.4) 
Financial income and expenses    (201.9) (159.5) 
      

Result before taxation    470.2 (599.1) 
      
Taxes    (111.5) (2.9) 
      

Income and result for the year after 
taxation 
 

 
1,506.1 

 
1,725.8 

  
358.7 

 
(602.0) 

 
During 2012, the Gasunie Transport Services segment provided inter-segment services to the value 
of € 0.8 million (2011: € 0.4 million), the Gasunie Deutschland segment provided inter-segment 
services to the value of € 1.7 million (2011: € 1.2 million), and the Participations & Business 
Development segment provided inter-segment services to the value of € 56.7 million (2011: € 56.6 
million). 
 
The ‘unallocated costs’ for 2011, totalling € 679.4 million negative, relate to the impairment of 
goodwill, which in 2011 was attributed to the former Regulated Network Management Netherlands 
and Germany (TSO). A retrospective allocation of this amount in the 2012 annual accounts to the 
new segments Gasunie Transport Services and Gasunie Deutschland would be arbitrary and has 
therefore not been carried out. 
 
III. Other segment information 
 
In millions of euros Investments in fixed assets 
 2012 2011 
   
Segments   
- Gasunie Transport Services 370.8 429.4 
- Gasunie Deutschland 84.9 135.3 
- Participations & Business Development 59.4 139.6 
   

Segment total 
 

515.1 704.3 
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The above fixed assets comprise the tangible fixed assets, the intangible fixed assets, the 
investments in associates and other equity interests. 
 
In millions of euros Depreciation and 

amortisation 
 Tangible non-monetary 

items other than 
depreciation 

 2012 2011  2012 2011 
      
Segments      
- Gasunie Transport Services 207.4 188.6  32.9 309.8 
- Gasunie Deutschland 21.4 28.7  5.2 404.0 
- Participations & Business 
Development 40.5 30.7  4.0 3.5 
      

Segment total 
 

269.3 248.0  42.1 717.3 

 
‘Tangible non-monetary items other than depreciation’ relate to additions to provisions and in 2011 
mainly to the impairment of tangible and financial fixed assets totalling € 620.6 million. 
 
In millions of euros Investments in associates   Share in equity of associates 
 2012 2011  2012 2011 
      
Segments      
- Gasunie Transport Services - -  0.1 0.1 
- Gasunie Deutschland - -  118.5 116.5 
- Participations & Business 
Development 0.1 -  10.0 12.6 
      

Segment total 
 

0.1 -  128.6 129.2 

 
In millions of euros Acquisitions in associates  Share in result of associates 
 2012 2011  2012 2011 
      
Segments      
- Gasunie Transport Services - -  - - 
- Gasunie Deutschland - 3.4  25.7 21.7 
- Participations & Business 
Development - -  (1.9) 1.0 
      

Segment total 
 

- 3.4  23.8 22.7 
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31. Information on products and services 
 
In millions of euros Income from third parties 
 2012 2011 
   
Gas transport 1,289.2 1,540.5 
Other activities 216.9 185.3 
   

Total 
 

1,506.1 1,725.8 

 
 
32. Geographical information 
Income from third parties and fixed assets by geographical area are determined primarily on the 
basis of the area where gas transport takes place. As of 1 July 2008, N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie 
operates in two geographical areas: in the Netherlands and outside the Netherlands. 
 
In millions of euros Income from third parties  Fixed assets 
 2012 2011  31 Dec. 2012 31 Dec. 2011 
      
The Netherlands 1,198.2 1,460.9  7,734.3 7,546.8 
Outside the Netherlands 307.9 264.9  1,729.9 1,536.8 
      

Total 
 

1,506.1 1,725.8  9,464.2 9,083.6 

 
The above fixed assets comprise the tangible fixed assets, the intangible fixed assets, the 
investments in associates and other equity interests. 
 
 
33. Major customers 
In 2012 and 2011, the company generated at least 10% of its external income from gas transport 
from one single external customer. 
 
 
34. Related parties 
Services between N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie and its related parties are provided at arm’s length. 
 
GasTerra B.V. is a related party because the DutchState has significant influence, both directly and 
indirectly. N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie provides gas transport services to GasTerra B.V. These 
services are performed in compliance with the Dutch Gas Act, which stipulates that N.V. 
Nederlandse Gasunie is obliged to act in a non-discriminatory manner and to conduct business as 
requested. The tariffs charged are established by the NMa, an independent body with no 
involvement from the DutchState. GasTerra B.V. qualifies as a major customer. 
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Company financial statements 
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Company balance sheet as at 31 December  
(before profit appropriation) 
 
In millions of euros 
 

Notes  2012 
 

  2011 
 

       
Assets 
 
Fixed assets 
 - tangible fixed assets 
 - financial fixed assets 
 - deferred tax assets 

 
 
 

1 
2 

 
 
 

6,804.7 
2,517.9 

458.7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

6,635.9 
1,840.3 

525.1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   9,781.3   9,001.3 
Current assets 
 - stocks 
 - trade and other receivables 
 - receivables from group companies 
 - cash and cash equivalents 
 

   
33.8 

146.4 
25.5 

853.5 

   
28.3 

346.2 
470.3 
36.7 

Total assets   10,840.5 
 

  9,882.8 
 

       
Equity and liabilities 
 
Equity 
 - issued share capital 
 - revaluation reserve 
 - statutory reserves equity interests 
 - general reserve 
 - result for the year 
 

 
 
 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 

 
 
 

0.2 
2,175.9 

102.4 
2,219.3 

358.7 
 

 
 

  
 
 

0.2 
2,247.3 

(16.5) 
2,808.3 
(602.0) 

 

 
 

   4,856.5   4,437.3 
 
Provisions 
 
Long-term liabilities 
 - interest-bearing loans 
 
Current liabilities 
 - current financing liabilities 
 - trade and other payables 
 - liabilities to group companies 
 

 
8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
284.1 

 
 

3,750.0 
 
 

1,115.8 
 

304.3 
529.8 

 

   
211.3 

 
 

4,150.0 
 
 

295.2 
 

306.0 
483.0 

 

Total equity and liabilities 
 

  10,840.5   9,882.8 
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Company profit and loss account 
 
In millions of euros 
 

Notes  2012 
 

  2011 
 

       
Gross income 
Repayment tariff settlement 
 

 1,409.2 
(214.8) 

  1,502.4 
- 

 

Net income   1,194.4   1,502.4 
 
Staff costs 
Other operating expenses 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Gas transport network impairments 
 

 
 

10 
 

1 

 
(159.2) 
(395.8) 
(211.5) 

- 

   
(152.6) 
(464.3) 
(191.9) 
(220.6) 

 

Total expenses 
 

  (766.5)   (1,029.4) 

Operating result 
 

  427.9   473.0 

Finance revenue and costs 
Share in result of group companies and 
associates 
 

12  (147.8) 
 

164.4 
 

  (102.4) 
 

(872.7) 
 

Result from ordinary activities before taxation 
 

  444.5   (502.1) 

Taxes   (85.8) 
 

  (99.9) 
 

Result after taxation 
 

  358.7   (602.0) 
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Notes to the company financial statements 
 
Accounting policies 
The company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the Netherlands and comply with the financial reporting requirements (NL 
GAAP), using the option provided in Section 362, paragraph 8, of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, to 
apply the accounting policies used in the consolidated financial statements to the company financial 
statements. These are the IFRS provisions, which have been adopted by the European Union. 
 
Please refer to the notes to the consolidated balance sheet and the profit and loss account for the 
accounting policies. These notes contain additions to the notes to the consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
Interests in group companies are stated at net asset value. If and to the extent that N.V. 
Nederlandse Gasunie is unable to transfer results to itself due to restrictions, the results will be 
added to a statutory reserve. 
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Notes to the company balance sheet 
 
1. Tangible fixed assets 
 
In millions of euros Carrying 

amount as at 
1 Jan. 2012 

Additions Disposals Depre-
ciation 

Impair-
ments 

Carrying 
amount as at 
31 Dec. 2012 

       
Land and buildings 
Compressor stations 
Installations 
Main transmission lines and related 
plant and equipment 
Regional transmission lines and 
related plant and equipment 
Other fixed operating assets 
Fixed assets under construction 
 

100.8 
657.3 
735.6 

 
3,951.5 

 
694.5 
133.4 
362.8 

 

1.7 
72.5 

201.2 
 

52.5 
 

53.7 
35.4 

(29.3) 
 

0.4 
0.4 
1.4 

 
1.2 

 
1.9 
2.1 

- 
 

3.9 
34.8 
49.6 

 
82.3 

 
12.0 
28.9 

- 
 

- 
- 
- 
 

- 
 

- 
- 
- 
 

98.2 
694.6 
885.8 

 
3,920.5 

 
734.3 
137.8 
333.5 

 

Total for 2012 financial year 
 

6,635.9 
 

387.7 7.4 
 

211.5 - 6,804.7 

 
In millions of euros Carrying 

amount as at 
1 Jan. 2011 

Additions Disposals Depre-
ciation 

Impair-
ments 

Carrying 
amount as at 
31 Dec. 2011 

       
Land and buildings 
Compressor stations 
Installations  
Main transmission lines and related 
plant and equipment 
Regional transmission lines and 
related plant and equipment 
Other fixed operating assets 
Fixed assets under construction 
 

100.3 
478.3 
706.9 

 
3,771.5 

 
763.4 
101.5 
694.4 

 

5.3 
220.5 
102.3 

 
372.5 

 
15.1 
59.3 

(331.6) 
 

0.9 
0.5 
3.7 

 
5.2 

 
0.9 
0.1 

- 
 

3.9 
29.2 
48.3 

 
67.1 

 
16.1 
27.3 

- 
 

- 
11.8 
21.6 

 
120.2 

 
67.0 

- 
- 
 

100.8 
657.3 
735.6 

 
3,951.5 

 
694.5 
133.4 
362.8 

 

Total for 2011 financial year 
 

6,616.3 
 

443.4 11.3 
 

191.9 
 

220.6 
 

6,635.9 
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*) Including any impairments 
 
For information on impairments, see note 1 to the consolidated balance sheet in the consolidated 
financial statements. 
 
It is the Executive Board’s intention to transfer its ownership of the gas transport network in the 
Netherlands to its wholly-owned group company Gasunie Transport Services B.V. 
 
 

In millions of euros Cost as at  
31 Dec. 

2012 

Accumulated 
depreciation *)  

as at 31 Dec. 2012 

Cost as at  
31 Dec. 2011 

Accumulated 
depreciation *)  

as at 31 Dec. 2011 
     
Land and buildings 165.4 67.2 164.4 63.6 
Compressor stations 908.4 213.8 837.9 180.6 
Installations 1,264.8 379.0 1,070.7 335.1 
Main transmission lines and related 
plant and equipment 

 
4,676.0 

 
755.5 

 
4.626.5 

 
675.0 

Regional transmission lines and 
related plant and equipment 

 
944.3 

 
210.0 

 
895.6 

 
201.1 

Other fixed operating assets 428.7 290.9 409.4 276.0 
Fixed assets under construction 
 

333.5 - 362.8 - 

Total  
 

8,721.1 1,916.4 8,367.3 1,731.4 
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2. Financial fixed assets 
 
In millions of euros  2012   2011 
      
Group companies 
Equity interest as at 1 January 
Movements 
 - investments 
 - movements directly in equity 
 - result of group companies 
 - repayment of share premium 
 - dividend received 
 

 
1,130.8 

 
280.3 
118.7 
166.2 

- 
(1.0) 

 

   
1,088.3 

 
1,257.6 

16.8 
(873.7) 
(357.3) 

(0.9) 
 

 

Equity interest as at 31 December 
 
Financing as at 1 January 
Movements 
 - long-term loans granted 
 - repayment of long-term loans 
 

 
 

696.9 
 

435.5 
(319.5) 

1,695.0   
 

1,813.4 
 

140.4 
(1,256.9) 

1,130.8 

Financing as at 31 December  812.9 
 

  696.9 
 

Balance as at 31 December 
 

 2,507.9 
 

  1,827.7 
 

Investments in associates 
 

 10.0 
 

  12.6 
 

Total financial fixed assets 
 

 2,517.9   1,840.3 

 
For a specification of the investments in associates, see note 5 to the consolidated balance sheet in 
the consolidated financial statements. 
 
 
3. Issued share capital 
The authorised share capital amounts to € 756,000 and is divided into 7,560 shares, each having a 
nominal value of € 100, of which 1,512 have been issued and paid up in full. 
 
The issued shares are held by the DutchState. 
 
Movements in issued share capital are: 
 
In euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January 
Movements 
 

151,200 
- 

151,200 
- 

Balance as at 31 December 
 

151,200 151,200 
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4. Revaluation reserve 
Movements in the revaluation reserve are: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January 
 
Realised share of the unrealised revaluation 
Transferred to the profit and loss account, 
of which corporate income tax 
 

2,247.3 
 

(70.0) 
(1.8) 

0.4 

2,490.2 
 

(241.6) 
(1.7) 

0.4 

Balance as at 31 December 
 

2,175.9 2,247.3 

 
The revaluation reserve includes the revaluation of € 2,168.1 million of tangible fixed assets as at 
1 January 2004(2011: € 2,238.1 million) and the cash flow hedge reserve amounting to € 7.8 
million (2011: € 9.2 million). 
 
 
5. Statutory reserves equity interests 
Movements in the statutory reserves equity interests are: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January 
 
Movements in cash flow hedge reserve, 
of which corporate income tax 
Movements in other equity interests, at fair value 
Interest in retained earnings, not freely distributable 
Other movements 
 

(16.5) 
 

(18.4) 
4.6 

137.6 
0.2 

(5.1) 

(34.4) 
 

(25.8) 
6.5 

37.8 
1.1 

(1.7) 

Balance as at 31 December 
 

102.4 (16.5) 

 
 
6. General reserve 
Movements in the general reserve are: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January 
 
Appropriation of result for previous financial year 
Balance of actuarial gains and losses on employee benefits, 
of which corporate income tax 
Realised share of the unrealised revaluation 
Movements in statutory reserves 
 

2,808.3 
 

(602.0 
(75.7 
18.9 
70.0 
(0.2 

 

2,351.1 
 

272.2 
(74.1 
18.5 

241.6 
(1.0 

 

Balance as at 31 December 
 

2,219.3 2,808.3 
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7. Result for the year 
Movements in the result for the year are: 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Balance as at 1 January 
 
Dividend paid 
Appropriation of result 
Result for the year 

(602.0) 
 

- 
602.0 
358.7 

 

453.7 
 

(181.5) 
(272.2) 
(602.0) 

 

Balance as at 31 December 
 

358.7 (602.0) 

 
 
8. Provisions 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Provision for pension liabilities 
Provision for jubilee benefits 
Provision for post-retirement fringe benefits 
Provision for reorganisation expenses 
Provision for clearance costs and redevelopment 
 

179.5 
5.1 
5.5 
0.1 

93.9 

106.1 
5.2 
5.5 
0.1 

94.4 

Total provisions 
 

284.1 211.3 

 
For a specification of the provisions, see notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated balance sheet in the 
consolidated financial statements. 
 
 
9. Other items in the company balance sheet 
For a specification of other items in the company balance sheet, see the notes to the relevant 
consolidated items in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Notes to the company profit and loss account 
 
10. Other operating expenses 
 
In millions of euros 2012 2011 
   
Capitalised expenditure 
Costs of subcontracted work and other external costs 
Cost of network operations 
Other operating expenses 
 

(83.7) 
172.7 
180.8 
126.0 

(100.8) 
196.7 
205.6 
162.8 

Total other operating expenses 
 

395.8 464.3 

 
The specification of the remuneration of the members of the Executive Board and the Supervisory 
Board can be found in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
 
In 2012, in line with internal reporting to management, a total of € 30.0 million was reallocated 
from ‘other operating expenses’ to ‘cost of network operations’. The comparative figures for 2011 
have been adjusted accordingly. 
 
 
11. External auditor’s fees 
The following fees relating to the work carried out by the audit firm responsible for auditing these 
financial statements were charged to the legal entity in the year under review. They include the 
corresponding fees charged to the consolidated subsidiaries. 
 
In millions of euros Total  Of which Ernst & Young 

Accountants LLP 
 2012 2011  2012 2011 
      
Audit of the financial statements 
Other audit engagements 
Tax consultancy 
Other non-audit services 
 

0.7 
0.3 
0.2 

- 

0.7 
0.6 
0.2 

- 

 0.6 
0.3 

- 
- 

0.5 
0.6 

- 
- 

Total external auditor’s fees 
 

1.2 1.5  0.9 1.1 
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12. Finance revenue and costs 
 
In millions of euros  2012   2011 
      
Interest income 
 

63.2 
 

  84.7 
 

 

Total finance revenue 
 

 63.2   84.7 

Interest expenses 
Exchange results 
Other finance costs 
 

(210.5) 
(0.4) 
(0.1) 

  (186.4) 
(0.5) 
(0.2) 

 

Total finance costs 
 

 (211.0)   (187.1) 

Balance 
 

 (147.8)   (102.4) 

 
 
13. Other items in the company profit and loss account 
For a specification of other items in the company profit and loss account, see the notes to the 
relevant consolidated items in the consolidated financial statements. 
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List of participations 
 
Company Registered office Interest as at 

31 Dec. 2012 
Group companies   
Gasunie Transport Services B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 
Gastransport Noord-West Europa B.V.  Groningen, Netherlands 100% 
GastransportNoord-West Europa Holding B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 
GastransportNoord-West Europa Services 1 B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 
GastransportNoord-West Europa Services 2 B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 
GastransportNoord-West Europa Services 3 B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 
GastransportNoord-West Europa Services 4 B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 
Gasunie BBL B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 
Gasunie Engineering B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 
Gasunie Germany B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 
Gasunie LNG BBR B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 
Gasunie LNG Holding B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 
Gasunie Underground Storage (GUUS) B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 
Gasunie Zuidwending B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 
Vertogas B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 100% 
Cupa Holding GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 
Cupa Transport Services GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 
Gasunie Deutschland GmbH & Co. KG Hannover, Germany 100% 
Gasunie Deutschland Services GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 
Gasunie Deutschland Technical Services GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 
Gasunie Deutschland Transport Services GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 
Gasunie Deutschland Transport Services Holding GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 
Gasunie Deutschland Verwaltungs GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 
Gasunie Ostseeanbindungsleitung (GOAL) GmbH Hannover, Germany 100% 
Gasunie Infrastruktur AG Zug, Switzerland 100% 
   
Joint ventures   
BBL Company V.O.F. Groningen, Netherlands 60% 
Gate terminal B.V. Rotterdam, Netherlands 45% 
Gate terminal C.V. Rotterdam, Netherlands 45% 
Gate terminal Management B.V. Rotterdam, Netherlands 50% 
DEUDAN - Deutsch/Dänische Erdgastransport-GmbH Handewitt, Germany 75% 
DEUDAN - Holding GmbH Hannover, Germany 51% 
   
Associates   
APX B.V. Amsterdam, Netherlands 20.9% 
C.V. GasexpansieIJmond Groningen, Netherlands 50% 
Energie Data Services Nederland (EDSN) B.V. Arnhem, Netherlands 25% 
Global Gas Networks Initiative (GGNI) B.V. Groningen, Netherlands 25% 
Rotterdamse Cintra Maatschappij B.V. Rotterdam, Netherlands 25% 
DEUDAN - Deutsch/Dänische Erdgastransport-GmbH & Co. KG Handewitt, Germany 33.3% 
GASPOOL Balancing Services GmbH Berlin, Germany 16.7% 
NETRA GmbH Norddeutsche Erdgas Transversale Emstek/Schneiderkrug, Germany 33.3% 
NETRA GmbH Norddeutsche Erdgas Transversale & Co. KG Emstek/Schneiderkrug, Germany 28.7% 
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The Executive Board, 
 
P.C. van Gelder, Chairman 
I.M. Oudejans 
G.H. Graaf 
 
 
The Supervisory Board, 
 
G.J. van Luijk, Chairman 
H.L.J. Noy, Vice-Chairman 
R. de Jong 
A. Lont 
M.J. Poots-Bijl 
J.P.H.J. Vermeire 
 
 
Groningen, 3 April 2013 
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Other information 
 
Provisions of the Articles of Association governing profit appropriation 
The Executive Board does not consider it necessary to add profit to reserves pursuant to Article 39, 
paragraph 2, of the Articles of Association. As a result, the profit is at the free disposal of the 
General Meeting of Shareholders. 
 
The company may make distributions to shareholders and other persons entitled to receive part of 
the distributable profit only insofar as its equity exceeds the total issued share capital plus the 
reserves that must be maintained by law. 
 
 
Proposed appropriation of the result 
The Executive Board proposes to take 40% of the profit (€ 143.5 million) for 2012 to the general 
reserve and to distribute 60% (€ 215.2 million) to the shareholder. 
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Independent auditor’s report 
 
To: the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Supervisory Board of N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie 
 
Report on the financial statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2012 van N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie in 
Groningen, the Netherlands. The financial statements include the consolidated financial statements 
and the company financial statements. The consolidated financial statements comprise the 
consolidated balance sheet position as at 31 December 2012, the consolidated profit and loss 
account for the year then ended, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 
consolidated statement of movements in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for 
2012, and notes, comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. The company financial statements comprise the company balance sheet 
as at 31 December 2012 and the company profit and loss account for the year then ended and the 
notes, comprising a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
Management’s responsibility 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union 
and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and for the preparation of the report of the 
management board in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, 
management is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. This 
requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error.  
 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion with respect to the consolidated financial statements 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie as at 31 December 2012 and of its result and its cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted 
by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. 
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Opinion with respect to the company financial statements 
In our opinion, the company financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position 
of N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie as at 31 December 2012 and of its result for the year then ended in 
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. 
 
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 
Pursuant to the legal requirement under Section 2:393, paragraph 5, subparagraphs e. and f. of 
the Dutch Civil Code, we have no deficiencies to report as a result of our examination as to 
whether the report of the management board, to the extent we can assess, has been prepared in 
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of this Code, and whether the information as required under 
Section 2:392, paragraph 1, subparagraphs b. to h. has been annexed. Further we report that the 
report of the management board, to the extent we can assess, is consistent with the financial 
statements as required by Section 2:391, paragraph 4, of the Dutch Civil Code. 
 
 
Groningen, 3 April 2013 
 
Ernst & Young Accountants LLP 
 
 
[was signed] 
A.E. Wijnsma 
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